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Was it ever (I fpeak to you, Gentlemen of the
Jury, Citzens of London, who know its antient
Conftitution, and have too well experienced its
late Convulfions) was it ever known, till Juftice
was defigned to be corrupted, that there was any
Inbouring to be Sheriffs? No, Endeavours were
always ufed to be excufed, and Fines paid to get off
from that Office: And the reafon is plain; for
never was there a wile and wealthy Citizen, that
had 2 mind, out of a principal Part of his Eftate,
to fquander away fo much as is neceffary to defray
the Clilharge of that Office: Burt it was the Defign
that thofe Rafcals had upon the Government, that
made them fo greedy of thofe Places; and they
thought they had now an Opportunity to effect
their Defign, upon thefe Fellows pretended Dilco-
very., They believed, that becaufe we were hurried
into the Mifchicfs of the late Times, by Pretences
of Popery, the fame Bait would be fwallowed now:
Therefore the Cry muft be et up, Popery was a
coming 113, ‘They concluded, if they could but
make ufe of the fame Lngines, they fhould have the
fame Effect : Witnefs a Peer, that 1s now dead,
one that was a main Inftrument of our Confufion in
the late Times, and thereby experienced in Villany,
was made ufe of as the chief Tool in thefe late Con-
trivances,

But alas! when they found thofc Pretences and
Proje€ts would take no longer, then they fly to
that, which was indeed the bottom of all 5 I mean,
Tbe bisody Confpiracy.  When they found they could
not overthrow the Government by Methods of Law,
they betake theinfelves to downright Treafon, For
by this time the Eyes of the honeft Citizens were
opened ; and they found what Intereft was driving
on: And it was time to have them open, when a
Caufe in Guild-FHail was always tried according to
the Characters of the Client, and not the Merits of
the Cavfe; when if a Man was blafted with the
Name of a Zory, he was fure to lofe it: But if a
whining Ralcal was fanétified with the Name of a
Whig, he was fure to have 1t go on his fide: Wit-
nefs the famous Caule of Mr, Loades, about his
Lemans.

But when Sheriffs came to be elected in due man-
ner, fuch as were fit to be trufted with the City
Bufinefs; what do they, but break out into a hor-
rid Confpiracy, to takeaway the Life of that bleffed
King, that merciful Prince, fo lately deceafed, to
the Grief and Sorrow of all his loving and loyal
Subjeéts 7 And nor only fo, but to rob us of his
facred Majefty, our prefent moft Gracious Sove-
reigns whom I pray GOD to preferve long to
reign over us. [ 7o which, the Auditory gave a great
Acclamation, fayirg, Amen.]

Gentlemen, When thefe Things are thought
upon, you muft give me leave to oblerve (let others
think what they pleafe) that was the real Plot, the
true Plot: For there is one thing obfervable, that
aitends this whole Affair, that every Man who fuf-
fered for the Plor, which the Witneffes truly call
Oates’s Plot, to a Man denied it, even to the laft
Gafp s and tcok it upon their Deaths and Salvations,
thar they were innocent : Nay, when they had not
thofe Hopes Bedfoe had of Life, (for I cannot be-
_lieve, thar he could have been fo egregious a Vil-
lain, asto have attefted fuch notorious Lyes, if he
- had not hoped to have recovered, and thereby in-
creafed his own Reputation) yet not a Man of the
others, but difowned it with their dying Breath.
Now, on the other fide, there was not a Man, that
was concerned in the Confpiracy, of which this,was
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to be the Blind and the Colour, had the Confidence
to deny it, when they came to fuffer for i, A
this ought to be put in the Balance, and duly
weighed.

For, Gentlemen, becaufe it is a Matter that i
not only publick here, but all the World over, we
muft have the Juftice of the Nation vindicareq,
and its Dif-reputation wiped off. And having taken
notice of thefe Things, which 1 could not well omie
upon this Occafion, I muft now put you in mind,
what is neceffary for you to take into your Confide.
ration, as to the particular Cafe before you. And,

Firft, You muft obferve, that this Inditment
againft Oates, is for commiting wilful and corrupy
Perjury 5 which is alfo faid to be done malicioufly,
And if it were falfe, furely 1 was malicious; be-
caufe by his falfe Oath, have tnnocent Men been
convitted, condemned, and executed.

Secondly, You are to conlider, how far the Thing
goes, 10 make it material to the Ifiue: For if i
were upon a Nicety only, or a Catch, or any of
thofe fine Words, that iie has been pleafed to make
ufe of; it were not fic to perjure him upon it. Bug
it is certainly very matertal : FFor Time and Place
are Matters fubftantial to difcover Truth and Falf:
hood by 5 as in the Cafe of Swfannabd, the Perjury
of the Elders, as you may remember, was detected
by thofe very Circumftances. But I fhall fhew you
the Occafion of this Oath 3 and that will manifeft
it to be a material Part, in relps&t of the Time,
For,

Firft, Here was a Con{ult held, as he teflified,
the 24th of April, 16585 and then he fivears Jre-
land was 1n Town, and prefent ac the Confult: Bye
all that Oates fwore, would not do the Feat, becaufe
that he was but one Witnefs. Then comes Bedloe,
his worthy Yoke-fellow (a Brace of fuch Witnefles,
as the Lord deliver all Mankind from) and he
affigns another Fact upon Mr., Ireland, in the
Month of Arguft, the latter end of it, or the begin-
ning of Septembery which is material, and makes
two Witnefles againft Jreland, which Ouates knew
well enough : For he 1s his Arts-Mafter 5 he knows
all the Tricks, and can tell the very nick that will
do. And therefore, when he finds Mr. Ireland o
politively affirming, that he was then out of Town;
and if fo, Bedloe did not fwear true: then does thig
QOates come 1n, (and thereby makes his Teftimony
material to the Point then in Iffue,) fays he, 7he
firft of September, or (at leaff) the fecond, I il
Jwear be was in Town s for be gave me twenty Shil-
lings. And that s given as a Token, why he does
remember it. And thus he did prop up Bad'oe’s
Teftumony, againft Mr, Irelznd’s Tefence, This
1s proved to you by Mr. Waterboufz, who was oge
of the Jury. And the fame thing does the next
Gentleman fwear, which is Mr. Byfi:d: They do
both agree in that Circumftance pun@ually, that he
fwore he had then of him twenty Shillings.

Ay, (but fays he for himfeif, becaufe T would
remove the Objections out of the way, as they oc-
cur to me) */is very bard, this being mew fome fix or
feven Xears ago, that I foculd be called t2 quefiinn about
Juch a thing 5 when they might bave bad a time to dif-
prove it before,

Befides, Gentlemen, the Anfwer that has heen
truly given to you, concerning the Miferablenefs
of the Times; when, the Truth of it is, there
was no Juftice to behad for Proteftants, if we fpeak
of the Church-of-England AMen unlder that Name -

For either they were Papifis in Mafquerade, or
Popifhly




168s. B.R. for Perjury. | 99

Popifhly affected ; or the Names of Zoryand 7 anti-
vy, and I Know not whar, was enough tojdo theit
work for them: And no body was reckon’d of the
Sober, Virtuous, Godly Party, but thofe that were
under A/fociations and Covenants 5 as tho’ there was
no Sanéity to be found in any buc thofe who were
bent to deftroy all Virtue and Religion. I fay be-
fides that, there is another Anfwer, whichI am for-
ry has fo much weight init: Could any Man have
believed that Oates fhould dare fo impudently to
fear a Falthood, and that in a Caufe where Life
was concern’d 3 and the Man hang’d upon his Te-
ftimony? To what purpofe then fhould his Rela-
tions interpofe to difprove Oates, after his Death ?
That would not revive him. But you find there
was an Inclination that way; and I with to God,
with all my heart, it had raken effect: For what
fays the old Gentlewoman? As foon as fhe heard
what Mr. Oates had fworn, which fhe knew to be
falfe, immediately fhe difpatch’d an Expre{s to Lsa-
donr 3 and lenta Peticion to the King, That either Ire-
land might bave a new Trial, or bis fxecution might be
repriev’d, Hilibey brought up fuch IWitneffes, as wwould
bave made it apparent, and as clear as the Light, that
what this Fellow bad 1efiified, was nolorioufly falle.
But fuch, fuch, I muft fay, was the Mistortune of
the Time we were in, that {topp’d the Fountain of
Mercy 1t felf, from letting forth its wonted Streams ;
and even compell’d that compaflionate Prince, ra-
ther than he would give any difturbance (o his Peo-
ple, to permit that Execution againlt his own Incli-
natton ; becaufe there wasa Verdict, and Judgment
in the Cafe,  For as he was really the Fountain of
Jultice, fo was he of Mercy too, And it is well
known to thofe that had cthe happinefs to be near
his Perlon, how ofi he exprefied his Concern for ha-
ving confented to this Execution.  And this conti-
nued wich him even to his dying Day, as the bufi-
nefs of my Lord of Strajford did with his Royal
Father.

And, Gentlemen, I chofe to mention this Paflage
concerning his Jate Majelty, for this reafon, That
when we live in {uch rumulions T1imes, when
things are put o hard upon Princes, as to compel
them to referain their Mercy, where they chink it due,
racher than fcem to ftop the Current of Juftice ; this
fhould not be remember'd with any Refle@ion upon
taem, bur with Infamy to thof that are the Caufes
and Grounds of it: When fuch prodigious Wretches,
as Qates and Bedloe, for there appears no Evidence
before you, bur of thofe two proflizate Villains,
who came cut of Goals, and after having been
gutlty of Villanies almoft of all forts that ever
were commited, came to be fanétified by commit-
ting more 5 and were theretore call’d, The Saviours
of the Nation,

Gentlemen, The next Obje&ion that is made a-
gainlt the Evidence for the King, is, That Lhey are
all Papifts 5 who defign notbiig but to defiroy the Go-
vernizeit, aid ruin the Protoflant Religion,  And
this muft be taken to be the whole Defign of all
thefe Perfons of Quality, and others, that they
come to forfwear themfelves, and damn their Souls
to all Eternity, on purpofe only todeftroy Innocent,
ljrotel’t_ant Mr. Oates. Alack-a-day! When at the
fame time, I muft rell you, if it were neceffary,
you have about feven or e'ght Proteflant Wirnefles

of the Church of Eagland, that confirm the Tefti- -

mony of the reft : Not that we muft think, or ought
;g have any tuch Conception among us, bur that
omai Catholicks in point of Law, are good Wit-

ncﬂ’fs > and are to be credited as much asany other
Vor, IV,

Witnefles whatfoever, unlefs there be fome Objec-
tton made to them ; which would be the fame a-
gainft a Proteftant as a Papift: For there remains
4 Right in them, and they ought to have equal
Credit given to their Teftimony, with thofe of any
other Perfuafion, if a regular Objeétion be not ftar-
ted againft them. And fure I am, that has been
always the Law 5 and fhall be my Practice, while
I have any thing to do with the Adminiftration of
Juftice, Liec the Sober Party, as they call them-
felves, make what RefleGtions they pleafe upon ir,
or trouble themielves as they will about it, I value
them not, nor their Opinion: Let them fend as ma-
ny Penny-Poft Letters and, Libels as they have a
mind to do; two of which I received laft Nigh,
about yefterday’s Trial. This Iam fure of, Ly-
ing 1s as much the Talent and Inclination of a Pref-
byterian, asever it can be of a Papift: Nay, more;
for it isas infeparably incident toa Prefbyterian (and
tuch {niveling, whining, canting Knaves) to lye,
as to fpeak. They can nomore forbear Lying than
they can forbear Speaking ; for generally, as often
as they do the one, they do the other.

Befides, I muft obferve to you, with what Cau-
tion, Care, and Sobriety, both of Expreffion and
Action, all thefe Gentlemen and Women have de-
livered their Teftimony, with the greateft Tender-
nefsand Care that poflibly could be: And as well
as they have given 1t with Caution, fo I cannot bur
put 1t home to ycu, Gentlemen at the Bar, to give
it 1ts due Confideration,

For tho the other Juries did believe Oates, and
not them at that time; yer that is not to be your
‘Mealure, becaufe you have not the fame Reafon io
do 1.  Could any Perfon think, that there thould
be fuch Villains upon Earth, asimpudently to fear
downright Treafon againft their Fellow-Subjeéts, if
there were no Fruth in the Accufation? That was the
thing that gnided thofe Juries, who wereall of them,
no doubt, very honeft Men ; and that was it, which
influenc’d the Parliament to do what they did in the

.matter.  For it wasmorally impoffible to be thoughr,

any luch Wickednefs could be fo publickly attemp-
ted.

But, God be thanked, the Eyes of all honeft and
underftanding Men are opened. And we fee the
fault was in our Credulity; and that thefe were
Fellows fhould not have been believed : And it con-
cerns us, when the Truth has been fo debauch’d,

and our Credulity fo impofed upon, to fhew the
World our juft Refentment thereof.

And this [ fay to you, Gentlemen, witha pur-
pole to vindicate thofe Perfons who were concern’d
as Jurors, inthe Trials of all thole Caufes 3 becaufe
that 1s the thing much harp’d upon, and aim’d ar:
T'hat becauie he was believ’d before, to difbelieve
himnow, would calt a Reflection upon the Juries;
whereas, 1if that Opinion hold, never will there bz
any {uch thing as Perjury detefted, {o long as the
Sun and Moon endure: For if a Verdit be obtain’d
upon falfe Teftimony, and it fhall be enough for
the Winefs to fay, I was believ’d at fuch a Trial, and
therefore do not you offer to profecute me for Per-
jury : That would be the fineft Doctrine that could
be taught, to give a Licence to deftroy all Truths,
Jultice, and human Society.

Therefore [ leave it home vpon you: Upon your
Confciences be it 3 for, in the prefence of the Great

God of Heavenand Earth, that fees all our Hearts,
and will judge us for our inward Thoughts at the

lalt Day, Liberavi animam meam. f you can find
all thefe Perfons (in number forty-feven) guilty of
O 2 wilful,
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wilful, downright, malicious, and corrupt Perjury,
then you muft acquit the Defendant. _

For the Particulars of the Evidence, whzch a-
bound in many material Circomftances in point of
Time and Place, I fhall run chem over as fhort as |
can, and remind you of them ; not becaufe I think
it extraordinary neceflary, as tho’ there were the
lealt doubt of the Fa&, but for the Satisfation of
all] Mankind, thar are not under invincible Prejuﬁ-
dice agnft the Truth. And I am fure, upon yef-
terday’s Bufinefs there remain’d not any doubt with
any that heard it, fave one, who I know had a great
fhare in the Defign, that was at the bottom of it s
and I doubt, was one of thofe Perfons that fet chis
Villain on work: his Name may be conceal’d for
the prefent, but a few days will difcover it here, or
in {fome other place,

Gentlemen, what Mr Attorney, or Mr Solligi-
tor-General, orany of the King’s Counfel have faid,
or what the Defendant has faid for himfelf, if not
proved, and made plain by Evidence, isto be no
Guidance at all to you, who are only to go accor-
ding to the Teftimony given to you ; for that ispur-
fuant to your Oath, which Oath isthe Rule of your
Eoquiry.

The Witnefles that prove, that he did fivear
fo in both the Points in the Indictments I need
not mention, they were fo full: They tell you he
fwore, that Ireland was in Town from the Sth to
the 12th of Augaff: but becaufe he fixed upon the
oth at firlt, there was Caution given him, Be nof fo
precifeto a Day, confider with your felf. Then comes
he to- ftab the Bufinefs to the quick, and to rivet it
home: If I cannot be pofitive to the Sth, T will be
pofitive between the 8th and 12th.  And as to the
other Point, Ididobferve before that, becaufe Bed-
loe wasat a ftand, upon Ireland’s denying his being
in Town the latter end of Auguff, or the beginning
of September, therefore comes Oates up again, ro fix
it home ; and, fays he, I am fure he was in Town
the 1ft or 2d of Seprember, becaufe he gave me
twenty Shillings.  Thathe fwore this, isteftified by
three Gentlemen who were Jury-men at thofe Trials,

Now, that this is notorioufly falfe, falfe to a tit-
tle; and, and as Mr. Sollicitor does obferve, not the
leaft time left to give any fort of countenance to
what he fwore, is thus made out to you.

Firft, you are to take notice, that upon the ad
of Auguft, being Saturday, it is fworn by three or
four Witnefles, that he went out of Town; and
this is not fworn as Mr. Oates save his Evidence po-
fitively withour Circumftances, but they give you
an account how they remember jt; becaule upon
the WWediefday before, which was a publick Day of
Note among them, and always kept as a Feftival
1 memory of St. Jinatius, upon the laft day of Fuly,
as both they and Mr. Oates himfelf do affirm,
there went Mr, freland, Mrs. Aune Ireland, and
their Mother out of Town to a Friend’s Houfe to

dinner,  Mrs, freland did defire him to ftay there
all night, as the did. No, fays he, 1 cannot ftay
all night, becaufe I muft go out of Town on Satnr
day, and 1 muft provide things neceffary for my
Journey : Nay, that is not all 5 for it coes yet fur-
ther,  Says his Sifter unto him, Why do you begin
your Journey on a Saturday? Thatis an Improper
Day.  Oh! fays he, I do it, becaufe I am thar
Night to go 10 my Lord 4ffer’s Houfe in Hers.
Jordfbire 5 where [ am to meet with Sir Fobu-South-
¢odf, and g6 down with them into the Country :
This does the Mother fwear, and the Sifter. And

then the Maid-Servant, and the Taylor’s Wife, do

from pight to night, tothe 17th, and from
to the 20th,
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give you another Token, that it was Saturday the
a2d of Augnft, becaufe'he had fomething to be men-
ded in his Clothes, and ftaid for them s and he was
to go out of Town, for he had his Boots on. |
There 15 yer this Circumftance further, wherein
thofe four do ail agree, That as he went out of

Town the 3d of Auguff, fo he did not return till

the 14th of September 5 for they fay it was the §a-
turday Fortnight before Michaelnas, and the fame

Day of the Week that Michaelmas-day was of. So
that you will find, that thereis a conftant lfroof,
and as plain 2 one as any poflibly can be in the
world, asto the time of his going out and coming
home, And where he was in the mean time, proved
directly by a great Company of Witnefies, except
one Day. For you fee, the 2d of Auguft he went
to my Lord Aflan’s at Standeiz : Several there are
that faw him there the 4th, and dined with him
there 3 particularly, Sir Edward Southcoat.  And
to fhew that 1t is not a thing they are pofitive in,
and {wear it roundly without Confideration, they give
you an account of the Reafons of their Knowledge,
Youare toconfider allo the Teftimony given by my
Lord Afton, a Perfon of great Honour and Quality
Says he, tho’ I dare venture all I am worth in the
World upon the Truth of it, that Ireland did go a-
long with me allthe Journey : vyer, becaule I did not
take fuch particular notice of the reft of the tine as
I did of thole two Days, I will not take upon me
to {wear it. It Mr. Oates had had the fortieth part
of that Caution in his Evidence, I dare fay, vou
had not had the trouble of this Day’s Trial.

The Fifth, you havea grear many Witneffes
who give you an account that he came on Monday
night to 8. Albans with my Lord Affony there is
Sit Edward Southeoat, Mr, Fobu Southeoat, my Lord
Aftonn, the Coachman, and all the Servants. Sjr
Edward tells you, that Monday was a hot Day,
and my Lord Affon took him into his Coach ; but
e rode a horfeback all the reft of the way, and had
a fine going Horfe, which Horfe Mr, Fobs Soutb.
cont bought of him when the whole Journey was
ended. “Lhey tell you likewife, upon the 6¢h and
7th Days, the very Inns they lodged ar upon the
Road ; and particolarly at Northampton, they lay at
the George, which was Sir [Filliam Farmer's Houle,
which was then let to an Inn-Keeper, becaufe of the
Fire in that Town, And, which is moft material
of all, for Mr. Oates’s Satisfaltion, you have for
thefe times no lels than four Witneffes, that are Pro-
teftants of the Church of England, who give you the
fame account. Thereare inall no lefs in number than
fourteen to this Point 3 and whether you will believe
thofe fourteen to be wilfully perjured, withour E-
vidence to the contrary, is left to you ; and if they
do {wear true, Oates that was yelterday found perju-
red, muft be convi@ted of Perjury again to-day: For
i fhort, the Queltion is, Whether you will believe
Perfons of Credit, that have no ftain upon their Re.

putation, or Oates, that upon plain Evidence . ag

found guiley of Perjury yefterday.
When we come to Zixball, we have no lefs num-
er that teftify where he was from day to day, and
the 17th
You have fifteen Witnefles more, all

as dire¢t and politive, as can be in the World,
Iwearing where he was from time time. Jr feems
he came to Tixhallon Thurflay the $th ; there he ftaid
till Tourfday tollowing, and then he went ;o Holy-
Well : he lay the firlt Nightat Nantwich 5 the next
Nightat Holy-17ell, at the Sign of the Sta-. 2 noto.
rious Inn there ; he came to Cheffer on Thurfday,

and
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and fome of the Company left him there, ‘but o-
thers:came :back wich him to Tixball ; who fay, he
went away oil Saturday Morning, which happens
to'be thea7th. :And thus you havea full account
of him, quite from the 3d :to the 17th, beyond all
controverfy, plainly proved by Perfons of un-
doubted Credir. And if he were, where they fay
he was, from the 3d to the 17th, how -cpuld Om‘_es
{wear true, that he took his leave of him here in
Town, between the 8th and 12th ?

Now let us come from the 17th tothe 26th, and
you have no lefs than Gfteen Witnefles, four where-
of .are Proteftants ; which I urge not as a neceffary
‘Qualification to be a Witnels, ‘but to anfwer Oates’s
Objeétion, ‘as tho’ this was a Popifh Defign to de-
ftroy him, They have given you anaccount where
he was from time to time, by convincing Circum-
ftances, which you have heard 5 particalarly of one
Day that he went to Litchfeld 5 one of the Wit-
neffes went with him, and a Proteftant Witnefs too,
that came back with him again, and fupp’d wich
him at her Father’s Houfe. ‘The Apothecary tells
you, the Day that he faw him wasa Wake-day,
which is a remarkable Time inthe Contry. You
are told of the Funeral of one Woman’s Mother,
that made her ftay away from Moaday till Thurf-
day : of another Man’s Child. I mention them bug
fhortly to you, becaufe I know you have taken
Notes of them, and they are only uled as Inftances
to manifeft che Integrity of the Witnefles, thatthis
was not a thing contrived on.purpofe to make a
Story of, but did really happen in the Order they

tell i.  And I muft remember youof another Cir-
cumftance fome of them do {wear, that whereas
Oates had 2 mind to evade their Teftimony by that
Queftion ; whether this was the fame Ireland that
was tried? It was moft certainly he; for chat is
made too evidently to appear, by their leeing him
executed at Tyburn, I am{orry to fay, innocently,

From the third of Auguft to the twenty-fixth,
there s not one Night, but you hear where he was:
And from the twenty-fixth of Axguff to the {eventh
of September, you hear where he was, at the Horlfe-
match, upon the Bowling-green, at Mr. Heve;zfﬁg-
baw’s, Mr, Lowe's, Mr, Gerrard’s, Mrs. Cronp-
low's, Mr. Pendrel’s Mr. Gifford’s, and Mrs, Har-
well's: And from the feventh to the fourteenth,
[ave only one day, viz, the eighth, you have a
particular Account too; and it does not appear by
a rambhing Lividence, bur a faithful Account is
given of all the Time, fave that eighth day 3 which
fhews the Caution of the Witneffes,  And it cannot
but be ealily prefumed, he was either at Tixball, or
thereabouts; becaufe he was at Wolverbampion the
feventh coming to Loadon the ninth, How cafy is
it to imagine him there the eighth ; and the rather,
becaufe where he was the eighth, is not material to
the Point in queftion before you, but where he was
the firft and fecond ?
 And, Gentlemen, if in cafe you had 2 mind to
Imagine, he was the eighth at London, it muft be
by a ftrained Imagination : for you muft take him
to be at W olverbampton the feventh, and make him
ride poft to Loadon that Night, and return poft
from London the eighth to Tixhall, to be ready
there early in the Morning upon the ninth, or take
fqur days Joutrney back again; or elfe you cannot
give the lealt countenance to any other Imagina-
tion, but that he was about Tixhall the eighth of
September,

Well, at Tixhall you have him the

th of Sep-
tember 5 and from thence, 4 ,

you have it teftified by
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all the Perfons that came along with him all the
‘'way, that he lay-one Night at.Coventry, another at
Banbury, a third av Agmondefbam : That he baited
at -Uxbridee the fourth, which was the 12th of Sep-
tember 3 and «came to Sir Fobu Sonthcoat’s Houle
that Nighe, being Tourfday.  He ftaid there Thur/-

day Night, and Friday ; and upon Saturday the

14th of September, Sir Fobn Sontheoat’s Man went

along with him to Loudon, whither he rode upon
the Horfe he fold Mr. Southeoat : the Man faw -him

at his Lodging 3 and he fays, they wondered when

he came n, that ‘he had ftaid fo long,
And when we return to the four Witneffes they
begun with at firlt, who make all this Teftimony to

ftand well together 5 that he went away the 3d of

Aungufi, and was never in Town till the 14th of Sz-
lember 5 and every day, but the 8th of September,
which makes nothing to the bufinefs, is particular-
ly fpoketo: and he mult be there that day too,
except you will put hini upon very hard Service, to
ride -poft to Londen and back again, in twenty-four
Hours ; for no other reafon, but only to commit a
Treafon, that none -everifound our, but Mr. QOates.
And, I am fure, 1f he did, he took a great deal of
pains, to a very little purpofe.

Gentlemen, [ have taken up much of your Time,
and detained you the longer in this matter, becaofe
I cannot but fay, with grief of heart, our Nation
was too long beforted ; and of innocent Biood
there has been too much {pile, ’tis high time to have
fome account of it, *T'is a Mercy we ought to blefs
Almighty God for, that we are prevented from
fpilling more innocent Blood! God be blefled, our
Eyes are opened; and let us have a care for the
future, that we be not fo fuddenly impoled upon by
fuch Prejudices and Jealoufies, as we have reafon to
fear, fuch Villains have too much fil’d our heads
with of late.

Gentlemen, ‘tis Incumbent upon you to try, ac-
cording; to the Evidence that has been given, whe-
ther the Defendant be Guilty, or Not Guilty.
And ’tis incumbent upon us that fit here as Judges,
to fee the Law executed, aswe will an{wer it at the
Tribunal of the great Judge of Heaven and Earth;
before whom we muft appear, and receive our
‘Trials at the Great Day.  And God forbid, but we
fhould ufe our urmoft Endeavours, to inifli&t the

- greateft Vengeance, that the Juftice of the Nation

can permit us to 1nflict upon fuch Villains as thele
are 3 that have contralted fo much Mifchief and
Reproach upon us, and {o much Guilt upon them-
felves.

Gentlemen, I am forry, I fay, I have kept you
foJong. ’Tis a Cafe of fuch Importance, that I
could not but fay what I have done it in. There
may be other Circumttances arifing from the Evi-
dence, which I may have omitted ; but were very
largely and fully {poken to by Mr. Sollicitor.
Whatfoever has been forgotten by him, or by me,
Iam fure, will be fufficiently {fupplied by your own
Obfervations; for I know youto be Gentlemen of
great Knowledge and Experience in Matters of this
nature,

Then the Fury withdrew, 1o confider of their Ver-
dift 5 and, after half an Hour’s Recefs, returiw'd
to the Bar; and, aufwering to their Names, de-
liver'd in their Verdiél, That the Defendant was
guilty of the Perjury whereof be flood indicTed :
Which being recorded, the Lord Chief Fuftice
[poke to the Gentlemen of the Jury to this effell.

L.C. ¥. Look ye, Gentlemen, becaufe there has

been fome notice taken to-day, asthere was yefter-
' day,
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day, concerning the Opinions of Judges, about
Verdi@s that have been given, I would fay a
word or two to you: not that I much admire the
doing of it, atany time; nor would I do 1t now,
for your fakes; becaofe, ITam fure, you at accor-
ding to your Confcicrices, and affect not Commen-
dation. But becaufe it may be neceflary, for the
Satisfaction of fome People, that they thould know
our Opinions alfo in this matter ;3 1 muft tell you,
you have given a Virde&, that becomes your Ho-
. nefty, Integrity, and Loyalty. And I declare, in
the prefence of Almighty God, the Searcher of
Hearts, that had I been of the Jury, 1 mult have
given the fame Verdi&t, Gentlemen, ’tis an honeft
and juft Verdiét, that you have given; and_ by 1,
you have contributed, as much as in you lies, to
vindicare the Nation from the Infamy it has {o long
lain under. |

Mr. Juft. Withius. For my part, I think, 1f you
had given any other Verdict, you had found a-
aainft plain Demonltration ; the Evidence was {0
tull and clear, |

Mr. Jult, Hollsway. The Court is very well fa-
tisfied with the Verdi&t; and you have acquitted
yourfelves like worthy, honeflt Gentlemen. |

Mr. Juft. #alcot. There 1s nothing can be faid
to the Verdiét, bur that it s a juflt Verdit, and
according to the Evidence,

[ And then the Conrt arofe,

Die Lunce, 11 Mazt, 1083,

HIS Day Mr. W7allop moved, that in regard

the Court was pleas’d to give the Defendant
time, ull Safurday next, to move in Arreft of
Judgment, upon the Conviction on Friday lalt ;
they would pleafe to give to the fame day, to move
in Arreft of Judgment, upon the Conviétion on Sa-
turaay: which the Court granted. Bur afterwards,
upon the Motion of Mr. Attorney-General, they
order’d, thata Note of the Exceptions to both In-
diétments, fhould be fent to the King’s Counfel,

fome days before Salurday.

Die Sabbati, 16 Maii, 1685,

T HIS Day being appointed for the Defendant
i to move what he could in Arreft of Judg-
ment, upon the two Convictions of Perjury; he
was brought by Rule from the Prifon, to the
King’s- Benel Court,

L.C.}. Mr. Auorney-General, have you any
thing to move?

Mr, 4. Gen, My Lord, I pray your Judgment
upon Oates, who is conviéted upon two [nditments,
tor two notorious Perjuries.

L.C. 7. Who is Counle] for Qates?

Mr. A1, Gen. Mr. Fallsp moved for him.

L. C. 7. What is it that Mr, Wallop has to fay.

Oates. My Lord, 1 defire 1 may {peak one Word.
It was Thurfday Night before my Attorney could
make an end of examing the Records; Sir
Samuel Aflry Lnows it very well: Then I fent the
Rule to thofe Gentlemen that were affign’d to be
my Counfel ; and the Exceptions were deliver’d
in but yefterday., I pray I may have a Day or
two more, that my Counfel may be prepared to ar-
cue for me,

L.C. 7. We cannot do that; we gave you be-

yond the ordinary Rules, in extending it till to-
day. '
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Mr. At Gen. My Lord, he talks of examining
the Records ; he had Copies of them all this long
Vacation,

Ouates. My Lord, my Attorney will be ready to
make Oath, that he finifh’d the examining buton
Thurfday Night.

L.C.F¥. Wedo all know they were pleaded to
the laft Term; and you have had all this Vacation,
to confider of them : And we have indulg’d you be-
yond the ordmary Time,

Ouates. My Lord, Idefire buta day or two more,

L.C.F. No, we cannot do 1t; we have done
more already than we ordinarily do. Perfons that
are convicted, ufe to have but four Days allow’d

them to move in Arreft of Judgment; but you,
inftead of having but four Days after, had cight,

Qates. It your Lordfhip pleafts to give me time
till Mosnday.

L.C. 7 Itell you, we cannot doit. If Mr,
Wallop have any thing to fay for you, we'll hear
lim.

Mr., Walisp. 1 have nothing to {ay.

Mr. A4t Gen. Here are four Excepuons deliver'd
to me laft Night, as made by Mr. Wallop.

L.C.¥. But he fays he has nothing to fay. We
know not whole thefe Exceptions are,

Qates. 1 do deliver in thofe Exceptions, my
Lord; pray let them be read.

L.C-F. Read them, Sir Samnel Afry.

Cl.of Cr. Reads. Domints Rex verfus Qates, The
Defendant’s Exceptions.

I. That 2 Witnefs {worn in the behalf of the
King in a Procefs of High-Treafon, cannot be pu-
nilvd for Perjury by the King,

I, That it does not appear, that the Indiét-
ments of freland, &c. found in Aiddicfex, were le-
gally tranfmitted into Lowdon ; and conlequently,
all the Proceedings thereupon were coram non Fudice,

[II, That the Perjuries affign’d, are in Matters
foreign to the Ifue,

1V. Itis Refolutio Signat’ in that part of the In-
ditment, that mentions what the Defendant {wore s
and 1n the Peryury aflign’d, ’tis Refolutio Signand® ;
and 1t 1s no good Aflignment of the Perjury,

Mr. Jult. Withins, Thefe are doughty Excep-

tions indeed,

L.C. 7. Mr Atorney, what fay you unto
them !

Mr. 41, Gen, Truly, my Lord, 1 think I need
not fay much to them, The firft Exception is 2
plain Miftake of the Indi@ment: For had Mr.
Oaies been indicted upon the Statute, it had been
fomething ; but at the Common Law, certainly he
may be profecuted by the King, tho’ he was Wit-
nefs for the King before. Asto the {econd, that it
does not appear frzland’s Indiment was well tran-
mitted from Aiddlefex to London  thar, fure, is
well enough : For after it isrecited, that they were
fo and fo indicted, it does fet forth, that the Trials
were had upon Records there depending before the
Commuflioners of Over and Terminer, and Goal-
delivery 5 and it fhall be taken, that they were well
brought before them. As to the third Exception,
that the Perjuries affign’d are foreign to the Marter
in Iflue; that is not fo: For it is apparent, one of
the Indictments is in the exprefs Point of the great
Treafon charg’d againft chem, that is, the Confult
of the 24th of April.  And asto the fecond Indict-
ment 1t appear’d upon the Evidence, that there
was at treafonable Meeting fworn in Augnft 5 and he
Iwore Ireland was here in Town in the beginning of

Anguft,
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Auguft, and in the beginning of Seplember. And
then for the fourth matter, that he fwore he faw
them fign its and the Perjury afligned is, that he
did not carry it to be figned 5. that recetves a plain
Anfwer: For we alledge, he fallely and corruptly
{wore that he was prefent, and that he carried the
Refolution to be fign’d, and he faw them fign the
Refolution. Now, in thefe two things we have laid
the Perjury 3 1. We fay he was not there:: And, 2.
e carried no fuch Refolution to be fign’d. Indeed,
we do not fay that he did not fee it fign’d, nor we
need not ; for if he were not there, nor did carry 1,
he could not fee them fign it, There 1s nothing 1n

the [xceptions, my Lord; and therefore, 1 pray
your Judgment.

L.C.7. Is there any body of Counfel for Mr.

Oates, that will fay any thing to thefe Iixceptions?
Oates. 1 pray, my Lord, that I may have liberty

but till Monday, for my Counfel to prepare.

L. ¥.C. No, we cannot do it: Indeed, if there
had been any colour, or weight in the Exceptions,
ic might have been fomething ; tho’ we have in-
dulg’d in this cafe already, more than ever we ufed
 to do in Cales of this Nature ; for it 1s known to

every body, that knows any thing of the Courfe and
Practice of the Court, that after Conviélion, no
mote than four Days are allow’d, to move in Arreft
of Judgment. And being the Practiceof the Court,
it is the Law of the Court; and I am {urg, as little
Favour ought to be thewn in a Cafe of Perjury, as
in any Cafe whatfoever: But yet, however, becaufe
he thould not think that the Extremity of the Law
was aimed ac by the Court in this Cafe, and he hin-
der’d 1n his legal Defence, the Court did indulge
him more time than is ufually granted in fuch Cafes.
Now, as for the Exceptions, certainly chey are very
frivolous.

For the Firff, It would be admirable Dottrine
indeed, in cafe it fhould obtain, that if a Man be
a Witnefs 1n any Calfe for the King, and forfwear
him{clf, he fhould not be profecuted for Perjury
at the King’s Suit: For we know that no Man can
be profecuted for his Life, (except it be in Cafes of
Appeal) but at the Suit of the King; and to be
fure, all Profecutions for Treafon muft be at his
Sutt, If then Witnefles come and forfwear them-
felves, to take away Men’s Lives, and they fhould
not be called in queftion for it, criminally, by the
King; that were a fine Way to fantify the greateft
Villainy, and make the Procels of Law to become
an Inflrument of the moft infamous Cruelty in the
World, I prefume, no Gentleman ar the Bar
would think that an Exception fit to put his Hand
to.
Then as to the Second, That the Perjury is not
" affigned in Points material to the Iffue, that is
plainly otherwife 5 for the time mufl needs be very
material, becaufe it was impoffible that Mr. Treland
could be guilty of the Treafon fworn againft him,
at his Chamber in Ruffel-fireet, between the 8th
and 12th of Awguft, if he were not in Town be-
tween the 8th and 12th of Augnff: Nor could he
be privy to the Treafon fworn by Bedloe the latter
end of Anguf, or the beginning of September, in
Harconr’s Chamber, if he were our of Town from
the 3d of Auguft till the r4th of September 3y and
therefore both thole Perjuries were in the very Points
in [fiue,

And then for the 24th of April, which is the
main Perjury of all 5 it is not laid in this Indiétment,
that there was no Confult of the Jefuits upon thac
Day : nor is there any notice taken, that there was
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no Confult at the While-Horfe Tavers 3 but it {ays
only, that Oales did fwear, there was a Confult
there, and that he was prefent at 1ty and that he
faw the Refolution written down by Mico, if 1 do
not mifremember the Name: And that upon the
24th of April, he went with it from Chamber to
Chamber, to have them fign 1. And then comes
the Indi¢tment, and afligns the Perjury, Ubi revera
he was not at the #White-Horfe Tavern that Day ;

and 1 think it is pretty plain he was not, for he was

then at §¢. Omerss
Then admutting all that Matter about the figning

of the Refolution, o be out of Doors, a phin
Perjury is aflign’d and prov’d. For it was moft pro-

per for them to lay it as they did ; ard fo it was in
the other Point too, he fwore he carried the Relolu-

tion from Chamber to Chamber, and faw it figned.
Now, {ay they, he did not carry it from Chamber
to Chamber, to be figned ; and if fo, then he could
not fee it figned ; and it will all be well enough fure.
And if any one part of the Oath he fwore proves
falfe, that is fufficient to maintain this Verdiét ; and
’t1is notorioufly plain, it was falfe throughout.

And of this Matter he now ftands convicted,
upon as full and plain an Evidence as ever was given
in any Cafe in the World ; and I am forry to think
that any Man, who 1s guilty of fuch an Offence,
fhould continue fo obftinate and hardened in Villany
as he appears to be.

But [ think it not amifs for me to fay fomething
upon this occafion, for the Satisfaétion of fome that
hear me ; and for an Example for the future. The
Crime whereof this Man ftands conviéted, is cer-
tainly a very heinous one, attended with fuch dif-
mal Confequences that enfued upon 1t, that I think
no Man can have a true Chriltian Spirit in him, but
he muft begin to melt with the Confideration of the
great Mifchiefs his Perjury has brought upon him-
felf and us: It has brought the Guilt of innocent
Blood upon many ; to be {ure it hath up his own
Head, and I pray God deliver all Men from having
any hand in innocent Blood.

And as the Crime is great, fo it is to be known,
that a proportionable Punithment of that Crime
can {carce by our Law, as it now ftands, be in-
flicted upon him. But that you may fee we have
confidered how to punifh it, as fuch a Crime does
deferve; we have confulted with all the Judges of
England, that if the Law would allow it, he might
have fuch a Judgment for this heinous Offence, as
might be proper to terrify all others from commit-
ting the likeagain, For Punifhment is not intended
only for the fake of the Offender, to reward him
according to his Deferts 3 bur it has a Profpet alfo
of Example and Terror to all others, that they
fhould take care how they offend in any fuch man-
ner, and that is as confiderable a Part of the End of
the Law as any other.

Gentlemen, it is known, that by the old Laws
of England Perjury was punifthed with Death; it
grew a little more moderate a‘terwards, nor to
make the Crime the lefs, but becaufe of the Danger
there mighe be of Malice of fome revengeful Per-
fons, by endeavouring by Perjury to convict others

of Perjury. But the next Step was cutting out of
the Tongue, to thew thac the Law in all Ages had

an Abhorrency of falfe Oaths, and punifhed that
impious Crime of Perjury with the moft terrible
Punifhments.

Since that time our Anceftors have vet been
more moderate, and have not extended the Judg-

ment to Life and Member ; but by the unanimous
5 Opinion




vo1  134. The Trial of Titus Oates, D.D. Pafchix 1 Jac. 11

Opinion of ail the Judges of England, whom we
purpofzly confulted with upon this Occafion, 1t 18
conceived, that by the Law, Crimes of this nature

are left to be punifhed according to the Difcretion Y

of this Court, fo far as that the Judgment extend
not to Life or Member.

And | tell you this, Gentlemen, the rather, be-
caule I obferve our Law-Booksare more filent here,
in regard che Judgments for thefe Offences are not
{o folemnly and particularly entered up, ﬂs*fhﬂ‘}'
are in Cafes Capiral : Buc they are left more difcre-
tionary ; becaufe thar Crimes of this Nature may be
atrended with particular Circomftances either to ag-
gravate, or leflen the Punifhment: And therefore
the Punithment might be diftributed accordingly.

And for that reafon, Gentlemen, 1t 1s well
known to us ali, that chat was the occafion of raking
away the Court of Star-Chamber, as the Preamble
of the A& for raking it away does manifeft ; That
mafmuch as the Authority, for the Corretion of
all Offences whatfoever, was by the common Law
of this Land originally fixed in the Court of King’s-
Beneh 5 and the Proceeding by Information in the
Star-Chamber, when it might be by Procels in this
Court, was look’d upon as a double Way of Vexa-
tion ; therefore that Court is abolifhed, and the
Authority of the Kiug’s-Bench Court lefe entire,
And it 1s notorioufly known, how Punifhments, of
all forts and kinds, were infli¢ted by the Court of
Star-Chamber for Perjury, and fuch like Offences,
while that Court was up 3 and fince that time, in
Fox’s Cale and others that you have heard of, it has
been according to the Difcretion of this Courrt,
punithed, as feverely as this Court thought fir, fo
as the Sentence did not excend to Life or Member,

Now I thought it proper for me, not only for
the fake of the Cafe now before us; but alfo for
your Learning fake, to tefl you, this was the Re-
folution of all the Judges of England, upon Con-
fideration of the Precedents, and of all the Rules
of Law; which have been fully debated, and con-
{idered of : And this, I declare, is their unanimous
Opinton,

If then this be fo, and it is left to the Difcretion
of the Court to nflict fuch Punilhment as they
think fit ; far be it from this Court at any time, as
on the one fide to infli¢t Punithment heavier than
the Crimes deferve, (no, we would rather ufe Com-
miferation, than extraordinary and exorbitant Se-
verity ;) fo, on the other fide, to let go Crimes fo
notorious and hemnous as thefe, without the fevereft
Mark that can, by Law, be put upon them. When
a Perfon fhall be convi¢ted of fuch a foul and ma-
Jicious Perjury, as the Defendant here is, I think it
s impoffible for this Court, as the Law now ftands,
to put a Punifhment upon him any way propor-
tionable to the Offence, that has drawn after it fo
many horrid and dreadful Confequences: We do
therefore think fit to infli&t an exemplary Punith-
ment upon this villainous perjur’d Wretch, to terrify
others for the future 3 which is not my part to pro-
nounce : But whar 1t 1s, my Brother will tell you.

Mr. At. Gen. My Lord, you will be pleafed to
remember there are two Judgments,

L.C.§. There are fo, we know it very well,
Mr. Atorney.

Mr. At.Gen. That which was tried firft, was about
the Confult abour the 24th of April; we defire that

fome particular Mark may be fet upon that Day.

Then th: Justges confulted a little together, and M,
Tuftice \Withins prononnced the Semtence thus:

Mr, Jult, #thins, Titus Oales, you are convic-
ted upon two Indi@ments for Perjury s 1 fay, for
Perjury : I muft repeac the Word twice, becaufe
ou are donbly convitted. One of the grearft
Offences, that our Law has cognizance of 3 ’tis fo
in its own Nature: But your Perjury has all the
Aggravations that can be thought of to heighten
ir. If a Man kills another with his Sword, and
there be forethought Malice in the Cafe, he 1s to be
hang’d for it: But when a Man fhall draw innocent
Biood upon himfelf by a malicious, premeditated,
falfe Oath, there is not only Blood in the Cafe, buc
likewife Perjury, corrupt, malicious Perjury: I
know not how I can fay, but that the Law i1s de-
fetive that fuch a one is not to be hang’d.  For,if
we confider thofe dreadful Effefts which have fol-
Jowed upon your Perjury, we muft conclude our
Law defective; they are fuch, as no Chriftian’s
Heart can think of, without bleeding for that inno-
cent Blood which was fhed by your Oath; and
every knowing Man believes, and every honeft
Man grieves for, God be thanked, our Luyes are
now opened 5 and indeed we muft have been incura-
bly blind, if they had not been opened firlt by the
Contradictions, Improbabilities, and Impoffibilities
in your own Tettimony ; but likewife by the pofi-
tive, plain, dire&, and full Proof of forty-feven
Witneffes to one particular Point.  Againft whom
you had_not one Word ro object, but they were
Papifts and Roman Catholicks ; which is no Ob-
jection at all : tho’ at the fame time, it did appear,
that nine or ten of them were Proteftants of the
Church of England, "That was all you had to fay;
you had not one Word to juftify your felf from that
great and heinous Perjury you were acculed of, [
hope, I have not been thought a Man of ll-nature ;
and, I confefs, nothing has been fo great a Regret
to me in my Place and Station, as to give Judg-
ment, and pronounce the Sentence of Law againit
my Fellow-Subjects, my Fellow-Creatures: but as
to you, Mr, Oates, I cannot fay, my Fellow-
Chriftian,  Yer, in this Cafe, when I confider your
Offence, and the difmal Effeéts that have fol-
low’d unon i, I cannot fay, 1 have any Re.-
morfe in giving Judgment upon you. And there-
fore having told you my Thoughts fhortly about
your Crime, and how readily I pronounce your
Sentence ; [ fhall now declare the Judgment of the
Court upon you, And jt 1sthis:

Firft, The Court does order for a Fine, That
you pay 6 Thoufand Marks upon each Indiéi-
meis,

Secondly, That you be fript of all your Canonical
Habits.

Thirdly, The Court does awnrd, That yon fland
upon the Pillory, and in the Pillory, bere before
Weltminlter-Hall Gate, npon Monday next,
for an Hour’s Time, betwoeen the Hours of Ten
and Twelve s with a Paper sver youtr Head (wobich
you muft irft walk with round about 1o all the
Courts in Weltminfter-Hall) declaring  your
Crime, And that is upon the firft Indi&ment.

Fourthly, (On the fecond Inditment.) Upos
Tuelday, you fball fland upon, and in the Pil-

lory, at the Royal Exchange i» London, for
the fpace of an Hour, between the Flours of Twelv:
and Two 5 wilh the fame Infeription,

5 3oy



You fhall upon the next Wednelday Je whipp’d from
Aldgate to Newgate.

you fhall be w?.;ipp’d from New-

Friday,
Upon Lriday by the Hands of the Common

| aate 1o Tyblll‘n,
Hangman.

But, Mr. Oafes, we cannot but_remember, there
were feveral particular Times you iwore falfe about :
And therefore, as annual Commemorations, that
it may be known to all People as long as you
live, we have taken fpecial care of you for an an-

nual Punifhiment.,

Upoir the 24th of April every Year, as long as
you live, you are to flaid upon the Tillory, and
in the Pillory, at Tyburn, juft oppofite 1o the
Gallowus, for the frace of an Hour, between 1he
Hours of Ten and Twelve,

You ave to fland upon, and in the Pillory, bere af
Weltminfter-Hall Gate, every gth of Auguft,
in cvery Year, fo long as you live, And that it
may be known what we mean by 1t, ’tis to re-
member, what he fwore about Mr. Ireland’s
being in Town between the 8th and r2th of

Augufl,

You are to fand wpon, and in the Pillory, at
Charing-Crofs, on the 10th of Augult, eveiy
Year, during your Life, for ain Hour, belwcen
Ten and Tawelve,

The like over-againft the Temple Gate, upon the
1144,

i ' ﬁ;r H igh-Tl‘ eafon.
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And upon the fecond of September, (which is another
notorions Time, which you caunot but be reimem-
ber’d of ) you are to fand upon, and in the Pills-
ry, for the [pace of one Hour, between Twelve
and Two, at the Royal-Exchange : Aud all this
you are to do every Year, during your Life 5 and
to be commilted clofe Prifoner, as loug as you live,

This I pronounce to be the Judgment of the
Court upon you, for your Offences. And I muft
tell you plainly, if it had been in my power to have
cartied it further, I fhould not have been unwilling
to have given Judgment of Death upon you; for, I
am fure, you deferve It

L. C. ¥. Mr. Attorney, we will take care, that
the Clerk fhall diftinguifh the Judgments in the
Entries, [ Thes the Prifoncr was laken away,

This Sentence was afterwards executed with great
Severity 5 but immediately after the Revolution,
the Houfe of Comimons came to this Vote,

Tuefday the 11th of Fune, 168g.

Refolrd, That the Profecution of Titus Q.ates
upon two Indi€tments for Perjury in the Court of
King’s-Bench, was a defign to {Ufle the Popih Plos,
and that the Verdicts given thereupon were corrupt,
and the Judgments given thereupon were ¢rwel and
ticeal,

There was an Attempt to get this Judgment re-
vers'd, but ftill continuing his Difability asa Witnels;
but this Attempt did not {ucceed, only the Houfz
of Lords addrefs’d the King to grant him a Pardon,
which was accordingly done.  See State Trials Vol.

VIII. Pag. 455. and Vol, VII Pag. .46,

CXXXV. The Trial of the Lady Avice Lisve* ar Winton,
for High-Trealon, Aunguft 27, 1634. 1 Jac 1L

Cl.oof Ar, LICE Lifz, hold vp thy and our faid Lord the King from the Title, Ho-

Hand. {Wzich fbe did.] Thou

ftandeft here indifted by the

Name of Alice Lifls, of the
Parifh of Ellzngham, in the County of Southanp-
tonr, \Widow ;3 for that thou, as a falfe Traitor a-
gainft the molt iiluftrions and moft excellent Prince,
James the Second, by the Grace of God, of Ex-
oland, Scotland, Fraice, and Irelond King, thy
jupreme and natural Lord, the Fear of God in
thy Fleart not having, nor weighing the Duty of

nour, and Regal Name of the Imperial Crown of
this his Kingdom of England to depofe, calt down,
and deprive, and our faid Sovercign Lord the King
to Death and final Deftruction to bring and put,
the 28th Day of Fuly, in the firft Yearof the Reign
of our faid Sovercign Lord Fames the Second, by
the Grace of God of Euglond, Scotland, France,
and Jreland King, Defender of the Faith, e, at
the Parith of Eliingham aforefaid, in the County a-
forefaid, well knowing one Fobu Hicks, of Kein-

thy Allegiance 5 but being moved and feduced fbam in the County of Somerfzt, Clerk, to bea falfe

by the Inftigation of the Devil; the Love and true,
due and natural Obedience, with a true and faichful
Suoject of our fuid Lord the King, towards him
our fuid Lord the King, fhould, and of right ought
to bear, wholly withdrawing, and with all thy Might
intending  the Peace and common Tranquillity
of this Kingdom of Enuglaid to difturb, and War
nn_d Rebellion againlt our fuid Lord the King,
within this Kingdom of Eagland to ftir up and
move, and the Government of our faid Lord the
King, within this Kingdom of England to fubvert,
Vou, IV,

¥ Burr. Hift of bis own Times, Il 1. 4, 649

She avas the IVidsto 1‘!“.’)'.

Traitor, and as a falfe Trator traitorouflly to have
confpired and 1magined the Death and Deftruction
of our faid Lord the King, and War, Rebellion
and Infurreftion againft our {aid Lord the King,
within this Kingdom of Englaud traitoroully to have
levied and raifed : Thou the faid Alce Lifi alter-

wards, to wit, the fame 28th Day of Fuly in the
firft Year of the Reion of our faid Sovereign Lord

the King that now is, at the Panifh of Elifugham a-
forefuid, in the County aforefud, the faid Fobu
Hicks in thy Dwelling-Houfe, fitvate at the Parifh

P * afore-

John Lifle, «vho avas Lord Prefifent of the Hish Conrt

o - L X " “ - L - ]
‘{:if "E/?"”} i twe time of Qliver Cromwell, one of the Lerds Commifficners for the Cufledy of the Great Seal, and had been one of King

harles ¢ }'E Firf's 5 udyes ; Lut Bis Lady avas wery awerfe to it.  He avas &aﬁz} murdered &t Lovlanne fome Years before, as ie avas
going fo C burch, Z}} three [rilh Hﬁ_ﬂfm, avlo ﬂtd fmmz’d’fnfrﬁ' fnfo France, " - -
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aforefaid in the County aforefaid, fecretly, wicked-
ly and traitoroufly didft entertain, conceal, com-
fort, uphold and maintain ; and that thou the faid
Alice Lifle then and there, for the comforting, up-
holding and maintaining of the aforefaid Fobir Hicks,
Meat and Drink unto the faid Fohn Hicks then and
there malicioufly and traitoroufly didft give and de-
liver, and caufe to be given and delivered, againft
the Duty of thy Allegiance, againft the Peace of
our Sovereign Lord the King that now 1s, his Crown
and Dignity, and againft the Form of the Statute
in that Cafe made and provided. How fayelt thou,
Alrce Lifle, arc thou Guilty of the High-Treafon
contained in this Inditment, or not Guilty ?

Lifle. Not Guilty, |

Cljﬂqf Ar, C'rr{m};, by whom wilt thou be tried ¢

Lifie. By God and my Country,

Cl. of Ar. God {end thee a good Deliverance.

Then Proclamation was made for the Furors impa-
nell’d to try the Iffue between our Sovereign Lord
the King, and the Prifonci at the Bar, to appear.
And the Prifoner defiring, by reafon of her Ape
and Infirmities (being thick of hearing) fome
Frieads of ber’s might be allow'd io ffand by ber,
and inforin ber of what pafi’d in the Conrt 5 one
Matthew Brown was nasmed, and allow’d of by
the Conrt to give ber all Affiffance that be conld in
that wmaiter. Then the Nawes of the Fursrs
were coll'd over, and the Appearance recorded :
And 1t being o Caufe of preat ExpeBation and
Moment, the Lord Chief Juftice order’d the
Sterfff 10 take care, that a very fubffantiol Fury
Jhould be retirned, of the beft Quality in the County.

Then Proclamation for Information and Evidesce
wwas made in uftial manner, and the Prifower wwas
bid 1o look to her Challenges, and the Fury cwas
fworn in this Order,

Sworn, Challenged.
Gatiiel Whiftler, Efqy | Robert Barton,
Henry Dawley, Efg; Godfoir Penton,
Lraiets Morley, Elq; Willtam Taylor,
Francis Pawletr, Biq, | Thomas 17 avell,

Richard Godfrey, Lfa;
Thonas Dowgfe, Efg,
Dutton Gifford, Efg;

Authony Yalden.

Sworn,.
Foim Cager,

| Challenged.

Robert Forder,
Tbomas Lioyd,
Thomas
Swora. Philip Rudsby,
Thomas Crop,
Rickard Suatt, Sworn,
Matthew Webber,
Challenged.
Lawrence Kerby, Challenged,
FJobu Fletcher, George Priyce,
William Clarke, Stephen Steele,
Fobie Haily, Thomas Merrot,
Richard Suttoy,
Ricbard Snats, ‘ Sworn,
Robert Burgefs., Jobn Feilder.
S0 the Twelve Sworn were thefe :
Gabriel Whiftler, Dutton Giffsrd,
Henry Dawley, Jobn Cager,
Erancis Morley, , ) Lboras Crop,
Francis Pﬁrﬂffﬂ, Jur Richard Suatt,
{ E ichard Gadfiey, L Matthew FWebbe; ’
Tioinas Dazofe, Fobu Feilder.

” This Hicks was a Diffenting Minifler, and hanged afterwards at Glafinbury,

138. The Trial of the Lady Alice Lifle,

1 Jac I1,

Cl. of Ar. Alice Lifle, hold up thy Hand : Yoy
Gentlemen of the Jury that are {worn, look upon
the Prifoner and hearken to her Charge : She Stands
indifted by the Name of Alice Lifle, &5e. Upon
this Indictment fhe hath been arraigned, and upon
that Arraignment fhe has pleaded thereunto, Not
Guilty 3 and for her Trial has put her felf upon God
and the Country, which Country you are : Your
Charge 1s to inquire, whether fhe be Gu_ilty of the
High-Treafon whereof fhe is indited in manner
and form as fhe ftands indiced, or Not Guilty ; If
you find her Guilty, you are to enquire what Goods
or Chattels, Lands or Tenements, the had at the time
of the High-Treafon committed, or at any time
fince : If you find her not Guilty, you are to enquire
whether fhe did fly for it 5 if you find that fhe did
fly for it, you are to enquire what Goods or Chattels
fhe had ar the cime of the Flight, as if you had
found her Guilty. If you find her not Guilty, nor
that the did fly for it, you are to fay fo, and no
more, and hear your Evidence.

Mr. Mundy. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen that are fivorn, This is an Indié-
ment of High-Treafon againft Alice Lifle, the Pri-
foner at the Bar ; and the Indictment fets forth, thar
fhe, as a falle Traitor againft our Sovereign Lord
King Fames the Second, her fupreme and natyral
Lord, not having the Fear of God in her Hear,
nor regarding the Duty of her Allegiance, but be-
ing moved and feduced by the Inftigation of the
Devil, and withdrawing the Love and true Ohe.
dience which the owed to himas her Sovereign, and
Intending, as well as in her lay, to difturb the Peace
of the Kingdom, and to depofe the King and put
him to death, the 28th day of Fak, in the fArft
Year of this King, well knowing one Fobn Hicks, *
late of Kefiifbass in the County of Somerfet, Clerk,
to be a falfe Traitor, and to have raifed War and
Rebellion againt the King, fhe did then at Ellingham
i this County, in her Dwelling-Houfe traitorounfly
entertain, conceal, and comfort the faid Yobs Hicks,
and for his maintenance and comfort then gave him
Meat and Drink, This is laid to be agan{t the
Duty of her Allegiance, againft the Peace of the
King, his Crown and Dignity, and againft the
Form of the Statute in that Cafe made and provided :
To this fhe has pleaded Not Guilty ; if we prove
this Fact, you muft find her Guilty,

Mr. Pollexfen. May it pleafe your Lordthip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury, I am of Counfel in
this Cafe for the King, The Prifoner thar ftands
now at the Bar, Alice Lifle, is the Widow of one
Lifle, who was in his Life-time fufficiently known :
The Perfon mentioned in the IndiCtment to be
entertained and concealed by her, Fobn Hicks, is a
Conventicle-Preacher, and one, that for bringing
the traitorous Purpofes intended in this Jate horrid
Rebellion to effect, was one of the greateft and
moft active Inftraments : for he was perfonally in
this Rebellion, and did perfuade and exhorr fome
loyal Perfons, that happened to have the Misfor-
tune of being taken Prifoners by that rebellious
Crew, to quit their Duty and Allegiance to the
King their Sovercign Lord, and become Partakers
with them and the reft of his traitorous Accompli-
ces, in taking Arms under their falf pretended
Prince.  This, my Lord, we fhall prove to you
by plain, evident, and undeniable Teftimony of thofe
very Perfons whom this Seducer thus applied him-
felf to. Gentlemen, after it pleafed God, by his
Bleffing on the.victorious Arms of the King, that
the Rebels were defeated, their pretended Prince

and
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your Accufers firft to be heard 5 and it is abfolutely
requifite, that the ufual Forms and Methods of

1685

and Head, with fome of the Chief of his Accom-

plices, were taken Prifoners, and that in a place
near the Houfe where the Prifoner Jived, whenall
the Country was full of hurry in purfuit after thofe
wicked Rebels, thus, by God’s Blefling and
Providence, diffipated, and forc’d, like Vagabonds,
to fkutk up and down : then does this Hicks, having
oot from the Battle as far as Warminfler 1n the next
County, fend a2 Meflenger, one Dunne, to the Pri-
foner’s Houfe, to defire her and requeft her, that
{he would receive and harbour him and his P_'riend
(who that was, will appear by and by). Mrs Lifle re-
turns an Anfwer by the Meflenger, that fhe w?uld
receive him, but does withal give particular Direc-
tion, that the time when they did come fhould be
late in the Evening. Accordingly he comes in the
beginning of the Night, at 10 of the Clock, booted
and fpurred, and brings with him another Arch-
Rebel, one Nelthorp, that ftands outlaw’d fora
moft black and horrid Treafon. When they come
to the Prifoner’s Houfe, they turn their Horfes
loof: at the Gate ; for the Danger was fo great, and
their Apprehenfions of being taken fo urgent upon
them to conceal and fhift for themielves, that they
thought it convenient to let their Horfes go where
they would, When they came there, the Meffen-
ger, as we fhall prove by himfelf, was convey’d a-
way to 2 Chamber; but Mrs, Lifle caufes Meatand
Drink to be fet before Mr. Hicks and Nelthorp, and
they fupped with her, and afterwards they were
lodg’d by her particular Order and Direction. The
next Morning Colonel Penruddock, who had fome
intimation, in his fearch after the Rebels, that fome
Perfons lay conceal’d in Mirs, Lifle’s Houle, comes
thither, and tells her, after he had befet the Houfe,
Madam, you bave Rebels in your Houfe, I come to
feize them, pray deliver them up.  She denied that
fhe had any in her Houfe; but upon fearch Hicks,
and Nelthorp, and that other Fellow, the Meffen-
ger, were all found there, and fhe therenpon {ecured
with them. The Method wherein we fhall give our
Evidence, will be this; we fhall firft begin wich this
piece of Evidence, that we fhall prove, that Hicks
was actually in the Army, and in the Rebellion ;
and then we fhall prove the feveral fubfequent Faéts
as have been opened, We defire Mr. Pope, Mr.
Fitzherbert, and Mr, Taylr may be fworn,

Lifle. My Lord, as for what is faid concerning
the Rebellion, I canaffureyou, Iabhorr’d that Re-
bellion as much as any Woman 1n the world——

. L. C. }. Look you, Mrs, Lifle, becaufe
;:;ij? 7 we muft obferve the common and ufual
Methods of T'rial in your Cafe, as well as
others, I muft interupt you now: You fhall be
fully heard when it comes to your turn to make
your Defence, butany thing you fay now beforehand
is altogether irregular and tmproper. You, it may
be, are 1gnorant of the Forms of Law, therefore I
would inform you: Youare firft to hear what your
Accufation is; you fhall alk any Queftions of the
Witneffes that you will, after the King’s Counfel have
examin’d them, as they go along; and when all
their Teftimony is delivered, you fhall be heard to
make your own Defence, and have full {cope and
hiberty to inlarge upon it as Jong as you can: it is
2 bufinefs that concerns you in point of Life and
Death ; all that you have or zan value in thegWorld
lu_is at ftake, and God forbid that you fhould be
hinder’d, either in time or any thing elfe, where-
- by you may defend yourfelf ; butat prefent it is not

your turn to fpeak, for the Forms of Law require
Vor. IV, P 1

Law be inviolably obferv’d, and be fure it does the
Prifoner no injury that the Law Is kept fo firidtly
to ; and we have that Charity, as well as Juftice,
that it becomes, and 1s not below all Courts to have
for Perfons in your Condition ; and we are obliged
to take care, that you {uffer no Detriment or Inju-
ry by any illegal or irregular Proceedings. For
tho’ we fit here as Judges over you by Authority
from the King, yct we are accountable, not only to
him, but to the Kings of Kings, the great Judge
of Heaven and Farth ; and therefore are obliged,
both by our Qaths, and upon our Coniciences, to
do you Juftice, and by the Grace of God we fhall
do 1t, you may depend uponit. And as to what
you fay concerning your felf, I pray God with all
my heart you may be innocent. Pray call your
Witnefies.

Mr. Pollexfen, Swear Mr, Pope, Mr. Fitzberbert,
and Mr. Taylor. [ W hich was done.

L. C. ¥. Who do you begin with ?

Mr, Polfexfen. Mr. Pope, pray will you tell my
Lordand the Jury, what you know concerning this
Hicks : Pray tell your whole Knowledge.

Mr. Pope. My Lord, I had the misfortune to be
taken Prifoner by Monmonth’s Army, going about
fome Bufinefs of my own ; and after I had been ta-
ken {fome few days, we happened to be brought to
Keinfbam, and we were put into Sir Thomas Bridges’s
Stables, and keptunder a Guard there,  Whilft we
were there, I did fee that Gentleman that goes by
the Name of Mr. Hicks, who 1s now in Salisbury
Goal, and there I faw him yefterday ; he came and
afked for the Prifoners, which were about four or
five in number, and he afked them how they did 2
They made him little reply. Then he defired to
know how we were dealt with, whether he were
kindly ufed, or no? I replied, no, for we had had
but a piece of Bread thefe two Days, e made
me anfwer, that he was forry for that, for it
was otherwife intended. And there was with him
another Gentleman that was called the King’s Chap-
lain, that 1s, the Duke of Monmonth’s ;3 and after-
wards he pretended he would do us a Kindnefs in
{peaking to the King (as he called him) for us. He
talked with us fome little time, and by and by he
began to afk us what was the reafon that we were
there? We told him we were taken Prifoners ; upon
which, faith he, this King (meaning, as Ifuppofe,
the late Duke' of Moumionth) is a good King and a
Proteftant ; and a great deal to that purpofe, with
fome refleCting Words on the Government, and up-
on the Perfon of the King : and he told us, he won-
dered what we had to fay for our felves, being Pro-
teftants, that we did what we did in ferving a Po-
pifh Prince, and not obeying a Proteftant one.
This is the Subftance of what I have to {ay upon
this matter,

L. C. 7. Tho you were pleafed to phrafe it, Sir,
in the beginning of your Teftimony, a Misfortune
that you were taken Prifoner by the Rebels 5 yet,
I fuppofe, you could not be without the Conola-
tion of a good Confcience, that you fuffered in the

way of doing your Duty. _
Mr. Pope. My Lord, I am very well fatisfied I

did fuffer in 2 good Caule.

L. C. ¥. There is one piece of happinefs in it ;
that by that means you are able to give this Tefti-
mony this day, and do the King this piece of Ser-

vice. But pray, Sir, let me afk you this Queftion :
P2 * Are
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Are you {ure the Man you faw. vefterday. at Selishury
is the fame Man that you {poke with at Kemnfhain,
that goes by the Name of. Hicks, ¢

Mr. Pope. Yes, my Lord s apd when I was there
yefterday with him, I afked himy whether he knew
me ; and told him, faid I, you may well remember

you faw me at Kesufboin, Saith he, I do not remems-
ber that ever I faw, your Face before,  Said I, you

remember Sir Thestas Bridge’s Stables there ? Said

he, I remember I did fee fome Prifoners.  Said I,
was not it there you faw me, and had fuch a Dif-
courfe with me ? He feemed to deny 1t, butl told
him, a Man of your Coat fhould not tell Untruths,
you cannot but remember you faw me there.  Saith
he, T will recolleét my Memory if I can; and he
afterwards fent to the George in Safisbury for me,
and then he told me, he did recolle that he faw
and talked with fuch a Perfon there,

Mr. Rumfey. Sir, I would afk you this one Que-
ftion 5 did you fee him 1n the Army about the time

of the Fight ?
Mr. Pope. T think I faw him about a day or two

before.

L. G. }. Had he any Weapon on ?

Mr. Pope. 1 think not, my Lord.

Mr, Pollexfeiz. Our next Witnefs is My, Fitzher-
vers.  Pray, Sir, will you give an account to my
Lord and the Jury, what you know of this Hicks.

M. Fitzberbertr. My Lord, during the time that
f:was a Prifoner with this Gentleman at Keinfhasm,
the 25¢0 of Fuae, I faw this Man, Sebs Hicks,
wio held a Difcourfe with Mr. Pope near an How’s
time, dilparaging the Government and his Majefty,
and extolling the Duke of Mominonth, what a brave
Prince, and how good a Proteftant he was.

L. G. 7. Then he was among them, was he ?

Mr. Fitzlerbert, Yes, my Lord, he was, and I
faw him yefterday at Safisbury.

L. G. . Is that the fame Man that you faw. in
Mougonth’s Army ?

Mr, Fuzherbert, Yes, he owns himfelf to be the
fame Man.

Mr. Pollexfen. How often did you fee him there
befides that time when he difcourfed with My,
Pope 2

Mr, Fitzherbers, 1 faw him fometimes out of the
Town, but I never difcourfed him,

L. C. #. Did you fee him there before or after
that Difcourfc ?

Mr. Fitzherbers, It was after.

L. C. ¥. Would the Prifoner afle this Witnefs,
or the other, any Quettions ?

Lifle. No, my Lord.

Mr. Pellexfein, Then, Mr. 7. aylor, what fay you
to the matter ?

Mr. Tayler, My Lord, I faw him at the {ame
tune that thele Gentlemen fpeak of, at Sir Themas
Bridge’s at Keinfham,

Mr., Pollexfen. Were youa Prifoncr there, Sir ?

Mr. Taylor, Yes, T was.
. S/Ir. Pollexfen. What Place was it you faw him
m !

Mr. Taylor, It was in the Stables the fieft time

that I faw him.

L. C. F. What Difcourfe had
What did he fay to you ?

Mr. Taylor. He faid, he wonder'd at us, that we
fhould take up Arms agiinft fo good a Prince, and
A Protefiant, as the Duke of Mammouth, and againft
the Proteftant Religion, and hold up with Popery :

Saith he, Fork is but a Papift ; and a great many
fuch. Words,

you with him?
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L.C. F. Did you fee him afterwards?

Mr. Tayler. Yes, my Lord; but I cannot tel]
particularly the Time and Place s up and down the
Army.

L. C. 7. Did you {ec him at Salisbusy,

Mr, Taylor. Yes.

L. C. 7. Is that the fame Man ?

Mr. Taylir, Yes, 1t 1s,

Mr. Poflesfen. Next, my Lord, we come to
prove the Meflage and Correfpondence between this
fame Hicks, and the Prifoner Mys. Life.

Mr, Feunings, Swear Mr, Faizes Dunpe,

[ bich was done,

M. Pellexfen. 1Eyour Lordfhip pleafe to obferve,
the Times wall fall out to be very materia! in this
Cafe: The Battle at King’s-Fdomeie was the 6th of
Julys three or four days after, was the taking of
Moimorth, and my Lord Grey ap Rinreood. npon
the 26th of Fuly, ten or twelve Bays after the ta-
king of Aoimonth, was this Mefluge fent by Deuige
to Mis. Lifle: fo we call Dumane to prove what
Meflage he carried upon the 26th, and what An-
fwer was return’d s he will tell you, that Tuefiey
was the time appointed for them to come, in the
Night, and all the other Circumftances,  Bucwith-
al, 1 mult acquaint your Lordfhip, that this Fel-
low, Dwiiie, is a very unwilling Witnefs; and
therciore, with fubmiffion to your Lordfhip, we do
humbly defire your Lordthip would pleafe to exa-
mine him a little the more {tricly.

L. G. 7. You fay well: Hark you, Friend, I
would take notice of fomething to you by the way,
and you would do well to mind. what I fay to you.
According as the Counfel that, are here for the King
feem to infinuate, you were employ’d as a Mcflen-
ger between thefe Perfons, one whercof has already
been proved a notorious Rebel, and the other s the
Prifoner at the Bar, und your Lrrand was to pro-
cure 2 Reception at her Houfe for him,

Dunne. My Lord, I did fo.

L.C. 7. Very well. Now mark what 1 fay to
you, Eriend: I would not by any means in the,

‘world cendeavour to fright you into any thing, or.

any ways tempt you to tell an Untruth, buc pre-
voke you to tell the Truth, and nothing bur the
Trath, that is the Bufinefs we come about. here.
Know, Iriend, there is no Rtligion (D3t any min,
can pretendto, can give a Countenance to Lying, or
can difpenfe with telling the Truth : Thou hafk .
precious immortal Soul, and there i nothing in the
World equal to it in value: There 15 no, relation to
thy Miftrefs, if fhe be fo; no relation to th}rr
Iriend; nay, to thy Father or thy Child; nay,
not all the temporal Relations in the world. can be.
equal to thy precious immortal Soul,  Confider that
the great God of Heaven and Earth, before whofe
Tribunal thou, and we, and all Perfons are to
ftand at the laft Day, will call thee to an accoune for
thy refemding his Truch, and take vengeance of
thee for every Fallhood thou telleft. I charge thee
therefore, as thou will anfiver it 1o the great God,
the fudge of ail the Earth, that thoy do not dare to
waver one tittle from the Truth, upon any account,
or pretence whatfozver : For the’ it were to five
thy Life, yet the value of thy precious and immor-
tal Soul 1s much greater, than that thou fhould’(t
forfeit % for the faving of any the moft precious out-
ward Blefling thou doft enjoyy for that God of.
Heaven may juftly ftrike thee into erernal Flames,
and make thee drop into the bottomlels Take of
Fire and Brimftone, if thou offer to deviate the
lcaft from the Truth, and nothing but the Truzh,

Ac-
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According to. the Command of that Oath that thou
haft taken, tell us who caploy’d you, when you
were employ’d, and where; who caus’d you to go
on this Meffage, and what the Meflage was. ot
I tell thee God is not to be meck’d, and thou can’ft
not deceive him, tho’ thou may’ftus.  Buc I affure
you, if I catch you prevaricating in any the leaft
tittle (and perhaps I know more than you think I
do ; no, none of your Saints can fave your Soul,
nor fhall they fave your Body neither) I will be
fute to punith every variation from the Truth that
you are guilty of. Now come and tell us how you

came to be employ’d upon fuch a Mefiage, what
Crrand was, and what was the Iffue and Refult

your .
of It u
- Dunne. My Lord, there came a Man to my
Houfe, and defired me to go of a Meflage to my
Lady Lifie’s.

L. C. . Prithee tell me when it was, and what

Hour of the Day ?
Duine. What, when the Man came to my

Houfe ?

L.C.7J. Yes.

Dunze. Thar I will, my Lord.

L. C. ¥. Be fure you do, and do not fpeak one
word, but what i1s true, and let the Truth come
out 0’ God’s Name.

Dinne. Tt was Iriday Night.

L. C. . What Day of the Month was 1t ?

Dunne. Truly, my Lord, I cannot exactly tell

that.
L.C. 7. Wasit after the Fight at Weftoir, or

before ?

Duune. It was afeer the Bactle, my Lord.

L. C. ¥. How many Days after was 1t ?

Drize. I cannot exaétly tell.

L. C.%F. Was it the Friday Seven-night after the
Fight ?

Duuize, WNo, 1t was not,

L. C, ¥, What was defired of thee at that time ?

Drie, He defired me to go of a Meflage to my
Lady Lifle’s.

L.C. %, Doft thou know what Man it was
that came to thee, and defired thee to go on this

Meflage ?
 Duime. My Lord, I can tell what manner of
Man he was.

L. C. 7. Give me a Defeription of the Man.

Drnye, He was a fhort black Man.

L. C. ¥. You fay he was a fhort Man.

LDuzne. Yes, he was fo, my Lord.

L. C. 7. Was hea fwarthy, or a ruddy com-
plectioned Man ?

Driine. He was not ruddy, but fwarthy.

L. C. 7. And whar did he fay to thee ?

Dunie, He defired me to go to my Lady Lifie's
for him, for one Mr. licks; and I went accor-
dingly.

L.C.
there ?

M. Poltexfen. What Reward were you to have ?

Dezize. Thar Man that came to me, promis’d me
that I fhould be well rewarded for my pains.

L. C. F. Where do you live ? (by the way,)

Dunne, In Werpminfor Parifh,

L. C. ¥. How far is it from .my Lady Lifirs ?

DHHHE; Six and twenty Miles, or thereabouts ?

L.C. % You did ge, you fay, When ?

.DE'.'HHE'; Upon the Saturday. +
myLi.,gt:lf-I ?;;;11:] we:zi.;'c gotthusfar; you wentto
Mr Hf'ci'.r . WIHF wis your praeg, and from one

ALeRS  What was your Trrand 2

/. What were you to fay when you came
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Duune. To know of ty Lady Lifle, whether fhe
would entertain Mr. Hicks.

L. C. 7. Well, now go on.

Dunng. When I came to my Lady Lifle’s Houfe,
I went to the Baliff that belong’d o my Lady
Lifl:. ‘

L. C.F. Ay, who was that Bailiff 7 Tell us his
Name? I love to know Mens Names.

Dunne. Ths Name 1s Carpenter, 1 think.

L. C. 7. Well, and what did you fay to him?

Dumie. 1 afl’d him, whether my Lady wonld
entertain one Micks, or no: He told me hedd have
nothing to do with 1, but fent me to my Lady,
and to my Lady I went; and when I came, [ afl’d
my Lady, whether fhe would entertain one Mz,
Hicks, or no? She faid, fhe did not know but the
might.

L. C. 7. Well, what thea?

Dunie. My Lord, PlI tell you,

L.C. 7. Ay, pnthee take time to recollect thy-
felf 5 but be fure thou {fpeak nothing but the Truth.
What faid my Lady to thee?

Drime. My Lady faid, they might come to her
Houfe: And upon thofe Terms I went away home
again, and return’d that Anfwer to the Meflfenger
that came to me, I came home on the Swiday
Night, and that Meflage I deliver’d unto him, and
told lum, that upon Tzefdsy Night they might
come to my Lady’s.

L. C.’f. You told him, you fay, they might
come on Trcfdey.

Duine. Yes, my Lord, T did.

L. C. ¥. Therelore I'would fain know from.you,
how you came to tell him, they might come upon
Tuefday 2 Lor you fuid jult now, my Lady’s An-
fwer was, that fhe did not know but fhe might
entertain him. Had you any fuch Direction from
Carpenter, or any one elfe, to tell hun, that they
might come on Tuefday ?

Drnne. 1 had fuch Directions from my Lady.

L. C. 7. Very well ; then let us know what were
the particular Directions fhe gave 3 tell us what fur-
ther Directions you had from her?

Drune. 1 will, my Lord, prefently, when I have
recollected my felf.

L.C.7. Ay, prithee compofe thy. felf, recollect
thy felf. [ Then be panfed for a good while.

L.C. 7. Come now, tell us; did fhe give you
any DireCtions what time of the Day they might
come thither ; remember your felf well, and tell
us what fhe fad to you?

Dumne. My Lord, I will, as near as I can, {pezk
the Truth.

L.C. 7. Ay, in God’s Name let’s have the Truth,-
whatloever comes on it ?

Dunne. I will, my Lord.

L.C. . Come then, what time did fhe give
Directions that they thould come ?

Drmnne, On Tnefday 1n the Evening,

L. C. . Upon your Oath, did fhe fay Tugfday
in the Evening ?

Duisne, Yes, my Lord, fthe did.

L.C.¥. What time in the Evening, carly or
Jate

Duime. She did not give any Directions at all
about that, but only in the Evening,

L. C. ¥. What clfe did-fhe fay to you, tell usall

the Difcourfe that pafied between you ?
Duine, She faid nothing elfe that I remember,

my Lord, . ‘
L. C. ¥. Prithee, how did fhe fay fhe would re-

ceive him, tell us what Words fhe ufed, for thou
‘ mufk:
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muft needs imagine, we do fuppofe there muft needs
be fome longer Difcourfe between you, than what
you talk of,

Dunne. All that the faid was, the would enter-
rain him,

L.C.F¥. Him! Who?

Dunne. Mr. Hicks.
L.C.¥. Juft now you talked of them, and, they:

Did you mention no body to her but Mr. Hicks ¢

Daunne. My Lord, I was fent to fee whether fhe
would receive Mr, Hicks.

L. C. ¥. Prithee, Friend, mind what thou haft
faid, and recolle&t thy felf, Pll repeat it to thee,

scaufe thou fhalt fee that I remember it all very
well. It feems that a Man, a thort black Man came
to your Houfe in Warminfter Parifh to get you to
oo for a Meffuge to Mrs, Liffe’s, to know whether
the would entertain one Hicks, and that you went
upon the Saturday, and firft you met with Carpenter,
and afk’d him that Queftion, whether his Lady
would entertain one Mr. Hicks, and he told you
he would have nothing to do with it 5 and thereupon
you went to Mrs. Liffe and afked her the Queltion,
and fhe told you that you fhould tell the Man that
they fhould come the Tu¢fday following, and come
in the Evening, and fhe would entertain him: Is
not this what you have faid 2

Dunne. Yes, my Lord, it is.

L, C. ¥. Well then, now let us know what o-
ther Difcourfe you had with her?

Dunne, My Lord, I do not remember any thing
INOte.

Mr. Pollexfen. Pray Mr. Duinne, did fhe afk you
any Quefttons whether you knew Mr. Hicks or
no ¢

Dunne. Nothing at all of that, that I remember.

Mr. Coriton. Did fhe believe that you knew Mr,
Hicks ¢

Dunie. 1 cannot tell, my Lord.

Mr. Coritoir, Do you believe that the knew him
before 2

Duine, T cannot tell truly.

L. C. J. Why, doft thou think fhe would enter-
tain any one that fhe had no Knowledge of meerly
upon thy Meflage? Mr, Duaie, Mr. Dunne, have
a care, it may be more 15 known of this marter
than you thmk for.

Dunne. My Lord, I tell you the Truth.

L.C.7. Ay, befure youdo, donotlet me take
you prevaricating?

Dunne. My Lord, I {peak nothing but the
Truth,

L.C’¥. Well, T only bid you have a care,
Truth never wants a Subterfuge, it always loves to
appear naked, 1t needs no Enamel, nor any Cover-
ing; but Lying and Sniveling, and Canting, and
Hickfing, always appear in Mafquerade. Come,
ao on with your Evidence.

Dunune. My Lord, I fay I went back again and
returned my Anfwer to the fame Man that brought
the Meffage to me,

L.C. 7. Pray let me afk you one Queftion ;
Were you got to your Houle before you found him,
or was he waiting there for you?

Dunne. He came to my Houfe after I came
home.

L. C. 7. It was the fame Man, you fay ?
Dunne, Yes, 1t was.

L. C. F. Had he no Company with him neither
time 7

Dunne. No.

(L. C. 7. Well, and what Anfwer did you return
ham ? I
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Dunne. I told him, my Lady faid {he would en-
tertain Mr. Hicks 3 he afked when he might come
up, 1 told him upon Tuefday, and upon Tutfiay
they came to my Houle.

L. C. ¥. What time did they come to your
Houfe ?

Dunne. About feven of the Clock in the Morn-
ng.
gI.. C. 7. What Day of the Month was 1t?

Dunne. Truly, my Lord, I cannot readily tell
what Day of the Month it was?

L.C.7F. Was it one or two that came to thy
Houfe ?

Dunne. My Lord, there were three in all.

L.C. ¥. Who werc thofe three, prithee?

Dunne. My Lord, there was the little blaclk
Man that brought the Meffage, and two other

People.

L. C. . Prithee defcribe what two other People
thefe were ?

Dunne, One was a full fat black Man, and the
other was a thin black Man,

L. C. 7. Who was that thin black Man *

Dunne, My Lord, I did not know him,

L. C. ¥. Did you not fancy which was Hicks ¢

Dumne. My Lord, I never knew any of their
Names.

L. C. 7. How long did they ftay at your
Houfe ?

Duine. About three Hours,

L. C. 7. Whep did you go away from thence ?

Dunne, About eleven of the Clock,

L. C. ¥. Which way did you go then ?

Dunne. We went through Deverel, and from
Devercl to Chifmark, and from Chilizerk to Sutton,
and from Swffon to the Plain, and then one Barter
met me 5 I knew the Way no further, and he was
to thew me the Way from thence,

L. C. . Prithece hold, before thou goeft any
further, I defire to be fatished about a Queftion or
two : Doft thou fay thou did{t not know the Way ?

Dauize, No, my Lord, after I came to the
Plain.

L.C. 7. How didft thou find the way when thou
wenteft on thy Meffage firft ?

Duune. My Lord, after I came to Salisbury-Plais,
I met with one Barter, and he fhewed me the way,

L. C.7. Where is that Barter ?

Mr. Pollexfen. My Lord, we have him here ; we

“fhall examine him by and by, there he ftands.

[Being a very lufly Man,

L. C. 7.. Sure that was not the little Man thou
fpokeft of ?

Duine. No, my Lord.

L. C. }. Prithee let me underftand thee then, if I
can. ‘Thou didt fay at firft there was only a little
Man with a black Beard, that was concerned with
thee about that Meflage 5 now thou talkeft of fome
Guide that thou hadft, prithee who did guide thee,
let us know ¢

Dunne. My Lord, I fay I went {o far as Fovant,
and fo to Chalk, but when I came upon the Plain,
I did not know my way to my Lady Lifle’s Houfe
at Moyle’s Court 5 1 afked twenty People in the Street
which was my way, but no body would tell me
at laft I {poke to one Fobn Barter to go with me to
my Lady Lifle’s, and he and I did agree to go to-
gether, and he fhewed me the way and carried me
to the Houfe.

L.C. ¥. Thou fhould have told usthis before,
Man, that we might have underftood it, Where
did you lic upon the Satyrday Night ?

Dunne,
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mie, At Fevant, |
}L)f JE‘I.E?. I thought you had faid, you had come

t0 Mrs. Lifl’s on Saturday 2.
Dunne. Yes,” my Lord, I did fo,

Fovant that Night. . |
N L?vg.nj‘. and 1.‘1%161‘8 did you lie on Sunday Night ?

Dune. 1 lay at my own Houfe on Sunday Night.
1. C. ¥. And Barter came along with you when

you came on Tuefday ¢

Dunne, Yes, my Lord.
L. C. ¥. And did you go the fame way upon the

Tuefday that you went upon the Saturday ¢
Dunne. Do you mean, my Lord, the fame way

1 came at firlk?

L.C. 7. Ay.
Dunne. No, my Lord, we came to Sutlsn, not

to Fovant. -
L. C. ¥. Why did not you go the fame way upon
the Tefday that you went upon the Saturday ?-
Dunse. Becaufe I had appointed to meet him at

fuch a Place.
L. C. ¥. Come, prithee anfwer me frecly, and

according to Truth: Who did defire thee, or order
thee to go another way than that thou went’ft at
firft? How came it to pafs? Let us know the

Truth?

and' came back

Dunne. My Lord, Idid count that to be the |

nearer way, and therefore I went that way.
L. C. ¥. That cannot be the Reafon, for thou
wouldft have gone the neareft way at firft, I be-

lieve ;5 come, tell us truly ?
Dunne. My, Lord, I know no other Reafon.
L.C.¥. Come, tell us what Towns and Villages
you did go through then upon Sasnrday.
Dunne. My Lord, I went through feveral, Chil-

wark and Fovant,
L. C.¥. And what Villages did you go through

upon the Juefday ?
Dunne. 1 went through moft of the fame

Towns.
L. C. 7. What, and at Neon-day too?

Dunue, Yes.
L.C. ¥. And how chanc’d when you went that

way, that you appointed Barser to meet you in ano-

ther Place at Fovant 2
Duune, Becaufe I did not know the way after-

wards.

L. C.F. Then let meafk you another Queftion :

Did you go the fame way from Fovant to my Lady
Lifles as you went before ?

Dunie, No, we did not,

L. C. f. How came that to pafs ?.

Dunne. T would have went the fame way, but
they would not.

L. C.J. Which way did you go then?

Drure. We went through Chalke, and {o thro’
Rocksborne, and from Rocksborie to Fording-Bridge,
and {o to Moyle’s Court.

L. C. 7. How far is this about now ? .

Dupne. Truly, my Lord, I cannot readily tell.

L. C.’¥. How many Miles is it from Fovant to
my Lady Lifi’s ?

Dznne, My Lord, it is about fourteen or fifteen.

L.C.¥. How many Miles was it the way that
you went upon the Tuefday ?

Dunne. Tt might be twenty, my Lord, for onght
I know.

L.C. §. What was the Reafon that Barfer went
that wray,

D:nsie. "Traly, my Lord, I cannot tell.

L.C. J. Pray let me afk you another Queftion
then 5 what Difcourfe had your with Barter 2 Or

X
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what Bargain did you make with him for thewing
you the way ? For you would not afk him to go
with you without promifing him fome Reward.

Dunne. My Lord, I alked him to thew me the
way to my Lady Lifle’s Houle, and rold him I was
going for one Hicks and fo he took his Horfe and
went with me. |

L. C.¥. What Reward did you promife him 2

Duune. Half a Crown, my Lord, and half a
Crown I gave him.

L. C. 7. Well, thatwas the firlt time ; and wha%
did you promife him the fecond time ?

Dunne. The fecond time one of the two Men
gave him five Shillings.

L. C. ¥. What Man was it ?

Dunne, It was the black Man.

L.C. 7. What was his Name? It was not the
little black Man that came firft to defire you to gq
on the Meflage, wasit? .

Dunne. No, my Lord, it was not he that {poks

to me firft,
L. C. 7. Did not that little Man that fpoke tg

you firft, promife you a Reward for your Pajns?

Dunne, No, my Lord, that Man never promifed
me any thing.

L. C. ¥. Did he goalong with you?

Dunne. No, my Lord, he did not.

L. C. . Who were the two Men that went with

ou ¢
! Dunne, Hicks and Nelthorp.

L. C. ¥. Which of them two was it that gave
Barter five Shillings

Dunne, It was Nelthorp that gave him five Shil-
lings,

%.. C.7. How do you know his Name was
Nelthorp ?

Dunne. At tmy Lady Lifle's, after he was taken
I knew his Name to be Nelthorp.

L. C. 7. What Name did he go by before ?

Dunne. Were 1to die prefently, my Lord, I
cannot tell 1t.

L, C. ¥. Well, you went fo much about: What
time did you get to my Lady Lif’s upon the
Tuefday ?

Dunne. About nine or ten of the Clock at Night,

my Lord.
L. C. ¥. Let us confider a little; you fay you

went from your Houfe about eleven a Cock :

What time did you get to Fovant ¢
Dunne. About two or three of the Clock, my

Lord.

L. C. #. Where did you ftay by the way ?

Dunne. No where, my Lord.

L. C. ¥. Did you ride on ftill ?

Dunne. Yes, my Lord,

L.C.¥. Was it before nine, or after nine that
you came to my Lady Lifle’s ?

Duune. 1 believe it was rather after nine, my
Lord.

L. C. F. Who came firlt to my Lady Life's,
prithee tell us frankly ?

Dunne. My Lord, we came all three together to

the Gate.
L. C. ¥. Who knocked at the Gate, you or

Barter, or who elfe?

Dunne. Barter, my Lord, was difcharg’d before

we came near the Houfe, about eight Miles
from 1it.

L.C. . Say’ft thou fo; How came you then
to know the way without him ¢

Dunne. My Lord, Pll tell you 3 they loft their

way, and they fent me down to Marion, and there

I went
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I went to 2 Man, my Lord, and told him one
Hicks defired to {fpeak with him.

L. C. . Thou fay’ft well, now muft I know that

Man’s Name,
Dunire. 'The Man’s Name that I went to at

Marton, my Lord? | |
L.C.¥. Yes, and look to 1t, you tell me right,

for it may be I know the Man already, and can tell

at what end of the Town the Man lives too.
Dymne, My Lord, I cannot tell his Name pre-

fently,

L.C.¥. Oh! pray now, do not fay fo, you

muft tell us, indeed you muft think of his Name a

little, S
Dunne. My Lord, 1f I can mind 1t I will.

L. C. ¥. Prithee do.

Duwne, His Name, truly, my Lord, I cannot
rightly tell for the prefent.

L. C. ¥. Prithee recolledt thy {elf; indeed thou
cantt tell us if thou wile,

Duime. My Lord, I can go to the Houfe again
if I were at liberty.

L. C.F. 1believe 1t, and fo could I; but really
netther you nor I can be fpared at prefent, there-
fore prithee do us the kindnefs now to tell us his

Name ¢

Dunie, Truly, my Lord, I cannot mind his

Name at prefent.
L. C. ¥. Alack-a-day, we muft needs have it 3

come, refrefh your Memory a lictle.
Dunne. My Lord, I think his Name was Fare.
L, C. F. Thou fay’lt right, his Name was Fane
truly, thou feeft I know fomething of the matter :
Well, what didft chou fay to him? -

Duime. T told him I came from one Mr, Hicks.

L. C. F. And what didft thou defire of him ?

Dunne. 1 told him that one Mr. Hicks defired to
ipeak with him 3 and when he came out to Mr.
Hicks, WMr, Hicks did defire him o thew him the
way to Mrs. Lifle’s,

L.C. ¥. Now tell us what kind of Man that
was, that did defire this of Mr. Fane 2

Duine, My Lord, it was the full fat black. Man.

L. C. ¥. Now we have got him out, now we
know which was Hicks : Now go on,

Dunne. My Lord, this Man went and rid along
with them as far as the new Houfe that is built
there, within a Mile of that Houfe Fane wentalong
with us 5 and afterwards, whether Hicks or Nelthorp,
or who knew the way, I cannot tell," but to my
Lady Lifles we went.

L. C. ¥. Who dire&ed you the way when Fane
left you ?

Duime, My Lord, 1 cannot tell, for my part I
did not know the way.

L.C.’f. Who went with you ?

Dunne. None but Hicks and Nelthorp.

L. C. 7. How far from my Lady’s Houfe was
that place where Fane left you?

. Duime. My Lord, 1 cannot dire@ly tell.

L.C.}. Then Hicks knew the way, it feems,
from thence ?

Duige, So he might,
know, for I did not.

L.C.F. Thou art ftrangely fiff; but now we
are come thus far with you, tell me what Fnter-
tainment you had at my Lady Liffe's, and look to
it that you be fure to tell me Truth, for I know it
to a nittle, 1 can affure you that,

. Dane. “They went in before me, my Lord.

L. €. 7. Who went in before you ?

Danne. Hicks and Nelthorp.

my Lord, for ought I
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L. C. 7. But the Door was fhut when you came,
was 1t not ?

D:une, My Lord, T cannot tell truly.

L. C. . Then tell me what Entertainment yoy

had there?
Dunne. For my own part, my Lord, I carry’d 4

bit of Cake and Cheefe from my own Houfe, and

that [ eat, ‘ _ |
L.C.¥. What became of your Companions Hicks *

ancd Nelthorp, I pray you? o
Dunise. 1 never faw them again ull after they

were taken.
L. C. ¥. How 15 that, prithee recolleé thy fcif?
Dupne, Sure, my Lord, I did not fee them tiil

then.

L.C. 7. Who came to the Door to you ?

Dumne. A young Girl, my Lord, I knew nor
who nor what fhe was. |

L.C. 7. Dud they go directly into the Houfe ?

Dimne, Tt was dark, my Lord, I did not fee
what they did.

L.C.¥. Wasthere never a Candle there ?

Dunme, No, my Lord.

L. G, F. It was dark, very dark, was it not ?

Dunie. Yes, my Lord, it was fo,

L.C. F. Was my Lady {tirring then ?

Druneg, 1 did not fee her,

L. C. 7. And this 1s as much as you know of the
Bufinefs ?

Duine, Yes, my Lord, this is all that I remen;-
ber,

L. C. 7. Well 5 and what hadft thou for all thy
pans ?

Deime. Nothing but a Month’s Imprifonment,
my Lord.

L. C. J. Thon feemeft to be a Man of a grear
deal of Kindnefs and Good-nature; for by this
Story, there was a Man that thou never faweft
before, (for I would fain have all People obferve
what Leather fome Mens Confciences are made of )
and becaufe he only had a black Beard, and came
to thy Houle, that black Beard of his thould per-
fuade thee to go 26 Miles, and give a Man half a
Crown out of thy Pocket to fhew thee thy way,
and all to carry 2 Meffage from a Man thou never
knewett in thy Life, to a Woman whom thou never
faweft in thy Life neither ; that thou thould'tt lie oyt
by the way two Nights, and upon the Sunday get
home, and there meet with this fame black-bearded
Ittle Gentleman, and appoint thefe People to come to
thy Houfe upon the Tuefday; and when they came,
entertain them three or four Hours at thy own
Houfe, and go back again fo many Miles with
them, and have no Entertainment but g piece of
Cake and Cheefe that thou broughteft thy {elf from
home, and have no Reward, nor fo much as know
any of the Perfons thou didlt all this for, is very
ftrange.

Dunine. My Lord, the Man that came to defire
me t0 go on this Meflage, faid that Hicks thould
reward me, and pay me for my pains. :

L. C. 7. But why wouldft thou take the word of
a Man thou didft not know ?

Dunne. 1 was forced to take his word at that
time, my Lord,

L. C.¥. There wasno neceflity for that neither ;
no body could force thee to do it Alack-a-day |
Thou feemeft to be a Man of fome confideration -
I mightily wonder thou fhouldft be fo kind to
People thou didft not know, without any profpeét
of Recompence whatfoever,

Dunne,



Dunne. All the Reafon that induced me to it was,
theyffa;d they were Men in Debt, and defired tobe

concealed for a while. |
L. C. ¥. Doft thou believe that any one hére be-
lieves thee : Prithee what Trade art thou?
. Duune. My Lord, Iam a Baker by Trade.
L. C. 7. And wilt thou bake thy Bread at {uch
eafy Rates 7 Upon my Word then, thou art very
kind : Prithee tell me, I believe thou doft ufe to

bake on Sundays, doft thou not
Durne. No, my Lord, I donot.
1.C.¥. Alack-a-day, thou art precife in thats
but thou canft travel on Sundays to lead Rogues mn-
to Lurking-holes : It feemeth thou haft a particu-
lar Kindnefs for a black Beard, that’s all thy Reafon
for undertaking all this Trouble. Thou haft told

me all the Truth, haft thout

Dunne. 1 have, my Lord. ' |
L.C. ¥. But I affure thee, thy Bread is very light

Weight, it will fcarce pafs the Ballance here.

Dunne. 1 tell the Truth, and nothing but the
"Truth. |

L.C. F. No Doubt of that ; but prithee tell me,
whofe Horfe didft thou ride when thou wenteft firft ?

Dunne. The Man’s Horfe that came to me to de-

fire me to go on the Meffage. o
L.C.F. How came he to truft thee with his

Horfe ?
Dunze. The Lord knows, my Lord.
L. C.¥. Thou fay’(t right, the Lord only knows,

for by the little T know of thee, I would not truft
thee with Two-pence : Whofe Horfe did thou ride

the fecond time ?

Diinne, My own, my Lord.

L.C.F. And wherz didft thou put thy Horfe
when thou cameft to my Lady Lifle’s,

Dunne. In the Stable, my Lord.

L. C. 7. Where did they put their Horfes ?

Dunne. They left them without the Gate, I think,
my Lord; I did not fee them take them in,

L. C. ¥. No, thou faid’ft 1t was fo dark thou
could'ft not fee any thing: Pray were you with the
two Men when they did alight ;

Dunwe, We did all three come together.

L.C. 7. What did you give fane for his Pains 1n
fhewing you the way ?

Dunne. He had nothing that I know of,

L.C. ¥, Well, you are the beft-natur’d and
kindeft-hearted People thatever I knew : Where-
abouts do you live?

Dunne, Av Warminfler, near my Lord Weymonth’s.

Mr. Pollexfen. Pray, Mr, Duine, will you anfier
me one Queftion : Was not there fearching at that
time up and down the Country for Rebels that were
Hed from the Battle ?

Dunne. I did hear there was, fome were taken.
M. Pollexfen. But did you hear there was fearch-
ing at that time for other of the Rebels ?

Dune, T did not hear of any near me, but there
were 111 other Places.

L.C. ¥, Then it being fuch a fufpicious Time,
when that little Man with the black Beard came to
thee, didit thou not afk what that Hicks was ?

Durne. No, my Lord, I did not.

L. C. ¥. And when Mr, Hicks and the other Man
that is call’d by the Name of Mr. Nelthorp came to
thy Houfe, didft not thouafk taeir Names ?
~ Duine, No, 1y Lord.

L. C. 7. Nordidft not thou afk upon what Occa-
fion they were to be conducted to my Lady Lifle’s :

Dunne, No,_ my Lord : Hicks, the fat Man, told
me they were in Debt,
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L. C. ¥. Did not the Man that firlt came to you,
and employ’d you to.go on this Meffage ; did nor
he know Hicks ?

Dunne. I cannot tell, my Lord.

L.C. }. Did not he tell you, Hicks defired you
to go, and that he was 1n Debr, and therefore de-
fired to be concealed ?

Dusine. Yes, my Lord, he did,

L. C. 7. How came you tobe fo impudent then,
as to tell me fuch a Lye?

Dunne. 1 beg your Pardon, my Lord.

L.C.7. You beg my Pardon! That 1s not be-
caufe you told me a Lye, but becaufe 1 have found
you in a Lye. Come Sirrah, tell me the Truth;
What did Hicks and Nelthorp with their Horles,
when they came to my Lady Lifl’s ?

Dunne. My Lord, I cannor tell,

L.C. ¥. Why you impudent Rafcal, did not you
tell mie jult now that they left them at the Door ?

Dunne. My Lord, I faid I believ'd they might,
but cannot directly tell what they did with them; I
know not but one or other might have them away,
but I did not fee it

Mr, Pollexfen. Prithee, Friend, tell the Troth;
what did become of the Horfes ?

Dunne. 1 cannot tell truly, my Lord ;5 iFany bo-
dy had them away, I did not fee them.,

L. C. . Where didft thou lie that Nijght?

Duune. In one of the Chambers.

L. C. F. Who fhewed thee the Way to thy
Lodging - |

Dunne. The Girl.

L. C. . Who elfe didft thou fee in the Houfe ¢

Dupne, 1 faw no body atall,

L. C.’f. Then who fhewed thee the Way to the
Stable, and help’d thee with Horfe-meat?

Duune. No body help’d me to Horfe-meat,

L.C.7. Why, thy Horfe did not feed on thy
Cake and Cheefe, did he?

Dunne, There was Hay in the Rack, my Lord.

L. C. ¥. Was the Stable-Door lock’d or open?

Dunne, The Stable-Door was latch’d, and I
pluck’d vp the Latch.

L. C. ¥. How came you to know the Way to the
Stable then?

Dunue. Becaufe I had been there before, my Lord.

L.C.¥. Thou had’ft need to know 1t very well,
for it feems thou wenteft without 2 Candle or any
thing in the World, and put in thy Horle. Did’(t
thou fee that Man Carpenter the Baiiff that thou
fpokeft of ¢

Dunne. Mr. Carpenter gave my Horfe Hay.

L. C. . Was there any Light in the Stable ?

Dunne, Not when I put in my Horfe firft.

L. C. ¥. WWho brought the Light thither?

Dunne, Goodman Carpenter,

L. C. ¥. Did not he give thy Horfe Hay ?

Dunne, Yes, he did.

L. C.¥. And did he not give him Oats too?

Dunne., No, my Lord, he did not,

L C. 7. Did not he condutt you into the
Houfe ?

Dunpe. Who, my Lord ?

L. C.¥. That fame Goodman Carpenter.

Danue, No, my Lord.
L.C. % Didyou fee any body elfc but that Girl

you {peak of ?

Dunne, My Lord, I did fee the Gitl there.
L. C. ¥. But, you Blockhead, I afk you whether

you did fec any body elfe 2

Duynue. 1 do not know but 1 might fee Goodman

Carpenter,
Q LC7F.



Yi4
- L.C ¥. Why, thou faid’ft he brought the Light,
and gave thy Horfe Hay ; but 1 fee thou art fet up-
on nothing but Prevarication : Sirrah, tell me plain-
ly, did you fee no body elfe?

Dunne. No, my Lord.

L.C. ¥. Notany body?

Dunne. No, my Lord, not any one,

L.C. 7. Did you not drink in the Houfe:

Dunne. No, my Lord, not a Drop.

L. C. ¥. Did not you call for Drink ? |
Dunne. No, my Lord, I did not, I had nothing

but my Cake and Cheefe that I brought thither my

fclf. |
L.C.¥. Who went up to the Chamber with

you ?
Duine. The Girl, my Lord,
L.C. 7. And no bedyelle?
Duine. No, my Lord.
L.C. ¥. Was the Bed made ?
Dumne, Yes, my Lord, 1t was,
L.C. 7. You eat nothing in the Houfe, you
fay ?
Drmie. Nothing but my own Cake and Cheefe,
my Lord. |
L.C. . But you did not drink 1 the Houfe
at all ¢
Dmwe. No, my Lord, I did not,
L.C. 7. Did you dnnk at Meiien, where you did
call upon Fane ?
Dunne, Yes, 1 did, but not afrerveards,
L.C. f. Did-you fec any body there the next
Morning before they were taken ?
Dupne, No, my Lord ; but after the Houfe was
clet, Ifaw my Lady and Mr, Hicks, and I think
i faw Goodman Caizenter.
L. C. ¥. They and you were taken there toge-
ther, were not you?

Drunne, Yes.

L.C. 7. Did you {ce Carpenter’s Wife, upon
vour Oath, that Night?

Duizne. My Lord, I did not.

L. C. ¥. Nor no Woman-kind befides the Girl
you {peak of ?

Duize. No, my Lord.

L. C. ¥. Nor noMan belides Carpenter 2

Duime. No, my Lord,

L.C.F. Youare fure of thig?

Duuize. Tam fo, my Lord.

L.C. 7. You are {ure you did not drink there?

Duiie. T am, my Lord.,

L.C.¥. And you fay he brought the Light into
the Stable, and gave your Horfe Hay ?

Dunne, He did, my Lord.

L.C. 7. Now prithee tell me truly, where came
Carpenter unto you? I muft know the Truth of that
remember that I gave you fair Warning, do not tell
me a Lye, for I will be fure to treafure up every
Lye that thou telleft me, and thou may’ft be certain
it will not be for thy Advantage: I would not ter-
rify thee to make thee fay any thing but the Truth ;
but aflure thyfelf, I never met with a lying, fnealk.
ing, canting Fellow, but Ialways treafurd up Ven-
geance for him : and therefore look to it, that thou
doft not prevaricate with me, for to be fure thou wilt
come to the worll of it in the End,

Duzne, My Lord, I will tell the Truth as near as
I can,

L. C. ¥. Then tell me where Carpenter met thee ?

Duire. In the Court, my Lord.

L. C. . Before you came to the Gate, or after ?

- Deirre. Tt was after we came to- the Gate, In the
curt,
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L.C.¥. Then tell me, and I charge you tell me
true, who was with you when Carpenter metyou?

Dunne. Hicks and Nelthorp.

L.C. 7. Was there any body elfc belides them
two in the Court ?

Dunne. There was no bosy but Hicks and N2/
thorp, and I and Mr. Carpenter.

L.C.F. You are {fure of that?

Dunne, Yes, my Lord. ‘

L. C, ¥. Confider of 1t, are you fure there wasno
body elfe ?

Duupe. Truly, my Lord, I did not mind that

there wasany body eile.

L.C. 7. Recolle@ your felf, and confider well of
1L,

Dunpe. Truly, my Lord, I do not know of any
body elfe.

L.C. 7. Now upon your Oath tell me truly, who
it was that opened the Stable-door, was it Carpentes
or you? .

Dunne, It was Carpenter, my Lord.

L.C.¥. Why, thou vile Wretch, didft not thou
tell me juft now, that thou pluck’d up the Latch ?
Doft thou take the God of Heaven not to be a God
of Truth, and that he 15 not a Witnefs of all thou
fay’tt? Doft thou think becaufe thou prevaricateft
with the Court here, thou can’ft do fo with God
above, who knows thy Thoughts ; and it is infinite
Mercy, that, for thofe Falthoods of thine, he does
not immedately ftrike thee into Hell 2 Jefus God !
there 1s no fort of Converfation nor human Society
to be kept with fuch People as thefe are, who have
no other Religion but only in Pretence, and no way
to uphold themfelves but by countenancing Lying
and Villuny : Did not you tell me that you opened
the Latch your {clf, and that you faw no body elfe
but a Girl? How durit vou offer to tell fuch horrid
Lyes in the Prelence of Ged and of a Court of Juf-
ticer Anfwer me one Quefiion more: Did he pull
down the Hay, cryou?

Dunze, 1 did not pull down any Hay at all.

L. C, . Was taere any Hay pull’d down before
the Candle was brought?

Dmpie. No, there was hot,

L. C. 7. Who brought the Candle?

Drie, M, Carpenter brought the Candle and
Lanthorn.

L.C. 7. It feems the Sainis have a certain Charter
for Lying; they may lye and cant, and deccive,
and rebel, and think God Almighty takes no Notice
of 1t, nor will reckon with them for it: You fee,
Gentlemen, what a precious Fellow this is, a very
pretty ‘Tool to be employ’d upen fuch an Errand,
a Knave that no body would truft for half a Crown
between Man and Man, but he is the fitter to be
employ’d about fuch Works; what Pains is 2 Man
at to get the Truth out of thefe Fellows! and it is
with a great deal of Labour, that we can {queeze
one Drop out of them? A Turk has more Title to
an LEternity of Blifs than thefe Pretenders to Chri-
ftianity, for he has more Morality and Honefty in
him,  Surah, T charge you in the Prefence of God,
tell me true, What other Perfons did you fee that
Night ?

Duane. My Lord, Idid not fee any than what I
have told you already.

L. C. 7. Thenthey went out and brought Word.
that thou wert come, and {o he came cut to meet
thee. Very well: I would have every body that has
but the Jealt Tang of Saintthip to obferve the Car-
riage of this Fellow, and fee how they can cant and
fnivel, and lye, and forfwear themfelves, and all for

the
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the Good Old Caufe : They will ftick at nothing, 1f
they think they can but prelerve 2 Brother or Sifter
Saint forfooth; they can do any thing in the world
but fpeak Truth, and do their Duty to God and
their Governors ¢ I afk you again, Did not Carpen-
ter meet you before you left Hicks and Nelthoip ?

Dunne. No, he did not. . .

L. C. ¥, Then Iafk you again once more, did
not Carpenter afk you to drink ?

Dunne. No, he did not. . |
L. C. ¥. Did not he light you with a Lanthorn

and Candle into the Houfe ¢

Duuie. 1 went into the IHoufe.

L. C. F. Doft thou believe we think any body
thruft thee in : Did he light thee in, 1 afk thee?

Dunne.” T went in along with Mr. Carpenter,

L. C. ¥. What Room dtd he carry you into?

Dunne. My Lord, he carried me into no Room,
the young Woman fhew’d me into a2 Room.

L. C. ¥. What Room was 1t ?

Diunie. Into the Chamber. }
L. C. ¥. Was not thou 1n the Hall or Kitchen 2

Dunue. No, my Lord,

L.C.¥. Itis hard thou hadft not one Cup of
Drink to thy Cake and Cheele.

Dunne. My Lord, 1 had never a Drop.

L. C. ¥. No, nor did nobody aflk vou to eat or
drink ¢

Dunne. No, my Lord, |

L. C. ¥. Thou art the beft-natur’d Fellow that

ever I met with, but the worflt rewarded. Come,

1 will afk thee another Qwﬁion . When was the frft

time thou heard’ft Ne/thorp’s Name 2
Dunne. Not till he was taken. | ’
L.C. 7. What Name did the Fellow with the

black Beard tell thee he had ?
Duune. My Lord, he never told me any Name?

L. C, 7. Didft thou never afk him his Name?

Dunne. No, my Lord, that Man that was after-
wards found to be Nelthorp, 1did not know to be
Nelthorp till he was taken, nor what his Name was,
nor any Name he had. |

L. C. f. No, prithee tell the Truth, did not Ne/-
thorp go by the Name of Crofts ?

Dunne. He did, my Lord.

L. C. }. Then prithee, when did he firft go by
that Name in thy Hearing ?

Duie. My Lord, Tonly heard Hicks fay he went
by the Name of Crofts.

L. C. . When was that ?

Dunire. When they were taken.

L.C. 7. Did you not hear him call’d by that
Name any time of the Journey ?

Duune. I cannot recolledt, my Lord, that T ever did.

L. C. 7. Thou can’ft recolle@ nothing of Truth :
Is this as much as you can fay?

Dunne. It 1s, my Lord,

Mr. Fenniugs. You fay Carpenter met you very
cvilly, and rook care of your Horfe: " Did he
make no Provifion for Hicks and Nelthorp's Horfes ?
What became of them ?

Dunne. I cannot tell, my Lord.

Mr. Rumfey. Did you fee their Horfes afterwards 3

Dunne. No, my Lord, I did not. -

Mr. Rumfey. When they alighted from them,
were they ty’d faft to the Gate, .or how

Dunne. They were not ty’d at all, as I know of.
M. Fennings. Did you tell Carpenter that their

Horfes. were. there » ' o

Dunne. T did not tell him any fuch thing.

L C. F. Thou art a ftrange prevaricaging, fhuf-
fling, fmvehng,‘]yjng Raical. | |
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Mr. Pollexfen. We will fet him by for the prefent;
and call Barter, that is the other Feflow, | |
L. C. 7. Will the Prifoner afk this Perfon any
Queftions ? |
Lifle, No. L | l
L. C. 7. Perhaps her Queftions miglit endanger
the coming out of all the Truth, and it may be the
15 well enough pleafed to have him fwear as he does:
but it carries a very foul Face, upon my Word.
(Then Barter was fivors.
L. C. 7. Is this Barter ?

Mr, Pollexfen. Yes, my Lord, for his part we
have his Examination before two Juftices of Pedce ;

but we hope he is an honeft Fellow, and will tell the
Truth. * | .

L. C. 7. Thatisall one whether you hiave his Fx-
amination or not; I expect he fhould tell me the
Truth, and the whole Truth here, Friend, you know

your Soul 1s ar pawn for the Truth of what you
teftify to us; the other Fellow thou feeft has been

prevaricating with us all this while, and fivearing
off and on, and fcarce told one Word of Truth, I
know very well: Now I know as much of thee as
1 doof him, therefore look to thy felf, and let the
Truth, and ncthing but the Trith come out,

Barter. May it pleafe your Honour, my Lord,
this Man Dunue came to my Houfe. upon the Satwi-
day, and fpoke to me to ride along with him to
Moyle’s-Conrt, where my Lady Lifle liv’d; and I
having no other Bufinefs at that time, did go dlong
with him : He had a Letter in his Pocket, and I faw
him produce the Lerter to my Lady’s Baliff, Mr.
Carpenter, but he would not meddle with it, fo I
fuppofe he went in with it to my Lady 3 and while
I was in the Kitchen, my Lady came thither, and
afiked me, faith the, What Countryman art thou ?
Said I, Madamy, I am a Wilifhire Man., Saith
fhe, Do’ft thou make Bricks? No, faid I, Madam,
I cannot, I can help in Hufbandry-work, Saith fhe,
If thou could’ft make Bricks, I will give the ten A-
cres of Ground in fuch a Place. I told her no, I could
not: And then fhe goes to this Man Dunne, and
there fhe was laughing with him, and look’d upon
me; and afterwards when we were going along, 1
afked him what fhe Janghed at ?

L. C.}. Ay, and now tell me what he faid to
thee about 1t ?

Barter. He told me, my Lord, my Lady afked
whether I knew any thing of the Concern, and that
he anfwered her, no; this the Fellow told me was
that fhe laugh’d at, After this, I could not eat, nor
drink, nor{leep for trouble of mind, till I had difco-
vered this to fome Juftice of the Peace 5 and I re-
folved at laft to go to Colonel Penrnddock, and con-
{fult him about it, fo I went over and told him of
1t. ‘
L. C. F. What did you tell Colonel Penrstddock,
fet us hear? |

Barter, Where I had been the Satwrday before,
and where I fhould meet them again upon Salisbisy-
Plain upon the Tuefday, for Idid expeét to meet
them there according to appointment, and we did
agree he fhould come and take them there ; but af-
terwards miffing them there, or for fome other rea-
fon, I do not know what, his Mind altered, and
he came to take them in the Houle: So when I
met them, we rode on about ten Miles, and they
would have had me to have led them a private way
over the fording Bridge towards Aoyle’s-Conrt, but
Itold them, in cafe they intended: to have me for
their Guide, they muft go the way that I could tell ;
but they would go that private way, and fo lofe their

Q.2 Way 3
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way; then they fent back this Dunue to Marton to -

one Fawe, that was the fat Man that fent him: but
1 finding that T was of no more value then, rode
away from them, and having a Relation that liv’d
on that {ide of the Country, I went to let Colonel
Penrnddock know that they were at the Houfe. But
before I went away from them, Nelthorp gave me
five Shilling, half a Crown, and two Shillings and
a Six-pence.

L. C. ¥. Now thou fay’ft Nelthorpdid : Didft thou
hear his Name named?

Barter. 1 never could find any of their Names
1}l they were taken.

Mr. Pollexfen. Pray, Barter, what Difcourfe had
you with Dunne the firft time you were going to
and from my Lady Lif’s, concerning the Men
that he was to bring thither, and what Eftates they
had ?

Barter, My Lord, he faid they had half a Score
of Thoufands of Pounds a Year a-piece.

Mr. Pollexfen. Did he tell you they were to come
to my Lady’s.

Barter. Yes, he told me they were to come
upon the Twefday, and they were to come fuch a
Way, and were to come to my Lady’s in the Even-
ing.

L. C. 7. What wer’t thou to have for thy pains ?

Barter. 1 made no Bargain, my Lord.

L. C. 7. Youareall very free, kind-hearted Peo-
ple, I fay that for you.

Mr. Polexfen. What did Dunne fay about his
Gains?

Barter. He told ine he had a very fine Booty for
his part, and that he fhould never want Money a-
gain, and that I thould be very well paid, and gave
me half a Crown,

L. C. ¥. Then let my honeft Man, Mr. Dunse,
ftand forward a little. Come, Friend, you have
had fome time to recolleét your felfy let us fee
whether we can have the Truth out of you now:
You talked of carrying a Meflage from Hicks to
my Lady Liffie; Did not you carry a Letter ?

Dunne. No, my Lord, I did not,

L. C. 7. Did not you thew a Letter to the Bailiff,
Carpenter ?

Dunne. No, my Lord, I did not.

L.C. ¥. What fay you, Barfer, to that?

Barter. My Lord, I did fee him produce the Let-
ter to the Bailiff,

L.C. 7. Then I will afk you another Queftion :
Did you not tell Barter that you fhould be at
j‘aﬁ,;bmy-P!afn, with two People, upon the Tref-
ay

Dunne. No, my Lord, I faid between Comploi
and Fovant.

L.C. 7. Did not you tell him, that they were

brave Fellows, and had God knows how many
"Thoufand Pounds a year a-piece ?

Duirie. No, my Lord, I did not.
L. C. 7. Then one thing more : Did not you tell
him, that you told my Lady, when fhe afked whe-

ther hie was acquainted with the Concern, that he
knew nothing of the Bufinefs?

Dumne. My Lord, 1did tell him fo.

L.C. 7. Didyou{o? Thenyouand I muft have
a hittle further Difcourfe: Come now, and tell us,
what Bufinefs was that? and tell it us fo, thata

Man may underftand and believe that thou doft
{peak Truth.

Duine. Does

ofs vias 9 your Lordthip afk what that Bufi-
nefs was |
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L. C. F. Yes, itisa plain Queftion ; What wag
that Bufinefs that my Lady afked thee, whether the
other Man knew ; and then you anfweted her, that
he did know nothing of it 2

[ Then be paufed a while,

L. C.¥. Remember, Friend, thou art upon thy
QOath ; and remember withal, that 1t 1s not thy
Life, but thy Soul that now in danger: therefore
I require from thee a plain Anfwer to a very plain
Queftion ; What was that Bufinefs my Lady en-
quired after, whether the other Fellow knew, and
thou told’ft her, he did not?

[Dunne made no Aufwer, but
Sfood smufing a while,

L.C. 7. He 1s ftudying and mufing how he
fhall prevaricate; but thou had’ft better tell the
Truth, Friend: remember what thou haft faid al-
ready ; thon haft fard, That thou didlt tell that
Man, that the Lady afked you, whether he knew
any thing of the Bufinefs, and thou told’ft her, he
did not. Now I would know what that Bufinefs
was,

Still be made no Anfwer, but feemed to infz,

L. C. 7. Look thee, 1if thou canft not compre-
hend what I mean, I will repeat it to thee again
for thou fhale fee what Countryman I am, by my
telling my Story over twice: Therefore I afk thee
once agamn., Thou faid’ft thy Lady afked thee,
whether he knew of the Bufinefs ; and thou told’{t
her, he did not. Now let us know what that Bu-
{inefs was.

Dunne. 1 cannot mind it, my Lord, what it
was.

L. C. 7. Butmind me prithee: Thou did*ft tell
that honeft Man there, that my Lady Life afked
thee, whether he knew any thing of the Bufinefs,
and thou faid’{t, no. What was that Bufinefs ?

strmue. ‘That Bufinefs that Baiter did not know
Ol !

L.C. J. Yes, thatisthe Bufinefs; be ingenuous,
tell the Truth : Oh! how hard the Truth is to come
out of a lying Pretbyterian Knave. Prithee, Friend,
confider the Oath that thou haft taken, and that
thou art in the prefence of a God that cannot en-
dure a Lye, nor whofe Holinefs will not admit him
to difpenfe with a Lye: Confider that that God is
an infinite being of Purity, Holinefs, and Truth ;
and it would be inconfiftent with his Being to dif-
penfe with the leaft Untruth ; and thou haft called
him to witnefs, that thou would’{t teftify the Truth,
the whole Truth, and nothing but the Truth, I
charge thee, therefore, as thou wilt anfwer it to
that God of “Truth, and that thou may’it be callzd
to do, for ought I know, the very next Minute,
and there thou wilt not be able to palliate the

Trath; what was that Bufinefs vou and mv Lad
fpoke of ? 7o P

(Ther e panfed for kalf 6 guarter of an
Honry and at laft faid : ’
Dunne. 1 cannot give an Account of it
Lord.
L. C. 7. Oh bleffed God! Was there ever fuch
a Villain upon the Face of the Farth; to what
Times are we referved? Dofi thou belicve that
there 1s a God ?
Dunne. Yes, my Lord, I do.

L. C. . Dolt thou believe, that that God can
endure a Lye? |

Dunne. No, my Lord, I know he cannot.

L. C. 7. And doft thou believe then. that h 3
a God of Truth? " -

Dunne. Yes, my Lotd, 1 do,
5 L.C. 7.

my
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- L.C. 7. Doft thou think, that that God of Truth
may immediately fink thee into Hell-Fire if thou
tellefta Lye?

Dusne. 1 do, my Lord.
Z. C. ¥. Doft thou believe, that he does obferve

every thing that thou thinkeft, fayeft, or doelt ;
knows the Secrets of thy Heart, and knows whe-

ther thou telleft a Lye or not, tho’ perhaps it may
be hid from us, and knows whether thou doit pre-

varicate or not ?

Duine. I know, the Lord does know all things.

L. C. ¥. Doft thou believe, that he knows the
Bufinefs that you and my Lady the Prifoner were
mlking of, as welt as you do ; that he hath -anﬁal-
mighty Power over all his Creatures, an all-pler-
cing Eye, that looks into the Hearts of every one
of them, and from which nothing can be concealed ?
Doft thou believe it poflible to conceal that very
Difcourfe of your’s from the knowledge of that in-
finite Being ?

Dunne. My Lord, T do believe that there 1s a
God above.

L. C. ¥. Lafk thee then again 3 doft thou believe,
that that God above, who 1s a God of Truth him-
felf, isomnifcient, omniprefent, to whom all Truth
is naked and open, that he knows every thing that
is etther thought, faid, or done by any of his Crea-
tures, fees and knows the Hearts of all Men ; Doft
thou believe all, this ?

[ He flood filent for a geod while,

L.C. 7. Friend, decetve not thy felf 5 the greac
God does obferve and know the {ecret workings of
thy Thoughts now, and how Truth ftruggles to eet
out, but Bafenefs and Villany keep it in: All the
private Imaginations of thy Heart are not only
known to him, but regiftred by him, and thy Con-
{cience will bear witnels to thy Accufation when thou
art called to anfwer for them, and anfwer for them
thou mult ; for the Scripture, that is the Word
of God, tells us, Tha! every vain Thought we muft
account for. Doft thou then believe, that any Dif-
courfe between you, tho’ never fo private, is pri-
vate from the Almighty, All-knowing God ?

Dunne. My Lord, I know it is not, nor can be,

L.C. 7. I thercfore once more adjure thee, as
thou wilt an{wer it to that God, that is the Searcher
of the Hearts and Trier of the Reins, to whom all
Hearts are open, and from whom no Secrets are
hid, that thon make me a plain Anfwer to my
Queftion 5 and as thou haft called God to bear
Witnefs to the Truth of the Evidence thou giveft
here in this Court, fo I charge thee, in his Name,
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L. C. ¥. Prithee tell us the Truth.thén now :
Thou art to know, that thou ftandeft in the Pre-
fence of the Ged of Truth, and haft called him to
witnefs, that thou would’ft tell the Truth,

Dunne, My Lord, Ido tell the Truth, as far as
I can remember, - o

L. C. #. Then what was :that you fold my Lady
Lifle, Barter did not know ? | |

Dunne, What Barter did not know, my Lord?

. L. C..J. Ay, is not that a plain Queftion ? Of

all the Witnefles that ever 1 met with, I never faw
thy fellow, . -

[ He flood a good while, and made no Anfwer.
L.C.¥. 1 hope, Gentlemen of the Jury, you take
notice of the ftrange and horrible Carriage of this
Fellow 3 and withal, you cannot bur obferve the
Sprrit of that fort of People, whit a villanous and
devilith one it is : Good God! that ever the thing
called Religion (a Word that People have fo much
abuled) fhould ever wind up Perfons to fuch a height
of Impiety, that it thould make them lofe the Be-
l1ef that there is a God of Truth in Heaven 3 that
fees and knows, obferves and regifters, and will
punifh and take vengeance of Falfhood and Per-

jury. It may well make the reft of Mankind, that

have any fort of Faith in a Deity and a future Life;
to abhor and deteft both the Men and their Re-
ligion, if fuch abominable Principles may be called
fo. A Twrk is a Saint to fuch a Fellow as this,
nay a Pagan would be afhamed to be thought to
have no more Truth in him. O blefled Fefus !
What an Age do we live in, and what a Genera-
tion of Vipers do we live among ? Sirs, is this that
you cail the Proseffant Religion 2 Shall fo glorious
a Name be applied to fo much Villany and Hypo-
crify 2 Is.this the Perfuafion you hope to live,

and die, and find Salvation in? Will any of you

“all, Gentlemen, be contented to die with a Lye

In your Mouth ? Do not you all expect, accord-
g to the Orthodox Dotrine of the true Church
of Eugland, that cternal Damnation will be the
Portion of Lyars? And thou wicked Wretch, how
durft thou appear to give Teflimony before even
an earthly Tribunal with fo much Impudence and
Falthood, when every Lye will coft thee {o dear,
cxcept a fincere and hearty Repentance, and the
infinite Mercy of the great God interpofe ¢ I
charge you once more, as you will anfwer it at the
Bar of the great Judge of all the World, that you
tell me what that Bulinefs was, you and the Pri-
{foner talked about : do you confider what a Con-
dition thou bringeft thy felf into by all this Shui-

fling and Prevarication, even as to any thing of
Mercy in this Life ; for indeed it is not fit thou
fhould’ft have the leaft Hopes of Mercy on this fide
Eternity, and truly there 1s no Man can tmagine

lefs than infinite Mercy can pardon fo flagitions a
Sin, one that fo impudently tells and ftands in a

Lye. F
[S¢il] be wonla make no Anfwer.
L. C. ¥. Jefus God! Was there ever fuch a Fel-
low in the World as thou arc? Prithce let me alk
thee once again, Doft thou believe that there 1s a
God, that this God is fpotlefs Truth and Purity
i felf 2 Doft thou believe thou haft a pre-
cious and immortal Soul, that is to live in ever-
lafting Blifs or eternal Mifery after this Life ac-

cordingly as thou carrieft it here 5 1f thou doft be-
lieve it, ought not the Concerns of that precious

and immortal Soul of thine to be much dearer to

thee than ten thoufand Worlds ¢ Does not the
blefled

to declare the Truth, and nothing but the Truth,
Now tell us what was the Bufinefs you fpoke of ?
But be miade no Anfuver.

L. C. Baron, Friend, mind what
my Lord fays to you, and confider,
how eafy a thing it is for a Man to fpeak Truth,
and give a plin Anfwer to a plain Queftion. You
cannot but uncerftand what my Lord afks of you ;
you faid even now, that you did tell the other
Witnefs, Barser, that my Lady afk’d you, whether
he knew any thing of the Bufinefs 5 and you told
her, he did not. Now my Lord would have you
tell us, what that Bufinefs was ?

[He feemed to turn kis Head on one fide,
out returi’d no Anfwer.

L. C.F. He is going to afk that Man t -
ther he fhall tel] 51& Tgruth. " there, whe

Dunne. No, my Lord, I afk
Queftion, !

IFilliam Mon-
tague Liq;

no Man any fuch
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viefled Word of Truth tell thee, What will i
profit @ Mai to gain the whole World, and lofe bis
son Soul o what fhall a Man give in exchanuge for
his Soud 2 Is not this the Voice of Scripture _itl'elf P
And wilt thou hazard fo dearand precious a thing for
a Lye, and an unprofitable Lye too ? Thou Wretch !
A1l the Mountains ard Hills in the World heapec
upon one another, will not cover thee from the
Vengeance of the great God for this Tranfgreflion
of falle Witnefs-bearing: What hopes can there be
for fo profligate a Villun as thou art, that fo' 1m-
pudently ftands in open dcfiance of the Omnipre-
fence, Omnifcience, and TJuftice of God, by‘pcr_ﬁft—_
ing in fo palpablea Lye? I therefore require 1t of
you, in his Name, to tcll me the Truth,

Dunpe. 1 cannot tell what to fay, my Lord.

L. C ¥. Good God! Was there ever fuch an
impudent Rafcal 2 Well, T will try once more, and
tell thee what I mean; you faid you told that ho-
neft Man (for truly he feems fo to be) that my
Lady afked you whether he knew of the Bufinels,
and you told her, he did not: Prithee be fo free as
to tell us what that Bulinefs wus.

[Dunne panfed bt world make no Anficer.

L. C. F. Prithee what didft thou mean, or thy
Lady mean, by that Bufinefs?

[He panfed again, but would make no Aufwer,

L.C.¥. Why, prithee doft thou think thou doit
her a Kindnefs by this way of proceeding ¢ Sure
thou can’ft not think fo; for fuch a fort of Carriage
were cnough to convié her, if there werc nothing
clie.

Dunne. Truly, my Lord, I do not think to do
her any Kindnefs at all.

L. C. ¥. Then prithee let me perfuade thee to
have fome kindnefs for thyfelf; look to thy own
Soul that is in great peril of everlafting Ruin and
Deftruction by thefe means 3 doft thou call this Re-
ligion ? It is a prodigious piece of Religion: Come,
pray tell me what Bufinefs it was you talked of :
You fhould not have afked me a Queftion fo often,
but I would have given you a plain Anfwer, though
I were not under the Obligation of an Qath, as you
are.

Dunne. My Lord, pray afk the
again once more, and [ will tell you,

L.C. 7. I willfo, and I'will afk it you with all
the Calmnefs, and Serioufnefs, and Candour, that I
can; if I know my own Heart, 1t 1s not in my Na-
ture to defire the Hurt of any body, much lefs to de-
light 1n their eternal Perdition; no, it is out of ten-
der compaffion to you that I ufe all thefe Words: I
would have thee to have fome regard to thy pre-
cious and immortal Scul, which is more valuable
than the whole World 5 reflect upon that Scripture
agatn which I mention’d before, which muft be true,
becaufe 1t Is the Words of him that is Truth itfelf:
What fhall it profit @ Man to gain the whole World,
and lofe bis own Soul? or what fhalla Man give in
exchange for bis Soul ? If that Soul of thine be taken
away, what is the Body fit for, but, like a putrid
Curcafe, to bethruft into and covered with the Duft
with which 1t was made : Therefore I afk you, with
a great Defire that thou may’lt free thyfelf from fo
great a Load of Falthood and Perjury, tell me
what the Bufinefs was you told the Prifoner, the
other Man Barker did not know ?

Duime. My Lord, 1 told her, he knew nothing
of our commg there.

L. C. 7. Nay, nay, that can never be it, for he
came along with thee,

Queftion over
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Dunne. He did not know any thing of my co-
ming there till I met him on the way.

L. C. . Prithee mind my Qucftion fure enough
thou hadft told him whither thou wert gong, or
olfe he could not have been thy Guide; fo that he
muft needs know of thy coming there: but what
was the Bufinefs that thou told’ft her, he did not
know.

Dunne. She afked me, whether I did not know
that Hicks was a Nonconformift,

L. C. 7. Did my Lady Lifle afk you that Que-
{tion ?

Dunie. Yes, my Lord, I told her I did not,

L. C.%. Butthatisnot my Queftion: What was
that Bufinefs that he did not know ¢

Dunne. Tt was the fame thing 3 whether Mr, Iicks

was 2 Nonconformilt.
L. C. #. That cannot be alls there muft be fome-
thing more 1n it. o |
Dumic. Yes, my Lord, itisall 5 1know nothing

Mmore, .
L. C. ¥. What did fhe fay to you when you told

her, he did not know it?¢
Dunne. She did not fay any thing, my Lord.
L. C. . Why doft thou think, thatafterall this
2ins that I have been at to get an Anfwer to my
Queftion, thatthou can’ft banter me with {uch fham
Stuff as this? Hold the Candle to his Iace, that
we may fee his brazen Face. _

Duize. My Lord, 1 tell you the Truth.

L.C. ¥ Did fhe afk thee whether that Man Knew
any thing of a Queftion fhe had afked thee, and
that was only of being 2 Nonconformuft.

Dunne. Yes, my Lord, that was all.

L. C.¥. Thatisall Nonfenfe ; doft thou imagine
that any Man hercabouts is fo weak as to believe
thee?

Dunwe. My Lord, I am fo baulked, Ido not
know what I fay my felf; tell me what you would
have me to fay, for I am clutter’d out of my Senfes.

L.C.¥. Why, prithee Man, there’s no body
baulks thee but thy own felf; thou art afked Que-
ftions that are as plain as any thing n the World
can be: it is only thy own depraved naughty Heart
that baulks both thy Honefty and Underftanding,
if thou haft any ; it is thy ftudying how to prevari-
cate, that puzzles and confounds thy Intellect: but
1 fee all the pains in the World, and all Compaffion
and Charity is loft upon thee, and therefore I will
fay no more to thee,

Mr. Pollexfen. My Lord, becaufe he pretends to
Ignorance what Hicks was, I dclire to afk Bar-
ter one Queftion : Pray, what did he tell you con-
cerning his Carriage towards thefe People ?

Barter. My Lord, he told me that he had con-
cealed them in his Houfe ten Days before.

Dunne. That I never did in my Life.

Barter. 1 know not whether you did or no, but
you told me fo; and I made anfwer to him agam,
my Lord, I wonder how he were able to keep them
without being difcovered, there being fuch fearch ;
and he anfwered, He did keep them ma Cham-
ber all day, and then they walked out at night;
for the Searches of the Houfes were ufually ac
night.

Dunne. My Lord, I can bring teftimony to the
contrary.

L. C. ¥. But really I believe it will be no ftrange
thing for me to fay, I do believe him rather than
thee s I would I had half as much reafon to believe
thee, as I have to believe him: I would fain have

“thee
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thee fpeak truth, if I could. What fay you to the harbouring Rebels, and giving Entertainment to

ftion I afked you ?
Q_;gmz;w. I cannot tell what to fay, my Lord.

1. C. . Say the Truth, Man,
Dfmne.?l dof as I hope for mercy, my Lotd.
L. C. §. Do'ft thou hope for mercy ? Thou hat

very little reafon for it, I aflure thee. Well, I

will try thee with another Queftion: Didft thou

rell that Man, that it was the beflt Jobb thou ever
hadft in thy Lafe? _

Dunne. No, my Lord, Idid not.

L. C. . Nor nothing to that purpofe ?

Dunire. No, my Lord. |
L. C. ¥. What fay you, Barter, did not he tell

you fo? '

Barter. Yes, my Lord, he did; and that he
thould never lack Moncy again as long as he liv’d.
L.C.¥. ThenI alk you one Queftion more,
Barter 3 did you tell this to Col. Penruddock ¢

Barter. Yes, Idid, my Lord. _

L. C. #. Then that will fortify his Teftimony
therefore fwear him, becaufe I would make thefe
concealed Wretches (for in my conicience I know
there are fome fuch in the bottom of this Bufinefs)
know, that the Truth will out one way or other.
And as for this Fellow, Iexpect it from all you
Gentlemen of the King’s Counfel, and others that
are concerned, that you take notice and remember
what has paffed here, and that an Information of
Perjury be preferred againft this Fellow.

' [Then Col. Penruddock was fawori.

L. C. f Col. Penruddock, upon the Oath you
have taken, did that Man, Barfer, come to you;
and what did he fay to yon ?

Col. Peuruddock, My Lord, that Man, Barter,
came to my Houle 1n the Morning, upon Mouday,
and told me, he had been with one Duusne, upon a
Journey to Mis, Lifl’s Houle, to get Entertain-
ment for fome People; and that they had appoint-
ed to meet him the Tuefday following, between nine
and eleven, upon Salisbury-Plain, and there, if 1
pleafed, I might take them. I ordered him to go
according to the Appointment, and withal, I fent
a Servant of my own to watch when they came by ;
but it happen’d, I{uppofe, by their taking another
way, that he miffed of them: but Barser left word,
that 1n cafle he did not find them there, we muft
conclude, that he was gone with them to my Lady
LiflesHoufe s and he told me withal, fays he, I
believe they are Rebels, becaufe he that defired me
to be their Guide, fald the fame to me. So ear-
ly the next Morning I took fome Soldiers with
me, and befet my Lady Life's Houle ; it was a
pretty winle before Icould get any body in the
Houfe to hear: at length that Man that they fay
was the Baliff, Carpenter, came cuts and I fid to
him, Friend, you had beft be free and Ingenuous,
and difcover who are in your Lady’s Houfe, for I
am fure there were fome Strangars came hither laft
Night; let me know who they are, and fhew me
wiat part of the Houfe they are in, He did con-
fefs to me there were Strangeis in the Houfe,
and pomted to fuch part of the Houfe; but pray,
favs ke, do not rell my Vhitrels of it. According-
ly we went in, and im:m:diately we took Mr, Hicks
and this fame Degwe in the Male houfe,

L. C. 7. Was Duuire taken in the Male-houfe ?
Col. Pearuddock, Yes, he had covered himfelf
with fome fort of Stuff there,

L.CF. Well, what did you do then ?

Col, Pearzddock. My Lady afterwards coming to
us, [ reid h{:l', PVLELIHII'I, you have done very il in
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the King’s Enemies, Saith the, I know nothing of
them ;5 Iam a Stranger to it, Pray, faid I, Ma-
dam, be fo free and ingenuous with me, and fo
kind to yourfelf, asif there be any other Perfon
that 1s concealed In any part of your Houfe, (for I
am {ure there 1s fome body elfe) as to deliver him up,
and you fhall come to no further trouble. She de-
nied it,and faid,I know nothing of them: But we went
on, and fearched, and at laft difcovered the other
Man Nelthorp, hid in a Hole by the Chimney,

L. C. J. Dunue, how came you to hide yourfelf
in the Malt-houfe ?

Deupne. When I heard the ftir and buftle, I went
thro’ the Chamber where I lay, and came into that
Room where I was taken.

L. C. 7. When thou heard’ft a {tir and a buftle,
why wert thou afraid of any thing.

Danne, My Lord, I was frighted at the noife.

L. C.}. Prithee, what need’{t thou be afraid, for
thou did’lt not know Hicks, nor Neltborp; and my
Lady only afked thee, whether Hicks were a Non-
coniormift Parfon : Thou art a very innocent Soul,
and furely needeft no occafion to be afraid, 1 doube
there was fomething of that Bufinefs in the Cafe thas
we were talking of before, if we could but get out
of thee what ir was.

Duine. My Lord, T heard a great noife in the
Houle, and I did not know what it meant ; and {o
I went and hid myfelf. '

L.C. 7. Alack-a-day ! That is very ftrangg, that
thou fhould’lt hide thyfelf for a little noife, when
thou kneweft nothing of the Bufinefs, nor wert ac-
quainted with any thing of the matter at all.  Bue
Col. Peuinddock, T would ak you one Queftion
more : did that honelt Man tell you, that Drane
had told him, that it was the beft Jobb that ever he
had n his life, and that he fhould want no Money ?

Col. Penruddock. 1 cannot tell that truly, my
Lord ; I do not remember that : but he faid, he
apprchended them to be Rebels, and that Danse
told him as much,

L. C. 7. What do you fay to that, Dumue ? It
feems you told Barter, that you apprehended them
to be Rebels ¢

Dunne, Tapprehend them for Rebels, my Lord !

L. C. ¥. No, no, you did not apprehend them
for Rebels, but you hid them for Rebels. But did
you fay to Barter, that you took them to be Re-
bels ?

Dunne. 1 take them to be Rebels !

L.C. #. You Blockhead, Iafk you, did you tell
him fo ?

Duune, 1 tell Barter {o!

L. C. 7. Ay, 1s not that a plain Queftion ?

Dunne, I am quite cluttered out of my fenfes ; I
do not know what I fay.

A Candle being fiill beld nearer bis Nofe.

L.C.¥. But to tell the Truth, would rob thee of
none of thy Senfes, if ever thou had’{t any ; but it
fhould feem that neither thou, nor thy Miftrefs the
Prifoner had-any, for fhe kncw nothing of it neither,
though fhe had fent for them thither.

Met., Pollexfen. Pray, Col. Penruddeck, did you
tell her you came to fearch for Rebels 2

Col. Penruddock. Yes, Sir, I told her as foon as |
{aw her ; but we had a good while befet the Houfe
betore any body anfwered us; at length, there were
fome Ladies, or Gentlewomen, I imagined them to
be her Daughters, that upon our noife looked out
at the Window ; and I told them there were Re-
bels in the Houfe, and I required them in the King’s

- Name
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Name to be deliver’d to me ; but I faw not my
Lady till after I had brought out Hicks and Dune.

L. C. ¥. What faid the to you ? _

Col, Penruddock. She faid, fhe knew nothing of
their being in the Houfe 5 but I told her there was
fome body elfe befides, and fhe would do well to
deliver him without trouble : but fhe denying of
it, we fearch further, and found Nelthorp, as 1

told you. ' '
L.C. . But fhe denied it at firft, 1t feems P

Lifle. My Lord, Lhope 1 {hall not be condent-
ned without being heara,

L. C. 7. No, Ged forbid, Mrs, Lifle 5 that was
a fort of prattice i your Hufband’s time ;3 you
know very well what I mean : Bui God be thanked,
it is not jo now ; the King’s Courts of Law never
condemn without hearing.  Col, Peninddock, have
j*ou sny more to fay ? _

Col. Perruddock. No, my Lord; but here 1s one
Mr. Dswding, that was with me when I {earched
the Houfe,

L. C. ¥. Swear him. [7Vhich wwas done.

Mr. Pollexfen. Mr, Dowding, pray did you go
with Col. Peirruddock to Mrs. L:fi’s Houfe ?

Mr. Drwodiig. Yes, my Lord : We came to the
Houfe, and befet the Houfe round, fome to the
back Gate, and fome to the fore Gate 5 we called
almoft half an hour before we got in; and had
found two, and we came to my Lady 5 fhe faid, fhe
knew nothing of any bedy being 1n the Houle

Lifle. My Loid, this Fellow that now {peaks
againft me, broke open my Trunk, and ftole away
a great part of my belt Linnen ; and fure, my Lord,
thofe Perfons that rob me, are not fit to be LEvi-
dences againft me, becaufe it behoves them that I
be convicted, to prevent their being indicted for
Felony.

L. C. . Look you, Friend, you fay you went
with Col. Pearuddock to fearch the Houfe, did you
find any body there ?

Dowding. Yes, my Lord, I found this fame
Duzne in a hictle hole in the Malt-houle,

L. C. F. Was he covered, ornot ¢

Dowding, e had taken fome {tuff” or other to
cover him.

L. C, 7. Did you hind Hicks there ¢

Dowding., Yes, my Lord, we did find one that
faid his Naome was [icks.

L.C.7J. Is that the fame Hicks that is in Salisbury
Goal ?

Dswatiig. Yes, my Lord, it is; Ifaw him yefter-
day at the George n Salishury, when he had that
Difcourfe with thofe other Gentlemen.

Mr, Pollexfen. Swear Carpenter and his Wife.

[ W hich was done.

Dewding. My Lord, Hicks acknowledged before
me, that he was at Keiifham, in the Duke of Mpn-
sotil’s Army,

Mr. Pollexfen. Come, Mrs. Carpeuter, tell my
Lord and the Jury, did you know the Time when
thefe Men came to your Lady’s Houfe ?

L. C. 7. Isthis the Baliff’s Wife ?

Mr, Pellexfes. Yes, my Lord, it s,

L. €. F. Well then, what fay you to the Que-
fiton : Do you know the Time when they came ?

Mrs, Carpenrier, Yes, my Lord, they came at
mht,

L.C. 7. Did you fee them there ?

Mrs. Cerpenter, Yes.

L. C.F. Were they ledged there ?

Mrs. Caipenter. Yes 5 but I never made the Bed.

L.C.J. Whodid?
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Mrts. Carpenter. My Lord, 1 cannot tell.

L. C. ¥. Had they any Supper or Victuals there 2

Mys. Carpenter. Yes, they had.

L. C. ¥. Who drefs’d 1t ?

Mrs. Carpenter. 1 did. '

L. C. ¥. By whole Order did you drefs 1t ¢

Mrs, Carpenter, By my Lady’s Order. .

L. C. ¥. Prithee where did they eat their Meat >

Mrs, Garperter, In the Chamber, my Lord, wikre
they lay.

L. C. ¥, Who was with them¢

Mrs. Carpenter. My Lord, I cannot tell, for I
did not ftay in the Room,

L. C. ¥. Didft thou fec them when they came
into the Room ?

Mirs. Caspenter. My Lord, I drefs’d the Meat,
and carried it within the Door, and my Hufband
fet it upon the Table.

L. C. ¥. Prithee tell me who was with them:
VWas thy Lady there?

Mis. Carpenter, My Lady was in prefence there
then.

L. C. F. How long did they ftay below ftairs be-
{ore they went up?

Mrs. Carpenier. Truly, my Lord, T cannot tell.

L. C. ¥. Did your Lady ufe to fup below ftairs or
above ?

Mrs. Carpennler. She uvled to {up below, my
Lord,

Mr. Polexfen. My Lord, if your Lordfhip pleafe,
this Woman aad her Hufband are both unwilling
Witnefles; but we will examine the Hufband, and
fee what we can get out of him. Hark you, Car-
penter, aid you meet with this Fellow, Dune, at
his firft coming to your Lady’s Houfe ?

Mr. Carpenter, Yes, my Lord, Idid fee him
there on the Salfurday.

L. C. 7. Well then, lecme afk you 2 Queftion;
and befure you tell me the Truth, for it may be I
know it alrcady; did be offer you a Letter to be
deliver’d to your Lady?

Mr, Caipenter. No, my Lord.

L. C. 7. Whatdo you luy, Barter?

Barter. 1 faw him produce it to Mr, Carpenter,
but he refufed to meddle with i,

Mr. Carpeiter, My Lord, he afked me, if my
Lady would give Entertainment to one Hicks, and
another Perfon, but he did not know who that Per-
fon was.

L. C. ¥. Did he {peak of another Perfon ?

Mr. Carpenier. Yes, he did.

L. C. 7. Who was that other Perfon?

Mr. Carpenter. 1 did alk his Name, but he faid,
he did not know him.

L.C.¥. Well then, when they came there on
the Tuefday-night, how did you recerve them ?

Mr. Carpenter. 1did not receive them.

L. C. 7. Did not you light the Candle, and bring
1t in a Lanthorn, to light him into the Stable 2

Mr. Carpenter. My Lord, that was afterwards. .

L.C. 7. Did not you bring the Men into the
Houfe ?

Mz, Carpeinter. No, my Lord, indeed T did noc

L. C. ¥. Did not you fee them all night ?

Mr. Carpenter. Yes, my Lord.

L. C, 7. Then where did you fee them firft?

Mr. Carpenter. In the Room where they fupp’d
and lay.

L. C.¥. Did not you meet them in the Court-
yard ?

Mr, Carpenter. No, my Lord.

L.C Y,
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7..C. F. Who gave you Directions to light Dune

into the Stable! |
} Mr. Carpenter. They told me his Horfe was out

in the Yard.
L.C.¥. Who told you fo?
Mr. Carpenter. The Men did.

L. C.¥. Wheredid they fup : _

Mr. Carpenter. In the Room :}bDVE ftairs,

Z.C. 5. Who fupp’d along with them?

Mr. Carpenter. 1 cannot fay any body fupp’d
with them,

L. C. . Was not my Lady there? |

Mr. Carpenter. She was in the Room, but I did
not fee her eat any thing, _

L.C. ¥. What time of the night did they come?

Mr, Carpenter. About Ten of the Clock,

L.C. ¥. And where did they lie ¢

Mr. Carpenter, In the Room where they fupped.

L.C.¥. Who lay there?

Mr. Carpenter. Hicks and Nelthorp lay there,

L. C.F. Was Nelthorp named there ¢

Mr. Carpenter. No, I never heard of his Name
till after he was taken.

L.C, ¥. What kind of Man was he ?

My, Carpenter. A tall, thin, black Man.

L.C.¥. Well, what can you fay more ?

Mr, Carpenter. My Lord, this Perfon has fwore,
that a Letter was offered me, but I refufed ir:
but I affure your Lordfhip I never faw any Letter,

Barter, Tam fure he met you, and, as [ remem-
ber, there was a Letter produced.

L.C. ¥. Thou fhould’ft not be angry with him,
for he fpoke very kindly of thee, that thou refu-
{fed’lt to meddle in it, and thereupon Duunne went in
to thy Lady, and deliver’d his Meflage to her.

Mzr. Carpenter. That, my Lord, I acknowledge,

L. C. ?. Tl’lﬁl’l, prithee let me afk thee another
Queftion : Did you carry any Beer up into the
Room ¢

Mr. Carpenter. My Lady gave order for the Pro-
vifion.

L. C. ¥. Did you make Dunse drink ?

Mr, Carpenter. No, I did not.

L.C.F. Did you offer him any Drink?

Mr. Carpenter. My Lord, - I did not fee him
drink at all.

L.C. ¥, What fay you, good Woman ; Did not
your Lady fup there ?

Mr. Carpenter. My Lord, my Wife was little
there at all,

Mr. Rumfey. Now, my Lord, Dunne fays he will
tell all, whether 1t make for him or againft him,

L.C. 7. Let bhim but tell the Truth, and I am
fatisfied.

Dunne, Sure, my Lord, I never entertained thefe
Men a night in my Houf in my Life; but this
Hicks fent that Man to me, to goto my Lady Lifi's,
to know whether the would pleafe to entertain him
And when I came, my Lady afked me, whether he
had been in the Army or no? I told her, Icould
not tell, I did not know that he was, She then afl’d
me, 1f he had no body elfe with him? Itold her, I
believed there was: This is the very Truth of i,
my Lord, Tafked her, might the Men be enter-
tain’d ? She faid they might. So when we came to
my Lady Lifl’s, onthe Tuefday night, fomebody
took the two Horfes, Icannot tell who, if I were

to die; the two wentin; and after I had fet up my

Horfe, 1 went in along with Car

penter up into the
‘Chamber to my Lady, and to this Hicks and Nel

* This avas wery unfair dealing, 10 fit as
nwould have the fame Influence, 15" in Words he difclaimed it
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shorps and when I caine there, I heard my Lady
bid them welcome to her Houfe 5 and Mr. Carpen-
ter, or the Maid, I cannot tell which, brought in

the Supper, and fet it on the Table.

L.C. ¥ And did’lt thou eat or drink with them
in the Room, ornot?

Dunne. My Lord, I will tell every thing that [
know s I confefs I did both cat and drink there in
the Room.

L.C. 7. T pity thee with all my Soul, and pray
to God Almighty for thee to forgive thee, and to
the bleffed Jefus to mediate for thee; and I pray
for thee with as much earneftnefs, as I would for my
own Soul ; and I beg of thee once more, as thou re-
gardeft thy own eternal Welfare; to te}] all the Truth.

Dunne. My Lord, [ did never know thefe Men
were In the Army when [ carried the Meflage to
my Lady Life’s, nor never did entertain them in
my Houfe in my life-time, fo much as one Nighe.
- L. C. 7 Prithee, I do not afk thee what thou
did’{t not, but what thou did’ft ?

Dunne. My Lord, T will tell all T know.

L. C. ¥. What Difcourle had you that Night at
the Table in the Room ?

Dunpe, 1 cannot tell what Difcourfe truly, my
Lord, there was,

L. C. 7. Was there nothing of coming from be-
yond Seas, who came from thence, and how they
came? Come, I would have it rather the Effeét of
thy own Ingenuity, than lead thee by any Queftions
that 1 can propound ; come, tell us what was the
Difcourfe,

Dunne. 1 do not remember all the Difcourfe. .

L.C. 7. Prithee, let meafk thee one Queltion,
and anfwer me it farrly ; Did’ft thou hear Nel-
thorp’s Name named in the Room ?

Dunne, My Lord, Icannot tell whether he were
called Nelthorp, but it waseither Crofts or Nelthorp,
I am {ure one of them.

L. C.7. Prithee be ingenuous, and let’s have the
Truth on’¢ ?

Dunne. My Lord, [ am ingenuous, and will be fo.

L.C.%F. 1 will aflure you, Nelthorp told me all
the Story before I came out of Town 2

Dunne. 1 think my Lord, he was called Nelthorp in
the Room, and there was fome Difccurfe about him.

L.C.7. Ay, there was unqueltionably, and [
know thou wert by, and that made me the more
concern’d to prefs upon thee the Danger of for{wear-
ing thy felf. |

Dunne. My Lady afk’d Hicks who that Gentle-
man was, and he faid it was Nelthorp, as I remem-
ber.

L. C, 7. Very well, and upon that Difcourle with
Nelthorp, which [ had in Town, did I give particu-
far Direction, that the Quilawry of Nelthorp thould
be brought down hither, for he told me particular-
ly of all the Paffages and Dilfcourfes of hisbeing be-
yond Sea, and coming from beyond Sea®: T would
not mention any {uch thing as any piece of Evidence
to influence this cale, bur I could not but tremble
to think, after what I knew, that any one thould
dare fo much to prevaricate with God and Man, as
to tell fuch horrid Lyes in the Face of a Courrt,

Dunne, What does your Lordfhip afk me?

~L.C. ¥. Come I will afk thee a plain Queftion ;
Was there no Difcourfe there abour the Battle, and
of their being the Army ?

Dunne. There was fome fuch Dilcourfe, my
Lord.

Judse and yet to give Evidence bimfelf againft the Prifoner, for fo in trath it awds, and
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L.C.¥. Ay, prithee now tell us what that Dif-
courfe was?

Dunne, My Lord, T will tell.you when 1 have
recolleéted it, if you will give me time till to-mor-
row Morning.

L.C.¥. Nay, but we cannot ftay fo long, our
Bufinefs muft be difpatched now ; burl would have
all People confider what a Reafon there is, that
they thould be prefled to join with me in hearty
Prayers to Almighty God, that this Sin of Lying
and Perjury may never be laid at thy door, 'What
fay’ft thou ? Prithee tell us what the Difcourfe was?

Dunne. My Lord, they did ralk of Fighting,
but I cannot exactly tell what the Difcourfe was ¢

L.C.F. And thou faid’ft thou did’ft eat and drink
with them in the fame Room ?

Dunne. 1did fo my Lord, 1 confefs it.
L.C.%. And it was not a little Girl that lighted

thee to Bed, or condulted thee in ?

Drane, It was not a licde Girl,

L.C.f. Who was it then ?

Duune. It was Mr. Carpenter, my L.ord,

L.C. 7. And why did’ft thou tell fo many Lyes
then? Jefu God! that we fheuld live to fee any
fuch Creatures among Mankind, nay, and among
us too, to the Shameand Reproach be it fpcken of
our Nation and Religion: Is this that chat 1s called
the Proreftant Religion, a thing {o much boafted
of, and pretended to? We have heard a great deal
of Clamour againit Popery and Difpenfarions, what
Difpenfations pray does the Prowfiant Religion
give for fuch Practicesas thefe? I piy thee with ali
my Soul, and pray for thee, but it cannot buc
make all Mankind to wemble and be filled with
Horror, that fuch a wretched Creature fhould live
upon the Earch: Prichee be free, and tell us what
Difcourfe there was?

Dunue, My Lord, they did talk of Fighting, but
I cannot remember what it was.

L.C.F. Did you lic with them?

Dunne. No, my Lord, I did not.

L.C. 7. Well, I fee thou wilt anfwer nothing in-
genuoully, therefore I will trouble my felf no more
with thee: Go on with your Evidence, Gentle-
men.

Mr. Fenuings. My Lord, we have done, we
have no more Witnefles,

£L.C. 7. Then you that are for the Prifoner at
the Bar, now is your time to make your De-
fence ; you hear what is charged upon you, and
you wiat 2 kind of Shuffling here has been to fti-
fle the Truth, and I am forry to find the Occafion
to fpealk it, thatunder the Figure and Form of Re-
ligion fuch Practices thould be carried on, What
have you to fay for your felf ?
~ Lifl. My Lord, that which I have to fay to ir,
15 this: I knew of no body’s coming to my Houfe
bpt Mr, Hicks, and for him 1 was inform’d that he
did ablcond, by reafon of Warrants that were out
agamndt him for preaching in private Meetings, but
1 never heard that he was in the Army, nor that Ne/-
t50i°p was to come with him 3 and for that Reafon it
was, that I fent to him to come by night : but for the
other Man Nelthorp, T never knew it was Nelthorp,
I could die upon it, nor did not know what Name
he had, il after he came into my Honfe ; bus as
for Mr. Hicks,” I did not in the leaft fufpe@ him to
have been in the Army, being a Prefbyterian Mi-
nifter, thatufed to preach, and not to fight.

L.C.57. But T will tell you, there is not one of
thofe lying, faiveling, canting, Prefbyterian Raf-
cals, but one way or other had a hand in the late
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horrid Confpiracy and Rebellion ; upon my Con-
{cience I believe it, and would have been as deep in
the a&ual Rebellion, had it had any litle Succefs,
as that other Fellow Hicks 3 their Principles carry
them to it; Prefbytery has all manner of Villany
in it, nothing but Prefbytery could lead that Fel-
low Dusiwe to tell fo many Lyesas he has here told ;
for thew me a Prefbyterian, and 1 will engage to
fhew a Jying Knave, .

Lifle. My Lord, I abhorred both the Principles
and Practices of the late Rebeilion.

L.C.5¥. 1 am fure you had great reafon for it.

Liflz. Befides, my Lord, Ifhould have been the
moft ungrateful Perfon living, fhould 1 have been
difloyal, ot afted any thing again{t che prefent King,
confidering how much 1 was obliged to hum tor my
Eftate,

L.C.¥. Oh then! Ungratelul, ungrateful adds
to the Load which was between Man and Man, and
is the bafeft Crime that any one can be guilry of.

Lifl, My Lord, had Ibeen try’d in Longon,
could have had my Lady Alergevenny, and feveral
other Perfons of Qualiy, that could have teflified
how much I was againft this Rebellion, and with
what Dezeftation I {poke againit iz, during the time
of ir; for I wasall char time at Lezdoi, and ftaid
there till after the Duke of Monmsalh was be-
headed 5 and if 1 had cerrainly known the time oi
my Tiial in the Country, I could have had the
Teflimony of thofe Perfons of Honour for me.
But, my Lord, I am told, and io Ithoughtic
would have been, that I fhould not have been try’d
as 2 Trajror for harbouring him, till ke was Con-
vict for a Traitor. My Lord, I would rake my
Death of it, that I never knew of Nelthorp’s com-
ing, nor any thing of his being Neltharp s I never
afl’d his Nane, and if he had rold it me, I had
then remember’d the Proclamatiop. 1 do afiure
you, my Lord, for my cwn part, Idid abhor
thofe: that were in that horrid Plot and Confpiracy
againft the King’s Lite; I know my Duty to my
King better, and have abways exerciled it, I defy
any body inthe world that ever knew the contrary,
to come and give Tettimony.

L.C.*}. Have youany more to {ay ?

Liflz. As to what they fay of my denyirg Nel-
therp to be in my Houfe, I wasw great Conlterna-
tion and Fear of the Scldiers, who were very rude
and violent, and could not be refiratned by their
Officers from Robbery, and plundering my Houle.
And I befeech your Lordfhip to make that Con.
ftruétion of it; and T humbly beg of your Lord-
fliip not to harbour an ill Opinion of me, becaufs
of thofe falle Reports that go about of me, relating
to my Carriage towards the old King, that I was
any ways confenting to the Death of King Clharles L
for, my Lord, that 1s as falfe as God 15 true; my
Lord, I was not out of my Chamber all the day,
in which that King was beheaded, and I believe
I thed more Tears for him, then any Woman then
living did 5 and this the late Countefs of Moumouth,
and my Lady Maerlborongn, and my Lord Chan-
cellor Hyde, if they werealive, and twenty Perfons
of the moft eminent Quality, could bear witnefs
for me. And I do repeat it my Lord, as I hope
to attain Salvation, I never did know Nelthorp, ner
never did fee him before in my Life, nor did X
know of any body’s coming, but Mr. Hicks, and
him I did know to be a Nonconformift Minifter
and there being, as is well known, Warrants out to
apprehend all Nonconformift Mintilters, I was wil-
ling to give him fhelter from thefe Warrants, 1

‘Was
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was come down but thaf:_WetI; into _the Country,
when this Man came to me from Mr. Hicks, to know
if he might be receiv’d at my Houfe ; and 1 tola
him, if Mr. Hicks plf';‘as’d, he mrg;ht come upon
Tuefday in the Lvenmg, and f(hould be wclcon;e';
but withal I told him, 1 muft go away the Monday
following from that place, but while I ftaid I would
enterrain him.  And I befeech your Lordfhip torbe-
lieve, I had no intencion to harbour him burasa Non-
conformift, and that 1 knew was no Treafon: It can-
not be imagined, that I w_ould venture the hazard ot
my own Life, and the Ruin both of myft_lf and Cbﬂ-
dren, to conceal one that I never knew in my Life,
-« 1 did not know Mr. Nelthorp, but had heard of
him inthe Proclamation, And for that white-headed

Man that {peaks of my denyirg them, as | {aid be-

fore, he wasone of them that rifled and Plﬂnder’d my
Houfe, and tore open my Trunk ; and if I fhould noc

be convicted, he and the reft of them may be call’d
+o an acconnt for what they did, for they oughtnot to
bove meddled with my Goods: Befides, my Lord,
1 have a SWitnels that can teftify what Mr. Ne/-
thorp {1id, when he was examined before ———

L. C. ¥, Look you, Mrs. Lifle, that will fignify
little s but if you have any Witnefles, call them,
we will hear what they fay: YWho 1s that Man you
fpeak of | _ _

Lifle. George Creed his Name 1sy there he is.

L. C. ¥. Well, what do you know ?

Creed. 1 heard Nelthorp fay, that my Lady Lifk
did not know of his coming, nor did not know his
Name; nor had he cver told his Name, till he
named himfelf to Col, Penruddoct: when he was
taken.

L.C. 7. Well, this 1s nothing ; fhe is not in-
diGted tor harbouring Nelthorp, but Hicks: Have
you any more Witnefles?

Lifle. No, my Lord.

L. C.F. Have you any more to fay for yourfelf?

Liflo. My Lord, I came but five days before this
into the Country

L.C. 7. Nay, I cannot tell when yon came into
the Country, nor I do not care; it feems you came
time enough to harbour Rebels.

Liflz. 1 ftaid in Loudon il all the Rebellion was
paft and over; and I never uttered a good Word
for the Rebels, nor ever harbour’d {o much asa
good Wifh for them in my Mind: I know the King
1s my Sovereign, and I know my Duty to him,
and if I would have ventured my Life for any thing,
it fhould have been to {erve him, I know it is his
due, and 1 owed all I had in the World to him:
But tho’ I could not fight for him my felf, my Son
did ; he was actually 10 Arms on the King’s fide in
this Bufinefs 5 [ inftructed him always in Loyalry,
and fent hun thither s it was I that bred him up to
fisht for the King. ~

L. C.J. Well, have vou done?

Lil. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. 7. Have youa mind to fay any thing more ?

Lifiz. No, my Lord.

L.C. 7. Then command Silence,
[ﬁ”}:}fﬁ:} Wit done 5}* Proclamation.

Lfe. My Lord, may I fpeak one word more?
My Lord, T beleech you afford e your Patience
and your Advice; Keinfbam, where Mr. Hicks is
faid to Ee in Arims, does not lie in this County.

L.C. 7. That is nothing: But the Treafon you
committed was in this County,

Lyiz. But 1 aflore your Lordfhip I never knew
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he was 1n the Army§ and for dny Talk or Dil
courfe in private abour his or Nelthorp’s bzing -
there, I never heard any: indeed one of them
afked me, whether the Duke of Monmouth was be-
headed 5 and I told them, yes, for fo he was before
I came out of Town: And that is all the Difcourfe
that I can remember, wherein he is concerned.

L.C. 7. Well, have yonany more to fay now?

Lifle. No, my Lord.

L. C.F. Then Gentlemen of the Jury: * This
1s 2 Cale of very great Example, and withal, of
very great Weight and Moment ; wherein the In-
terelt of the Publick, and the Life of a Perfon
of Quality and Fortune are put inro your Hands.
And the great Bufinefs which has derained both us
and you fo long, has been an endeaveur (if it were
poflible) to find out the Truth ; which indeced is
the Bufinels of all Enquiries of this nature : We fic
nat here, nor are you there upon any other Errand ;
nor 1s any thing defired by the Court, or required
of you, but that the Truth may be made manifeft.
“I'ts that you are bound to, by the Qaths you have
taken in this Service 5 and in that Inquivy you are
to be guided by the Evidence that has here been gi-
ven forth unto you; for your Oath is, That yeu fhall
well and truly try, and true deliverance makz, be-
tween our Sovereign Lord toe King and the Prifoner at
the Bar, accordiig to your Evidence, a% you fhall
anfwer it to God,  So thar, Gentlemen, this Oath of
yours being your Dire€tion what is your Dury, and
you being all Perfons of Quality and Reputation In
your Country, Men of grear Uunderflanding and
known Integrity, 1t is to be hoped, that not oy
thing can move you, cither to Compallion of the
Prifoner on the one hand, or her Allegations and
Proteflations of Innocence 3 nor on the other hand,
to be influenced by any thing that comes {rom the -
Court, or is infinuated by the learned Counfel
at the Bar: but that you will entirely confider
what Evidence has been given to you, and being
ourded by that Itvidence alone, youthatare Judges
of the Faé, will let us know the Truth of that
Fact by a fincere and upright Verdict.

And imafmuch, Gentlemen, as the Evidence
has been long in giving (tho’ the fubitantial part of
it, perhaps, be in a narrow compafs) I will repear
It to you, as near as [ can, with all Faithfulnefs
and Integrity, as I fhall an{wer it to the great Judge
of Heaven and Earth, before whom you, and
we, and all muft ftand to be judged ; without any
Aggravation or Alteration on the one fide, and
without any Omiffion on the other : And I fhall
do it, purely to help your Memories who are to de-
termine the Faét; and I do pray and adjure, that
you would do equally, according to the Truft repo-
{ed n you, and according to the Oath that you bave
taken, And I would repeat it once more, that you
are not to be led by any Infinuations of che Prifoner,
nor by any Allegations from the Learned Counfel,
wholc Bufinefs it is to open the Fact; but that Fact
{o opened is no further toguide ycu in your Enquiry,
taan as it 1s proved.

Gentlemen, before I come to the parucular Evi-
dence of this Fa&, I mult crave leave to fay fome-
thing of a Matter in general that is very well
known. Itwasvery well obferved by that Learned
Gentleman that opened the Caufe at the begtaning,
that we are all of us here unfpeakably oblig’d to

. blefs the areat God of Heaven, the Father of

Mercies, and praifed for ever be his holy Name,

2wl avas then paff Seveny, avas fo il maved, that fboe flept during great part of thir Charge.
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declares his Refolution to preferve them fafe in

for his infinite Goodnefs in preferving and protecting
us from the imminent Ruin which the late horrid
and deteftavle Rebellion would (had it {ucceeded)
have inevitably brought upon us3 had not he of his
own infinite Mercy and gracious Goodnefs protected

and delivered us from our Enemies, they had un-
doubtedly fwallowed us up quick : But asthe At-
tempts of our Enemies were very malicious, fo the
Prefervation and Deliverance of our good God was
very great and fignal,

And we have reafon to blefs that great Gt}d for
many Deliverances he has been pleafed to give us;
we are by no means to forget his Mercy towards
our late Sovereign of blefled Memory, and with
bim towards us, when he brought him out of Exile
and Bondage, and us out of that State of Confu-
fion and Mifery, which our Country had for many
Years groaned under: When all Religion as well
as Sovereignty, and all Obedience, Duty and De-
ference to Superiors were quite loft, God of his in-
finite Mercy, and of his own moft gracious bounti-
fal Difpofition brought our bleffed Sovereign (now
in_Heaven) and his gracious Majefty that now
reigns, and all the Royal Family afier a fong and
tedious Rebellion, into a quier and peaceable Pol-
feffion of their undoubted Rights and Inheritances,
and with him reftored to us our Religion, the beft
of Religions, the true Proteftant Reformed Religien,
the Religion efiablithed by Law, which now 15,
and I hope will ever remain eftablifhed AMONg Us,
as now profefled and pradifed in the Church of
Eugland: and when we refleét on thas Deliverance,
we are to this Circumftance to heighten both our
Admiration and our Gracitude, that it was brought
about without the leaft drop of Blood fhed, by a
miraculous Providence, and by the Strength of an
Almighty Arm.

Befides, Gentlemen, we cannot be fufficiently
thankiul to our God, for the Mercies we enjoy’d
under thac bleffed King; for we are to confider we
liv’d in all the Affuence of Peace and Plenty, we
fately and uninterruptedly enjoy’d our Religion, the
greatelt Blefling on this fide Immortality, our Lives,
Liberties, and Properties inviolably were fecured ;
every Man fafe under the Shadow of his own V ine,
and eat the Fruic of his own Labour : and while
our Neighbours fuffered che Calamities of War, we
were furrounded with all the Bleflings of Peace, and
llept fecurely under the Government of o gracious
and merciful King : Every one of us had even what
our own Hearts could defire, and if we wanted any
thing, it could be only thankful and dutiful Hearts
to our God and our Prince, during whofe Life we
continued m a happy State and Condition.

Bur it having pleafed God, the King of Kings,
the grear Ruler both of Heaven and Earth, to
take that blefled Prince to himfelf, what Thanks
ought we to pay him for his gracious Goodnefs, in
leaving fo great and fo glorious a Succeffor as his
Royal Brother, our prefent Sovereign, whom I
pray Almighty God may long live and happily
reign among us! This gracious Prince, as {oon as
ever he came to the Poffeffion of his undoubted
Right and Inheritance, bpon his Erather’s Deach,
in the Tmperial Crown of this Realm, to entitle
himfelf to the good Opinion of his People, and 1o
engage them to the Expreffion of thar Duty which
the Chriftian Religion, and I am fyre particularly
the Religion of the true Church of England does
ablige all its Followers to ; what does he? Even
before he was afk’d, in the very firft Minutes of hig
Reigan, he begins with Bounty to his Subjeéts, and
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their deareft and moft precious Enjoyments, in
their Religion; and not only in that, butin the -
Laws, Liberties, Rights and Properties, with the
molt inviolable Security totheir Lives, and all that
s dear unto them: And this gracious Declaration
came from his Royal Mouth without any Solicita-
tion or any Induccment, fave only the generous
and gracious Inchination of his own Royal Hearg;
and to give 1t the greater Edpe, to the Honour of
the Charch of Exgland’s Religion be it fpoken, he
was pleas’d to tell what Opinion he had of our Re-
ligion and lts true Profeflors, that they were the
true Friends and faithful Supporters of the Govern-
ment 3 an Opinton which I hope every honeft
Church-of- Eunglard-Man will endeaveour to cherith
by a fuitable Praétice of whatis certainly the Do-
érine of that Religion, Loyalty and Obedience,
But alast withour Horror and Confufion, wa
cannot but remember, that inftead of making good
Returns of Refpect and Duty to fo gracious a So-
vereign for his great Bounty, Fation and Sedition,
Hypocrify and Malice had befotted and bewitched
a great Part of his Subjeéts, and corrupted, blinded,
and bigotted them to fuch an height of Impiety,
that a Rebellion muft begin his Reign, and al) the
poifonous Arts of Difobedience are made ule of
to inftigate the King's Subjects, wirh all the Rancour
and Vengeance in the world to rife againgft him.
Bleffed God! What is the way that this Devil
oi Stdition comes to bewitch People to fuch 2
height, when Almighty God had fo lately delivered
us from the Mifery and Confufion of a Civil War?
It 1s chat way furely, we find it but roo plain,
which he had always found very fuccefsful, the Pre-
tence of Saintfhip, Confcience, and thar glorious
Name, Religion, What Religion can it be? The
Chriftian_ Religion had this Form of irs greag
Ruler 5 Reuder to Cefar the things that are Cefar’s,
aid 1o God the things that are God’s.  But thefe Men
act as though that were not Scripture, when yet
pronounced by our blefled Lord himfelf, and both
joined in one Sentence as indifpenfible Duties 3 and
they will hardly be brought to believe thar Rebel-
hon 1s the Sin of Witcheraft, though the Scrip-
tures have directly given it that Charader. Good
God! that we fliould live to fuch an Age s when
Men can call God to affit and prote® them in 2
Rebellion: for not to refleét upon what was done
in former times, itis late enough for us to remem-
ber, but not without Horror, that Men have been
ty*d by all the Bonds and Contraéts Hell could in-
vent, 10 a Combination and Confederacy to murder
both the late King and his prefent Majefty, andall
this while this mult be fan@ified with the Name of
Religion, So thata Man that is a Murderer by the
Law of God, and an Offender againft the firft
Precepr that God Almighty enjoined, not to fhed
mnocent Blood, fhall yer.be a Saine for an A Ml

nation upon the account of Religion, and this fhall
be accounted a pious Caufe to' obtain Heaven,

Who did thefe Mifcreants, that were juftly by

Law condemned for that barbarous Confpiracy,
when they came to die,

to teftify for them, that they dicd for the fake of
- Religion,
they can blefs

does them in dying in his Caule, and call themfelves
- Martyrs for i,

nvocate ? The great God,

When they come to fufier for T'reafon,
God Almighty for the Honour he

Nay, 15 it not yet more ftrange and horrid, that

fome Men who call themfelves Minifters of the Go-
fpel; fhall cometo be Bell-wethers of Rebellion, and

I cry
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they are fighting the Lord’s Battle, when
tcligyﬁnurtt: atte;p:ing ro kill the Lord’s Anointed?
Jefus God ! that ever we fhould have fuch a
Generation of Vipers among us, that can plunge
themfelves into the H]E}ﬁi horrid Impieties, and yet
think to efcape Confufion here, and purchafe a
Crown of Glory hereafter! |
When we confider, Gentlemen, the Ring-leader
of this late Rebellion, the Center of all our Trou-
ble, the Arch-Rebel and Traitor, Monmonth 1
mean, fhould arrive to fuch a Height of Impu-
dence and Villany, as to blefs God that he could with
Satisfation refle€ upon a two Years Life very
regularly fpent 5 but how? In mamfeflt Aduleery
and Uncleannefs, nor can it be {poke or thought of
without inexpreflible Horror. N
Alack! Gentlemen, when wefind Religion made
ufe of as a Subterfuge and Cloak for fuch impious
Practices, it gives too much occalion for our Ene-
mies to think us Atheilts: the very Taris will hate
us, and Pagans deteft us, as the moft irreligious
prophane People in the World ; when we, who
profefs Love and Duty to Jelus Chrilt as our Holy
and Bleffed Redeemer, do thefe things, and even

boaft of them, whom they that deny him blufh at
the very thoughts of, and never {o much as name,

much lefs aét without Horror and Confufion.

Gentlemen, I do not fpezk this for the fake of
fpeaking, but I would fain deliver my own Soul
and yours from having any hand in fuch horrible
Impieties, and that, by teftifying our Abhaorrence
of them, by publickly declaring our {elves to be
Enemies to thofe Hypocrites the Nonconformift
Parfons ; [ mean, that pretend indeed pure Religion
to be their great Aim and End, and through a Scru-
pulofity of Confcience, cannot conform to thit
Decency and Duty which is required of them in
the Church ; bur yet, without remorfe, can kill,
or be the occafion of the Death of ten thoufand
People, as in the Confequence of this late Rebel-
lion perhaps it may prove, For do but confider
how many [Families by this means are usterly
runed, how many innocent Babes ftarved, or ex-
pofed to the utmoft Penury and Want ; how many
Widows left in a diftrefled defolate Condition, de-
ftirute of all manner of Provifion and Maintenance ;
and all this by the Inftigation of thefe Villains that
have preached and prayed them into it, gilding the
Bait that has drawn them into it, by the fpecious
Pretence of Religion and Conlcience ?

Confider, Gentlemen, this is that which has
brought this poor unfortunate Gentlewoman, the
Prifoner at the Bar, into this deplorable Condition:
What could prevail upon her to run fuch a hazard
as this, but only her Affe@ion and deluded Zeal
tor that Wretch, that had nothing but the name of
Rehgion, for his Soul is blacker in the Eyes of
God, and the Thoughts of all honeft Men, than
ever his Coar was? You fee by the Proofs what
an mmpudent unfanétified Villain he wass for when
tacfe Genatlemen that have given Evidence, were
in the Cuftody, and under the Power of the Rebels,
he muft temprand provoke them to leave off and
forfake their Duty to their natural Lord and lawful
Sovereion the King, whom God had fer over them,
and fubmic to an Ufurper, a King of their own
making 3 and fuch a King too, that I dare boldly
affirm, thfa_ meanett Sugjedt within the Kingdom
that is legitimate, has a better Title to the Crown,
than hie had 3 and this al} under the pretence of Re-
ligion, and the Proteftant Religion too: and that
fame Prince of their’s muft have the Title of a

for HighéTreafon;'
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Proteftant Prince; and an excellent Proteltant he
lived and died, living in the open Violation of the
Law of God, and in manifeft Rebellion againft his
fawtul Sovereign : and he died withoutany Remorfe
for either, boafting of his own Wickednefs beyond
the bounds of common Modefty and Humanity.

Gentlement, Let us all join in hearty Prayers to
our God, the God of infinite Mercy, that as he
has yet once more delivered our Sovereign, and us
with him, out of the Jaws of thefe Lions and ra-
venous Wolves ; fo he would flill pleafe to preferve
him and us from the hands of all our Enemies: and
I pray God it may have that good effeét upon all
of us, as to make us more careful and confcientious
i our Duty to him, and his Vicegerent the King,
To him alone muft all the Glory be afcribed 5 it
was not our Hand, or Arms{of the King, that
could have faved or proteted us, had nat the
{pecial Interpofition of the Divine Power and
Goodnefs wrought this Deliverance for us.

But now, Gentlemen, to come to the particular
Cale here before you; and the Fad, upon the
Ividence, {tands thus: It is very notorious this
Fellow Hicks was acually in this Rebellion ; you
have it fworn by three feveral Perfons that faw hic?
ana they particularized to you fuch Tokens of their
wnowledge and Remembrance, that fure, if any
thing can, muft make him blufh ac the Repetition
of them; for they tell you, when they were in
Prifon he would have corrupted them from their
Duty 5 and yefterday they faw him in Prifon, and
upon difcourfe of fome Circumftances, he could
not deny but he was there.

This Perfon, Mrs. Lifle the Prifoner at the Bar,
fhe is accufed for receiving and harbouring this Per-
fon: And, Gentlemen, I maft tell you for Law,
of which we are the Judaes, and not you, That
if any Perfon be in actual Rebellion again{t the
King, and another Perfon {who really and attually
was not in Rebellion) does receive, harbour, com-
fort, and conceal him that was {uch, a Receiver is as
much a Traitor, ashe who indeed bore Arms: We
are bound by our Oaths and Conlciences, to deliver
and declare to you what is Law; and you are
bound, by your Oaths and Confciences, to dcliver
and declare to us, by your Verdi€t, the Truth of
the Fadt. |

Gentlemen, that he was there in Rebellion, isun-
dentably and unqueftionably proved : That there are
fufficient Teftimonies to fatisfy you, that this Wo-
man did receive and harbour him, 1s that which is
left to your Confideration 5 and for that, the Proofs
lie thus: And truly [ am forry to have occafion for
repeating the Circumftances of the Proof; I mean,
the great Art that has been ufed to conceal it: how
difficult a thing it was to come at 1t; what time has
been fpent in endeavouring to find out Truth in a
Fellow, that in defance of all Admonition, Threats
and Perfuafion, would prevaricate and fhuflle to
conceal chat Truth 3 nay, lye and forfwear himfelf
to contradiét 1t. But out of true chriftian Charicy,

as I told him, fo I tell you, I do heartily pray
(and all good Chriftians I hope will join with me in
i) to the God of infinite Mercy that he would have
mercy upon his Soui, upon which he hath contrac-
ted fo great a Guilc by the Impudence of his Beha-
viour, and pertinacious Obftinacy in thofe Falthoods
which he hath made ufe of in this Cale.

Gentlemen, 1 would willingly forget all his Pre-
varications, but I muft take notice of them in thort,

to come to the Truth, Tirft, he fays, he came

upon an Errand from a Manhe knows not whom,
to
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to my Lady Lifi’s Houfe ; and thicher he is brought
by one Bariéi 5 and when he comes there, he ells
her, he comes in the Name of one Hicks, who de-
fired to be entertained there. Then fhe afks the
Queflion, whether FHicks had been in the Army;
and he told her he did not know ; and he iwears
now he did nor: But at laft it came out, that it
was to entertain Hicks and another Perfon ; but
v hould feem that other Perfon was not named ;
and Barter telis you, that Hicks and another Per-
fon (who afterwards proved to be Nelthorp) are
promifed to be entertained, and ordered to come
in the Evening. But rot to go backward and for-
ward, as he has done 1n his Evidence, denying what
Le afterwards acknowledged, that he faw any body
befides a Jietle Girls that he pulled down the
Hay out of the Rack for his Borles that lie eat
any thing but Cake and Cheefe thar he brought
with him from home ; that he was ever made to
drink, or to eat or drink in the Houle, or ever
meddled or made with any body in the Houle : At
Jaft we are told that Carpenter met with him, and
came out with 2 Linthorn and Candle, took care
of his Horfe, carried him into the Room where
€icks and Nelthsrp were, and the Prifoner at the
Bar Mrs. Lifle; there chey all {upp’d rogether ;
there they fell into Difcourle; there Nelthorf’s
Name was named, and they talked of being m the
Army, and of the Fight : and fo it is all ceme ou,
and makes a full and pofitive Livigence.

But then, fuppofe there was ro more than the
other Evidence, and that the Fellew remain 1n an
hard-hearted Obfiinacy, then yeou are to conlider
the Circumftances even from his firlt Evidence, that
this was after che Rebellion was all over; for it
feems during the Rebellion the was wn London, and
it was notorioufly known the King’s Forces were 1n
purfuit of the Rebels, and this withcut any pofitive
Proof would be in itfelf a {ufficient Teftimony to
convince any confiderate Perfon, that fhe was to
conceal thofe {he ought not to conceal; becanfe
fhe directed the particular time wherein they fhould
come, and that was ar Night; and no prudent Per-
fon would receive Strangers in the Night, and give
{fuch Diwredions in fuch a Sealon, without fome ex-
traordinary ground for it.  When they came there,
fhe provided a Supper for them 3 and you fee wnat
care is taken, that the Woman only 1s permiited
to bring that Supper to the Door, and the Hufband

muft {et 5t on the Table; no body is permitied to
attend there but he. Works of Darknefs always

defire to be in the Dark: Works of Rebellion and
fuch like are never done in the Light.

But then comes that honeflt Fellow Barter (1 call
him fo, becaufe he appears fo to be, and he ought
to be remembred with a great Remark for his
Honefty) he tells you, he conduéted him to the
Floule, and wliar Difcourfe pals’d there in his hear-
ng: The Prijoner afked him, what Countryman
he was, and whether he was a Brick-maker, and
promifed him fo many Acres of Land in Carolina.
The Fellow, upon Oblfervation and Conlideration,
found himfelf under a great Load, could not fleep
nor eat quictly, as Men that have honeft Minds are
unealy under luch things ; Falfhood, and Treafon,
and Hypocrily are a heavy Load ; and, blefled be
God, things were by this means difcovered : for he
goes and tells Col. Penruddock 5 and withal, Dunne
fwears to Barter, it was the bravelt Job that ever

134. Tridl of -the Lady Alice Lifle,
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he had in his Life ; whereas in the beginning of his
Story, he would have told you a ftrange Story of
a black Beard, and I do not know what, and that
he got not one Groat by it ; that he gave the Man
Half a Crown out of his own Pocket, and was fo
induftrious, as when he knew the Way no farther,
then he would hire one himfelf ro fhew him the
Way, and all for nothing, but only for the Kkind-
nels he had for a black Beard,

Befides, Gentlemen, I am forry to remember
{omething that dropped even from the Gentlewos
man hertelf, fhe pretends to Religion and Loyahy
very much, how greatly fhe wept at the Death of
King Charles the Martyr, and owns her great Ob-
ligations to the late King and his -Royal Brother 5
that fhe had not had a Being, nor any thing to
maintain it for twenty Years lait paft but from their
Bounty, and yet no fooner is ore in the Grave,
but the forgets all Graawde, ard enrertains thofe
that were Rebels againft his Royal Succeflor, T will
not fay what Hand her Hufband had in the Deathof
that blefizd Martyr *, fhe has enough to anfwer
for of her own Guilt; and I muft confefs 1t ought
not one way or other to make any Ingredient mto
this Cafe what fhe was in former Times: And I
told a Relation of her’s, Mr.Tipping by Name, thac
came to me laft Nightto defire thar the might nor
lie under fome Imputations that were gone abroad
of her, that fhe rejoic’d at the Death of King
Charles 1. nor that any falfe Report of that Na-
ture might influence the Court or Jury againdt her,
that it thould not: Be the thing true or falle, it is
to be of no weight one way or other in the Trial
of this Cale, nor is fhe to be accountable for it.

But I mult remember you of oue Particular, that
is' plain upon this Evidence, and 1s of very greac
moment in this Cafe; That after all thefe private
Meflages ana Directions given to come by Nighe,
and the kind Receprion they met with when they
came, and afwer all this Care to lodge them and
feed them, when Colonel Penruddeck, after the
Difcovery made by Barter, came to fearch her
Houle, then fhe had no body 10 ic truly, which is
an Ageravation of the Oferce tellify’d by Colonel
Penruddock himfclt, whofe Farher likewile was a
Martyr, and died for his Fidelity to the Crown
and who was the Judge of that Father, we all very
well know.  God Almighty 1s a juft God, and it
may be worth conflidering (cfpecially by her) how
God has been pleafed to make ufe of him as the
Inftrument in this Bufinefs ; and fhe would likewife
do well to confider the Finger of God in working
upon the Heart of that Man Barter, who was im-
ploy’d in all this Affair, and that all the Truth
has been told by Nelthorp, that blackeft of Villains
Nelthorp, that would have murdered the late King
and his royal Brother 3 that he that was one of thofe
barbarous, malicious Affaflinates in that black
Conlpiracy, and outlaw’d, fhould be harbour’d by
one that pretends a Love for the Royal Family,
and entertained and difcourfed with at Night about
being in the Army ; yet that he and that other Vil-
lain Hicks, who pretends to Religion and to be a
Preacher of the Gofpel, but is found in Rebellion

and in the Company of Traitors, faould be deny’d
the next Morning,

I hope they themfelves aré all by this time fa-
tsty’d Truth will come out, and 1 hope you will

not be deceived by any fpecious Pretences. Qur
Fore-

v This zvar ¢ wsjnfl Infinuation, enly to prejudice the Fury, Jffng, as the Chief fuflice own'd, :15!5:':.:; 17 the Fm}é;:ﬁ : ﬁr “avdich
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Fore-fathers have been deluded, but the Deception,
I hope, is now atan End; and 1 maft needs fay,
if all thefe Witneffes that have freely difcovered
their Knowledge, joined to that Truth which is at
leneth drawn from that Dumme, be worthy of any
Cr:dit, it is as plain a Proof as can be given, and

as evident as the Sun at Noon-day. _
Gentlemen, upon your Confciences be it: The

Prefervation of the Government, the I__.i{e of the
King, the Safery and Honour of our Religion, and
the Difcharge of our Confcicnces as loyal Men,
good Chriftians, and faithful Subjects, are at ftake;
neither her Age nor her Sex are to move you, who
have nothing elfe to confider bur the Evidence of
the Fac you are to try, I charge you therefore, as
you will anfwer it at the Bar of the lalt Judgment,
were you and we muft all appear, deliver your
Verdi€t according to Confcience and Truth, With

that great God, the impartial Judge, there is no
fuch thing as Refpect of Perfons, and in our Dif-
charge of our Duty in Courts of Juftice, he has
enjoined us his Creatures, that we muft have no
{fuch thing as a Friend in the Adminiftration of
Juftice, all our Friendfhip mult be to Truth, and
our Care to preferve that inviolate.

Lifl. My Lord, if your Lordfhip pleafe ——

L. C. ¥. Miftrefs, you have had your Turn, you
cannot now be heard any more alter the Jury is
charged,

Liflz. My Lord, I did not know Nelthorp, 1 de-
clare it, before he was taken.

L. C.F. You are not indicted for Nelthorp, but
we are not to enter into Dialogues now, the Jury
muft confider of it.

Jury-man. Pray, my Lord, fome of us defire
to know of your Lordthip, in point of Law,
whether it be the fame thing, and equally Trea-
{fon, 1n recciving him before he was conviéted of
Treafon, as if it had been afeer.

L.C. 7. Itisall the fame, that certainly can be
no Doubt; for, if in cafe this Hicks had been
wounded in the Rebels Army, and had come to her
Houfe and there been entertained, but had died
there of his Wounds, and {o could never have been
convicted, the had been neverthelefs a Traicor.

Then the Jury withdrew, and faying out a while,
the Lord Jefferies expreffed a great deal of Impa-
tience, and faid, be wonder’d that in fo plain 4
Cafe they would go from the Bar, and would bave
Jeat for them with an Intimation, that if they did
#ot come quickly, he would adjourn, and let them
lie by it all Night 5 but after about balf an Hour’s
Stay the Jury returned, and the Foreman addreffed
bimfelf 1o the Conrt thus : *

Foreiman, My Lord, we have one thing to beg
of your Lordfhip fome Directions in, before we
Can give our Verdict in this Cafe: We have fome
Doubt upon us, whether there be fufficient Proof
that fhe knew Hicks to have been in the Army.

L.C. 7. There is as full Proof as Proof ean be 3
buc you are Judges of the Proof, for my part |
thought there was no Difficulty in it.

{?aremfn. My Lord, we are in fome doubt of it

L.C. ¥. 1 cannot help your Doubts: Was there

fiot proved a Difcourfe of the Battle and of the
Army at Supper-time ?

¥ (bt "
Bifhap B“"ﬂﬂtﬁiu._ the Fury at Jieft brought ber i Not Guilty. Hilt. of his Own Times, 3
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Foreman, But, my Lord, we are not fatisfy’d
that.{he had Notice that Iicks was in the Army.

L.G.F. I cannottell what would fatisfy you s
Did fhe not enquire of Dunue, whether Hicks had
been in the Army? And when he told her he did
not know, fhe did not fay fhe would refufe him if
he had been there, but order’d him to come by
Night, by which 1t is evident the fufpected i3 and
when he and Nelthorp came, dilcourfed with them
about the Battle and the Army. Come, come,
Gentlemen, it is a plain Proof,

Foreman, My Lord, we do not remember that
it was proved that fhe did afk any fuch Queftion
when they were there, ,

L.C.F}. Sure you do not remember any thisg
that has paffed ? Did not Dause tell you there was
fuch Dilcourfe, and fhe was by, and Neltborp’s
Name was named ? But if there were no fuch Proof,
the Circumftances and Management of the Thing
is as full a Proof as can be, I wonder whar it is
you doubt of ?

Lifle. My Lord, T hope—-

L.C.¥. You muft not fpeak now.

Then the Jury laid their Heads together for near
6 Guarter of an Hour, and at leugth agreed
and being calld over, deliver’d in this erdis? by
1he Foreman,

Cl. of Arraignamenis, Alice Lifle, FHold up thy
Hand. Gentlemen of the Jury, look upon the Pri-
foner: How fay ye? Is fhe guilty of the Trealon
whereof the ftands indi&ted, or not Guilty 3

Foreman, Guilty.

Cl. of Ar. What Goods or Chattels; Lands, c¢r
Tenements had the?

Foreman. None that we know of.

Cl of Ar. Look to her Jaylor, fhe is found guilty
of High Treafon 5 and prepare your felf to die.

Then the Verdist wwas recorded,

L.C.7. Gentlemen, I did not think I fhould
have had any Occalion to fpeak after your Verdi&,
but finding fome Heflitancy and Doubt among you,
I cannot but fay, I wonder it thould come about ;
for I think in my Conlcience, the Evidence was as
full and plain as could be, and if I had been among
you, and fhe had been my own Mother, I fhould

have found her Guilty.

Their the Court adjourn’d till the next Norning,

Dies Veneris 28 Augulti, 1685.

HIS Day Alice Lifl: was brought to the Bar,
and being afked what the had to fay for her
felf, why Judgment of Death fhould not pafs upon
her, being convicted of High-Treafon ; but offering
nothing, fhe was, with thereft of the Prifoners that
were (o receive the Sentence of Death, condemn’d

by the Lord Fefferies, who pafled Sentence thus:

L.C.7. Alice Lifle, and you zhe feveral Prifo-
ners now at the Bar, you have been feverally In-
dicted, Arraigned, and now ftand feverally Con-
victed of Crimes that by the Laws of the Land are
to be punifhed with Death; you ftand convicted by
your Eqguals, by a Jury of your Country, againit
whom you might have had, and were allow’d to
make (and one of you did make) what Chal-

lenges

. 050.  The Truth awas, fhe kneww not
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. lenges you could: but upon full Evidence; by
that Jury of your own Country-men, you have
bee found guilty of thofe Crimes for which you
are to dic; and there remains now no more with
the Court but to perform their Duty, which 15 to
pronounce that Sentence, that difmal Sentence of
Death, which the Law has provided-for fuch Of-
fenders.

And fure I am, it cannot but be thought uneafy,
and far from pleafant, not only to me, but (o
every body elle that fees fuch a lamentable Ob-
je@, fuch a Number of Perfons that might have
acquired to themfclves an honelt Livelibood by Di-
ligence in their lawful Callings, being dutitul to

God, and obedient to their Sovereign and the
Laws of the Land, who yet in defiance of all thele

have brought themfelves to a fhametul untimely
End by their own wicked Courfes. - .

Particularly, I cannot but lament the deplora-
ble Condition of you, Mrs. Lifle, a Gentlewoman
of Quality and of Fortune, fo far ftricken in Years,
therefore  ought to have had more Difcretion :
One, who all your Life-time have been a great
Pretender to, and Profeffor of, Religion, and ot
that Religion which bears a very good Name, the
Proteftant Religion; but that Name has been
perverted to very ill Purpoles by fome People,
who have had nothing but the Name to protect
themfelves under. |

There is no Religion whatfoever (except that
hypocritical Profeflion of theirs which deferves not
the Name of Religion, I mean the canting, whi-
ning; Prefbyterian, Phanatical Profeffion) that gives
the lealt Countenance to Rebellion or Faction ; and
I cannot but lament to find you involved in that

Herd.

And I cannot but deplore it withal, as a moft
fad and difmal thing, that in this httle Cafe fo
many Perjuries fhould be added to the Crime of
Treafon, fuch, as for my part [ cannot but trem-
ble to remember ; Perjuries in defiance of all the
Inftruction and Admonition that true chriftian Cha-
rity could exprefs, and i defance of the Om-
nifcience and Juftice of the All-feeing God of
Truth: You ought to refle€t upon whofe Ac-
count thofe Perjuries were committed, and to lay
them ferioufly to Heart, for ¢’er long, in a few
Hours (deceive not your felf) you are to give an
Account at a greater Bar for all vour Thoughts,
Words, and Actions,

You would likewife do well to bethink your
felf with all Serioufnefs and Remorfe, of your own
falle Affeverations and Proteftations, that you
upon your Salvation fhould pretend Ignorance in
the Bufinefs, when fince that Time, even f{ince
the laft Night, there has been but too much dif-
cover’d how far you were concern’d 3 no, ’tis not
unknown who were fent for upon the Aonday
Night, 1n order to have that rebellious, feditious
Fellow to preach to them, what Direftions were
given to come thro’ the Orchard the back and
private Way, what Orders were given for -Pro-
vifion, and how the Horfes were appointed to be
difpofed of. I only fpeak this, that you fhould
bethink your felf in this fhort time that you have
lefc here upon Earth, to get thefe Sins of your’s
duly repented of, and truly pardoned ; and not
only fo, but confider you have it now in your
Power to make fome Recompence to the publick
Juftice of the Nation, by difcovering the Truth
in chis Matter, and all Religion enjoins you to
do what.you can: For without the infinite Mercy
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of the great God you are I & deplorable Condj-

_ . e
tion, and without true Contrition and Repentance,

of which all the Recompence you can make, both

for publick and private Injuries, is a. patt, you

can never hope for the Mercy of that God to be
extended to you.

Sirs 3 It 1s not in my Province to advile you
in your Preparation for that Eternity you are all
fuddenly to enter into: but out of pure Charity,
and hearty Compallion to you, anf_:l the miferable
Condition you have brought yourfelves into, and
out of a tender Regard to your precious immor-
tal Souls, I cannot but affure you of my own,
and recommend you to the carneft and ferveat
Prayers of all good Chriftians, to the God of in-
finite Mercy, that he would be merciful unto vou
all,

And the great God of his gracious Goodrels
orant, that all we that are here may learn {uch
Leffons, as are proper from fuch Examples: From
that Woman the fad and difmal LEfieéts of Dif
loyalty and Treafon; and from all the relt, the
deplorable Mifchiefs that attend Licentioufnels and
Debauchery : For by the Courfe of Nature, moft
of thefe might have lived a much longer Time,
and that with Comfort to themielves and their
Relations; but now, to the Angmih of their own
Flearts, and che unfpeakable Grief of all their
Iriends, they have thortened their own Days, and
brought a difmal Sentence upon themfelves.

And I recommend them not only to my felf
and others, bur chiefly and efpecially to the Pious,
Orthodox and Learned Miniftry, to give the belt
Affiftance they can, during the fhort Remainder of
their Time ; for their Abode here upon Earth is
but fhort, and God grant they may mect with a
blefled Immortaliy.

There remains no more for me to do, I fay,
but to pronousnce the Seatence of the Law, which
15 this ; and the Court does award,

That you, Mrs. Lille, be conveyed from bence to
the Place from whence you came, and from theice
you are 16 be drawn on a Hurdle to the Place of
Lexecution, where your Body is to be burnt alive
till you be azad.  Aud the Lord have Mercy upon
your Soul.

The reft of the Prifoiers bad the ufual Fudegmeni as
in Cafes of Felony.

L.C. 7. Look you, Mrs, Lifle, when I left his
Majefty, he was pleafed to remic the Time of
all Executions to me; that where-ever 1 found any
Oboftinacy or Impenitence, I might Order the Exe-
cations  with what fpeed I fhould think beft:
Therefore, Mr. Sheriff, take notice, you are to
prepare for the Execution of this Gentlewoman
this Alternoon, But withal, I give you, the Pri-
foner, this Intimation : We that are the Judges, fhall
ftay in Town an Hour or two; you fhall have
Pen, Ink, and Paper brought you, and if in the

mean t.ime you employ that Pen, Ink, and Paper,
and this Hour or two well, (you underftand wha:

I mean) it may be you may hear further from us,
in a deferring the Execution,

Then the Prifoner was taken away.

But afterwards, npon the Interceffion of fome Divines

of the Chnreb of Winchefter, fbe was reprieved til
Wednefday the Secound of September.

On
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irsieth. of Auguft, the following
Tetter was fent 10 1be. Right Hog:af{r_afgfe the Earl of
Clarendon, Lord Privy-Seal, at Windfor 3 [which
 1be Earl did then read to the King] who anfwered,
That he iwould do nothing in it, having lefc all

to the Lord Chief Juftice ™. .*

1685,
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- Lord, o
¢ ¥ &dcrﬁanding that Mrs, Lifle is condemned,

z and that many falfe ‘things are reported
¢ of her, that may hinder the King from fhewing
¢« her Mercy ; particularly, that fhe was an Enemy
« to the King’s Friends in the time of the late
s¢ Wars: As to that, we can affure your Lordfhip,
«¢ that {he was a Favourer of them in their greatelt

<« Extremities; and particul®ly of us, and of fome .

s¢ others that are fince dead: And for thefe late
¢ Years we have often been in her Company, and
«¢ pever heard her fay any thing but what became
"« 3 loyal Subject. This we defire your Lordfhip
« would be pleafed to reprefent to the King, and
¢¢ o interceed for her Reprieve; which will be a
«s grear Obligation to your Lordfhip’s humble Ser-

& yants
T M. St. Fobn.
E. Abergavenny.

On Monday the Thirty-Firft of Augult the following
Petition was prefented to the King.

To the King's moft Excellent Mayefty,
The Humble Petition of Alicia Lifle

Humbly Shewetb, _
¢ HAT your Petitioner lieth under a Sen-
¢ tence of Death for harbouring one Fobn

< Hicks 3 and is fentenced to be burnt on Wednefday
¢ next,

-« That the is the Daughter of Sir 77bite Becon-
¢ faw, delcended of an antient and honourable Fa-
¢ mily, and related to feveral of the beft Families
¢ of the Nobility of this Kingdom.,

* Wherefore your Petitioner humbly begs your
¢ Majefty, that Execution may be altered from
¢ Burning to Beheading, and may be refpited for
¢ four Days:

And your Petitioner fhall ever pray, &,

To which his Majefty anfwered: That be wonld
not reprieve her one Days but for altering the
Sentence, be would doit, if there were any Prece.

dents for it.

Thereupon the following Precedents, for the al-
tering of the Sentence, were offered to the King,
That Execution may vary from the Judgment,

fee the Regilter, Fol, 165, in Felony, -

Parl. 8.E. 3. where the Judgment always is Sufpen-

datur per collum 3 yet the Party may
be beheaded, which is no part of the Sentence. So
was the Duke of Somerfet in the Time of Edw, VI.

for Felony : So was the Lord Audley, 7 Car. 1. for
Felony (Rape).

Queen Katherine Howard for Treafon, Hen, VIII.
and Fane Gray, primo Marie. The Countefs of
Saljfbury, being attainted for Treafon, Ao 1 541,

* The Earl of Feverfam baving

Vor IV

o High-Treafon;
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was beheaded-32 Hen, VIIL. See 3 Co. Inft. p. 211,

212,
. 'Whereupon his
following Warrant.

FAMES R. L h .
R [ Hereas we are informed that Alicia Liffe has
. ¥ ¥ received Sentence of Death for High Trea-
fon at the Seffions of Oyer and Terminer, and Goal-
Delivery, held at our City of Winchefler, for har-
bouring of Fobn Hicksa Rebel, and that the Sentence
1s to be executed upon her the fecond of September
next, by burning her alive: And whereas the faid
Alicia Lifle has humbly petitioned Us to alter the
Manner of the faid Execution, by caufing her Head
to be fever'd from her Body: We being gra-
cioufly pleafed to condefcend to her Requeft, have
thought fit hereby to fignify Our Will and Plea-
fure accordingly. And our further Will and Plea-
fure is, that you deliver the Head and Body to her
Relations to be privately- and decently interred
And for fo doing, thisfhall be your Warrant, -
‘Given at our Court at Windfor, the Thirry-
Firft Day of Auguft, 1685. inthe frlt Year
of our Reign,

Mﬁje[’cy was p]eai:ed t'ohﬁgn t_hé

| | SUNDERLAND, .

To our Trufty and Well-beloved
she High-Sheriff of our County
of Hants, and to all others
whom it may concern,

Which Warrarit being delivered to the Sheriff;
fhe was, on Wednefday the fecond of Septeniber; in
the Afternoon, brought to execution; which was
perform’d upon a Scaffold erected in the Market-

place of the City of Winchefler, where the behaved
herfelf with a great deal of Chriftian Refolution.

She then deliver’d a Paper to the Sheriff, a Copy of
which follows; and after fome lictle time was exe-

cuted, having ler Head fever’d from her Body,

A Copy of the Paper deliver’d to the Sheriff.

 Gentlemen, Friends, and Neighbours, -
¢ Y T may be expected that I fhould fay fome-
¢ l thing at my Death, my Birth and Education
‘ being near this Place, My Parents inftructed
¢ meinthe Fear of God, and I now die of the Re-
¢ formed Religion; always being inftruéted in that
¢ Belief, That if Popery fhould return into this
¢ Nation, it would be 4 great Judgment. Idicin
‘ the Expectation of Pardon of my Sins, and Ac-
“ ceptation with the Father, by the imputed Righ-
“ teoufnefs of Jefus Chrift, he being the End of the
¢ Law for Righteoufnefs to every one that believes,
¢ I thank God, through Jefus Chrift, 1 depart un-
¢ der the Blood of Sprinkling, which fpeaketh better
¢ things than the Blood of Abel, God having made
¢ this Chaftifement an ®rdinance to my Soul,
¢ I did as little expect to come to this Place on
this Occafion as any Perfonin this Nation ; there-
fore let us learn notto behigh-minded, but fear
the Lord: The Lord is 4 Sovereign, and will
¢ take what way he fees beft to glorify himfelf by
¢ his poor Creatures; therefore do humbly defire
¢ to fubmit to his Will, praying him, .that in pa-
¢ tience I may poflefs my Soul. ~
¢ My Crime was entertaining a Nonconformift
¢ Minifter, who 1s fince fworn to have been in the

"™ ot L L

- . been offered a thoufand Pounds to cbiain ber Pardm Sollicited the King to grant it 5 but the Kin
dold hiry be had premifed the Chict [uRtice that he avonld not parden ber, i .

S ¢ Jate
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¢ late Duke of Monmouth’s Army. Iam told, if I
¢ had not denied them, it would not have affected
< me. I bave no Excufe but Surprize and Fear
¢ which I believe my Jury muft make ufe of to ex-
¢ cufe their Verdi& to the World.

¢ T have been told, the Court onght to be Cotinfel,
¢ for the Prifoner, inflead of which, there was Evi-
< “dence given from thence s awbich, thongh it were bul
< Hear-fay, might poffibly affett my Fury, My De-
< feice was fuch as might be espected from a weak
S Woman; but fuch as it was, 1did not bear il re-
< peated again lo the Fury, But I forgive all Per-
¢ {ons that have done me wrong, and I defire that
«~.God will do fo likewife.

¢ [ forgive Col. Penruddock, though he told me be
< conld bave taken thofe Men before they came to my
¢ Houfe. '

¢ As to what may be objected, thatl gave it un-
¢ der my Hand that I had difcourfed with Nelthorp,
¢ that could be no Evidence tothe Court, or Jury,
¢ it being after my Conviction and Sentence.

¢ I acknowledge his Majefty’s Favour in altering
¢ my Sentence ;3 and 1 pray God to preferve him,
¢ that be may long reign in peace, and the true Re-
¢ ligton flourith under him.

« Two things I have omitted to fay, which s,
¢ that I forgive bim that defired to be taken from the
< Grand Fury to the Petty Fury, that be mizht be the
€ more unearly conceried i my Deatb,

¢ Allo I return humble Thanks to Almighty
¢ God, and the Reverend Clergy that aflifted me
¢ in my Imprifonment.

Sept. 2. 16835.

Her Attainder was afierwards reverfed 1ff of William
and Mary.,

Primo Gulielni & Marie, Anno168q,

An ACT for annulling and making void the
- Attainder of Alicia Lifle, Widow.,

Pereag Alicia Lifle, Tqitol, i the
Ponth of Auguflt, iy the fitft Pear of
the 13eign ot the late Ling James the Decony,

Avice LisLE.
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136. Arraignment of John Fernley,
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at a Selfions of Dyer and Cermitier, am
Gonl-Delivery, holuen for the County of
Southampton, gt the Cify 6f Winchefter 1 tijc

faid County, by ap irregular and undue Profecu.
tion, WAS (hDided 0 enteetaming, conceal.
fug &b comioting John Eicks, &Ietk, a fulle
@raitoy knowing Him to be fch s Though
the faid Fohn Hicks was not, at the Trial of the
faid Alicia Lifle, Auainted or Convited of any
fuch Crime: QitD, by a Verdit injurioufly ex-
torted and procured by the Menaces and Violences,
and other illegal Pradlices of George L9300 Jei-
feries, 15ateh 0f Wem, then Lo Thief 3ufiice
of tie Im’s Wench, and Chicl omml-

Aiongt of Dyet and ferminee and Goai- Deli-

Berp, within ehe (F County, was conbicted,
attainten, ang crecuten fop Pigh-Creaton
Hay it thevefore pleale pour moit cecellent
Haictties, at the hunblc Fcetition of Triphena
Lloyd aiift Bridzet Ufher, Daughters of the
faig Alicia Lifle, @hat it De declavenail on-
acten by the Quthouty of this paelent Patlia-
niedt ¢ Snd be it Enacted by fhe I and
éntee’s moft eecellcnt MPBageftics, by angwith
the Agbice and Conlent of the Lo DyILi-
tual and Cempoal, and Conimons 1 thig
prefent Pacliament afflemblen, and by the Su-
thoxty of the fame, That the faid Conviction,
Judgment and Attainder of the faid Alicia Lifle be,
and are hereby repealed, reverfed, made and de-
clared null and void to all Intents, Conitructions
and Purpofes whatfoever, as if no fuch Conviction,
Judgment or Attainder had ever been had or made;
i that ng Toxuption of MWiegy, 0 sther
Penatty o Fodcituce of Honouts, DIghl-
ties, 1andg, ©oods 0 Chattels, be by the
[t Conbiction 02 Attafnber {neuLLen 3 any
Laly, {fage 02 Cuftam to the contraty tot-
ithftanoing,
Ex’ Yob. Brown, Cleric
Parliamentor’,

L o

CXXXVL Tridls of John Fernley, William Ring, Elizabeth

Gaunt *, and Henry Cornith+ Efg; ar the Old-Bailey, for
High-Treafon, October 19, 1685. 1 Jac. IL. i

W ONDAY, Otioh. 19th, 1685, at the
14 Seffions-Houfe in the Old- Bailey, Lson-
don, the Court being met, and Pro-

LL. clamation made for Attendance, the
Proceedings were as follo w

; Ciir.{'. Set fobn Fernley to the Bar.  [Which was
0He,

* Burn, Hifl, Quen Times. ¥ol, 1, P 6491-

Cryer. O Yes, ANl manner of Perfons are com--

manded to keep Silence, upon pain of Imprilons
ment,

Clerk, Fobu Fernley,
he did. ]

Thou ftandeft indicted by the Name of Jobhn
Fernley,

hold up thy Hand. [#Which

1 1bid. 631, |
Middle-



1685. O. B.

AL 1.ord the King upon their Oaths
refent, That Fobn Fernley, f:!t' the Parifh of
St, Aary Maifeilon, otherwife #btte-Chapel, 1n the
County of Middlefx, Barber, as a falfe Rebel and
Traitor againit che moft iHuftrious and moft ex-

do P

cellent  Prince King Fames the Second, by the
Grace of God of Ensland, Scotland, I'raice and

Ireland, King, and his natral Lord, not having
che Fear of God in his Heare, nor his dl]ti; Obe-
dience any wile rcgardipg, bur being mov ! :1115;1
feduced by the Inttigatton of .':ht: Dex'{l; and his
fiithful Duty and natura] Obedtence which 1 true
and loyal Subject ought to have towards his {ad
Lord the King, and by J_,_:w ot_lght 1o oblerve,
utterly withdrawing 5 and thgendmg.mth al_l h%s
Fndeavours the Peace and Tranquillity of this
Kingdom of Eungland 0 diltarh, ‘andr. Var ‘1_“5{
Rebellion againtt our faid Lord the King to 1n-
cire and move, and the Government of our faid
Lord the King in this Kingdom uf Eﬂg_fu;f:z’ o
fubverr, and our faid Lord the King trom his
Title, Flonour, and regal and wnperial Crown
of this his Kinzdom of Eugland o depofe and
deprive, and our aid Lord the King to Death
and uiter Deftroftion to bring y the 20th Day of
Augut in the Year of the Reign of our Sovereign
Lord Famss the Second, by tae Grace ﬂf_ God of
Eugland, Scotland, [rarce, and [reland, King, De-
fender of the Iaith, & the frfty» and divers
other Days as well before as after, at the [a-
rith of St. Mary Maifellon, otherwife cailerd /i7iz-
Chapel, in the County of Miadlfex, fallcly, ma-
licioufly, devilithly, and trattoroufly, with divers
Rebels and Trairors to the Jurors aforefatd unknown,
did confpire, timagine and intend, our {aid Sovercign
Lord the King, now his fupreme aad paiural
Lord, not only of hiz royal State, Title, Power,
and Government of this his Kingdom of Eagland
o deprive and depole, bur alio the fame Lord
the King to kill and murder, and the ancient Go-
vernment of this Kingdom of Lugland to change,
alter, and totally fubvert, and a miferabie Slaugh-
rer amongft the Subjects of our Lord the King
throughour all this his Kingdom of Eauzleud to
caufe and procure 5 and an Infurreclion and Rebel-
ion aganit cur Lord the King to procure, pro-
rmoe, and affift: And the fame his molt wicked,
mmofl mhoman, and moft devilith Treafons and
Conipiracies, Purpofes and trarorous Imaginations
to fuliil and to eftect, he the faid Feba Fernlzy, as
a falfer Traitor, then and there, @iz on the {1id
2ctn Day of Auguff, in the Year of the Reign
oi our fuid Lord the King, the Girlt as aforefaid, at
the Parifh aforefaid, in the County aforcfaid, well
Knowing one Fawes Burton o be a falfe Traitor,
and as a falfe Traitor traitoroufly to have cenipired
and imagined the Death and veter Deftru&ion of
our faid Lord the King, and War and Rebelljon
againft our faid Lord the King within this Kingdom
of Lugland traivoroufly (with divers other Rebels o
the Jury unknown) to have leviad and ftirrd up 3 he
the faid Feon Fernly afterwards, viz, on the fiid
20th Day of Auguft, in the Year of the Reign of
our Laid Lord the King, nowthe firlt aforefaid, ar
tho fiuri!h afercfaid, in the County aforcfaild, the
st fames Burton in the Manfion-Houfe of him the
faid }fﬂ:ﬁ'ﬂu Ferafes, fituate Inthe Parith and Ceunty
aforefaid, I{nﬁlﬁ'il]gl}’j feeretly, wickedly, devilifh-
ly, am traitoroufly, dild harbour, conceal, com-
fort, Iu&amz and keep s and then and there, for
the Comfﬁrtmg suftentation, and Maintenance of

the fad Famzs Burion, the (id Fobn [ernlzy Meat
Vor IV, .

o High-Treafbﬂ.

T HE Jurors for our Sovereign and Drisk te the f2id Fames Burton, malicicully and
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trattoroufly did give and deliver, and did caule 1o be
given and delivered, againft the Duty of nis Alfe-
giance, againtt the Peace of our faid Lord the King,
his Crowa and Dignity, and alfo again{t the Form of
the Statute in the like Cafe made and provided, &,

Clerk. How fayelt thou Feba Fernley, are thou
guiley of che High-Treafon whereof thou ftandeft
indicted, o1 not guiley 2

Fernley, Not guiley.

Clerk, Culprir, how wilt thoy be tried ?

Feraley. By God and my Counery.

Cierk, God fend chee a good Deliverance.

[V hich wvas done,
Viliam Ring, hold up thy Hand, [WWhich b2 did.

Thou ftancelt indicted by the Name of #llians
Ring, of the Parifh of 8. Cloment’s Darze, in the
County of Adiddlefex, Tavlor,

Miadlefos, 7 VH E Jurors for cur Sovereign Lord
A the King do prefent upon their

Ouaths, That WAlliam Rung, late of the Parifh of
St Clemzn’s Danes, in the County of Alidaleex,
Taylor, as o falfe Traitar agaislt the mott illu-
{tricus and excellent Prince Fames the Second, by
the Grace of God of England, Sectlznd, Fraice, and
[reqand King, and his natural Lord, not having the
Fear of Godin his Hearr, nor the Duty of his Al-
legiance any ways weighing, bur Leing mov'd and
feduced by the infliation of the Devil, and the trus,
dus=, and matural Obedience which true and faichful
Subjects of our fud Lord the King towards our fuid
Lord the King fhould and of tight ovght to bear,
wholly withdrawing 3 and with his whole Streng b 1i-
tending the Peace and common Trarguillity of this
Kingdom ot Znglandto difquier, molell, and diftur’,
and War and Rebellion againdt cur faid Lord the
Neng within this his Kingdom of Zuglind to incite
and {tir up, and the Government of cur faid Lord
the King in this his Kingdom ol Liglaid o {ub-
vert, and cur fud Lord the King frem his Tile,
Honour, and regal Name of his Iimperal Crown
of this his Kingdom of Zigland to depole and de-
prive, and our fud Lord the King to Death and
fiinal Deitruction to bring and puty the 20ith
Day of Fuly, 1n the frft Year of the Reign of ous
Sovereign Lord Famesthe Second, by the Grace of
God of Eugland, Scotland, France and Ireland King,
Defender of the Faith, and divers other days and
times, as well before as after, at the Panifh of 8¢,
Clement’s-Danes in the County of Adiddlefex, falfely
and walicionlly, devilifhly and traitoroufly, with
divers other Rebels and Traters to the Jurors un-
knows, did confpire, imagine, and inrend, our
fard Lord the King, our fupreme and natural Lord,
not only from his State, Title, Power, and Go-
vernment of his Kingdom ol Zigland to deprive
and depole, butaifo our {uid Lord the King to kill
and pur to death, and the ancient Goverament of
this Kingdom of Eugland to change and alter, and
wholly to fubvert; and a miferable Slaughier among
the Subjels of our faid Lord the King rhroughout
this whole Kingdom of Eugland to caufe and pro-
cure ; and Infurredion and Rebellion againft our
faid Lord the King to procure, move, and affift :
Anda his fad moft wicked and dewvilifh Trealons and
traitorous Confpiracies, Compafiings, Imaginations
and Purpefes aforefaid to fulfil, effect, and perfeét,
he the faid 777i%am Ring, as afalie Trator, then
and there, to wir, the fiid 20th day of Fuly, inthe
faid firt Year of the Reign of our faid Lord the
King that now 1is, aforefaid, at the Parith and
County aforefuid, well knowing Foferd Rilloway
S5 2 and,

Set I iam Ring to the Bar,




132 136. Areaiguient of Heory Cornifh, Efg; 1 Jac I,

and Herry Lawrencz to be falfe Traim{sj and as
falfe Trairors traiteroufly to have confp_lred and 1I-
magined the Death and final Deftruction of our
f2id Lord the King, and Warand Rtbel_hor}:agamﬁ
oar faid Lord the King within this his Kingdom
of England, trattoroufly, with divers other L'raitors
to the Juross unknown, to have levied, and r_alfﬁd;
and ftirred up. And he the faid Pilliam Kuig ai-
erwards (o wit) the faid 2o0th Day of Fuly, inthe
fieft Year of the Reign of our faid Sovercign Lora
the King aforef2id, ar the Panifh afor{:f:ud, the faid
Fefepb Rellsway ana Herry L:;:a-rfrre, in the Dwel-
lina-Houfe cf him the {aid Piiiam Ring ﬁi_:u:itﬂd
in the Parilh and County zforefaid, krowingly,
fecretly, wickedly, devililkly, and wrattoronfly, d}d
harbour, ccnceal, comfori, fuftain, and mam-
tain; and then and there, for the comforung, fu-
faising, and maintaining of the {aid Fofepb Kello-
cvay and Herry Lizreiee, he the faid Wiiliam King
Mear and Drisk 1o the faid Foleph Aellsivay and
Herrs Lazwrerez malicioufly and traitoroully did give
and dcliver, and did caufe to be given and delivered,
agamit the Dary efhis Allegiance, againft the Peace
of cur faid Sovereizn Lord the King, his Crown
and Dignity, and againft the Form of the Statute
in this Cafe made and provided, &o.

How fayelt thou J7iizm Risz, art thou culty
of the High-Treafon whereor thou andelt 1ndicted,
or not gmiry ?

Rirz. Nor guiley,

Clzrz. Culprir, how wils thion be tried?

Riz. By God and my Country.

ferf. God fend thee a good Dcliverance,
Szt Frirs Corziih to the Bar.
tfezrs Corziiey, hold up thy Huad.

Nr. Cerizo. DMy Lord, 1 have keen confined
WINOut any notice given me unti) Saferday about
Noonof my Trnizl. My Lord, 1 do hope, feeing
I z2ppear belore your Lorcthips and this honourable
Bench who have known fomething of my Conver-
fation, thar you will plea%d o coufider me,
and grant me whzt 13 cuftomary, and commonly
cone 10 Perlens in my Circumilances.

Mr. Feues Mr Ceriith, i you pleaf you fhall
have vour fim= of fpzaking fhereafrer, but now you
are aoly to plead withour eny more ado.

Mr. Corzifo. My Lord, 1 bzfeech you hear me
adiztle 5 I have bzen fo contired

Lord Adayor. Mr. Corzifh, yoa mult obferve the
Rules of the Court,

Mr. Corngz. My Lord, 1 hepe I fhall be allowed
what is cuftomary in fuch Cafes.

Lerd Mazysr, What 1s it you wonld have ?

Mr, Corngh, DMy Lord, 1 do defire, if your
1.orcfhip will pleafe to confider me

Ar. Feoreso Wouw'd you not be arraigned, Mr.
Csriyf2 2 Alwer youarearraigned and have pleaded,
you may fpzik,

Mr, Coreifo. Ler me ell your Lorcfnip what my

zfe1s: Is 1t reafonzble not to have zbove half a
day’s time for Preparation for my Trial, and no
Counfz] aliowed me:

o o Mr, Rerorder. Nor oughe, without
7 {83 Leave of the Court, or by Majeity’s
e r.

ipecial Appointment.
Mr. Corngh. 1 have not had a Friend to come
t0 me, out in the prefeace of Major Richardfon.
Mr. Recorder, None have in your Circomftances,
vir Corzifp. My Lord, ought not I to have a
Copy oi the Pannel? It is a thing never denied,
Kecarazr, 1t hath been denied very often *.

> It evas izdied devied 12 Stephen Colledge, Zut it avar allra'd Lord Ruffel,

Mr. Cornifp, My L.ord, it 1s'a matter wherein my
Life is concern’d 5 and therefore I hope your Lorg.
fhip will hear me. _

Mr. Fones. Alter you are arraign’d you may
{peak, and put off your Trial if you can.

Mr. Cornifh. My Lord Icannot go from this before
I poflefs your Lordfhip with a right Underftand-
ing of it; 1t 15 beyond Precedent: no fuch Prece-
dent, that any Man fhould be kepr with that
Striétnefs I have been,

Recorder. Mr., Coraifs, Twonder you will fay fo:
I tell you there 1s no Man accufed of your Crime
buc is fo Kept.

Mr, Coruith. 1t your Lordfhip pleafes to allow
me a lile nme, I do not queltion but 1 can very
well fatisty your Lordthip, and thishonourable Courr,
that [ am a very innocent Perfon.

Mr, Reearder. You will have your proper time
for that, but now you mult plead, that you may
hear the Particulars of your Charge; and have an
Opportunity to make out your Innocence 5 for we
muft keep the fame Method with you we do with
all other Perions in your Circumftances s and there-
fore you muft plead as other Perfons do.

Mr. Fones. Will you, or will you not, Sir, with-
cutany moreado? The Law gives you Advantage,
you may challenge any body; there are fourfcore
returned, honeft Men, and you may challenge who
you pleafe,

Mr. Cornifh. Alas! my Lord, whatcan I do?

Coniife!. He difputes out of time; he is to be ar-
raign’d,

Recorder. Come, Mr. Cornifh, you muft plead.

Mr. Corayh, 1 did underftand Iaft Nighe his Ma-
jefty was gracionfly pleafed to refer chefe mateers.
as t0 my Lrual, to my Lords the Judges; and. my
Lord, I do hepe that the Judges, when thev tear
this macier, that I thall have fome time allo=d

Recorder, Pray, Mr, Cornifh, take the Rul: of
the Court, your Bufinefs is now to plead 3 when
ycu have pleaded, whar you have to offer for the
putting off your T'rial may be heard then.

Clerk. Henry Corsifb, hold up thy Hand,

Mr. Corznifp, My Lord, 1 would do nothing
thar fhould be a dithonour to your Lordfhip and
the Court,

Sir Fames Smith, You know the way of the Court,
M. Cornifp 5 you mult plead.

Mr. Fouzs. If you will nor plead, 1 will move
tie Court to record your ftanding mute,

Mr. Coraifs. 1 have known thar this Court hath
eard what the Prifoner hath to fay at the Bar;

and [ have more to fay, perhaps, than any Man
that ever {teod at this Bar.

Rf:arder._ Mr. Corsiifh, when you have pleaded,
you have time to fpeak for your felf.
Cierk. Henry Cornifh, hold up thy Hand,

| [WWhich be did,
Thou ftandeft indicted by the Name of Henry

Coruifd. :
" HAT Hewry Cornifp, fate of the Parith of
St. Michasl Bafffpazy, Londen, Merchant, as
2 falfe Traitor againt the moft luftrious Prince
Charles the Second, late King of England, Scotland,
F_rau:e and Jreland, Defender of the Faith, then
1155 natural Lord, not having the Fear of God in
tas Heart, not weighing the Duty of his Allegiance,
but moved and feduced by the Inftigation of the
Devil, and the cordial Love, and true, dueand na-
tural Cbedience, which a troe and fajchfyl Subject
of our late Sovereign Lord the King towards our
late Sovereign Lord the King thould and of right

ought
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ought to bear, alrogether withd_rm'nn‘g; and n:md_
Ing, and with all his SErengﬁh J:DIEI'l‘dlng, the Peace
~nd common Tranguillity of th_ls Kingdoni of Eng-

moleft, and difturb, and War and

Jand to dilguiet | ‘
Rebellion t:l;gair:& our late Sovereign Lord the King,
within this Kingdom of Lugland to ftir up, move,

and procure ; and the Government of our {aid Jate
Sovereign Lord the King of this Kingdom of Eiig-
land to fubvert, change, and alzer, andiour fmd
Jate Sovereien Lord the King from the Title, Ho-

nour, and kingly Name of the Crown Imperial of .

this Kingdom ef England to depole a.nd deprive ;
and our faid late Sovertign Lord the King to Drath,
and final Deftruétion to bring and put: the 3oth
Day of May, in the 35th Year of the Reign of our
{1id Sovercizn Lord the King, and divers mher: Days
and Times, as well before as after, at che szx:lﬂl of
§t. Michael Baffifbazo, London, fallely, malicioufly,
devilifhly, and craicoroully, x}*lth divers falfe Trai-
tors to the Jurors unknown, did confpire, compafs,
imagine, and intend, our fud late Sovereign Lord
the King, his fopreme and natural Lord, not only
of his kingly State, Title, Power and Government
of this Kingdom of England to deprive and throw
down ; but alfo the faid late King to kill and put
to death, and the ancient Government of this his
Kingdom of England to change, alter, and altoge-
ther fubverr, and a miferable Slaughter amonglt
the Subjets of our late Lord the King thorcugh
this Kingdom of Eugland to caule and procure,
and InfurreCtion and Rebellion againft our faid late
Lord the King to procure, promote, and aflift :
And the fame moft wicked and devilith Treafons
and traitorous Compaffings, Imaginations, and Pur-
poles aforefaid to fulfil, perfed, and bring to effeét,
he the faid Henry Coriiifh, as a falfe Traitor, then
and there, to wit, the faid goth Day of May, in
the Year aforefaid, at the Parifh and Ward afore-
faid, falfcly, malicionlly, and traitoroufly, knowing
Fames the late Duke of Monmenth, William Ruff2!,
Eiquire, and Thomas Armftrong, Knight, and divers
other Rebels and Traitors, then lately before in the
Partth and Ward aforefaid within the faid City of
London, falfely, unlawfully, devilifhly, and traico-
roufly, to have conipired the Death and final De-
{truction of our faid late Sovereign Lord the King 3
he the faid Henry Cornifh, as a falfe Traitor, then
and thzre, to wit, the faid goth Day of May in the
Year atorefaid, within the Parith and Ward in the
faud City of Loidon, falfely, unlawfully, wickedly
and trattoroufly, did promife to the faid divers falfe
Lrattors and Rebels, then and there prefent, That
he the fard Henry Coriifh would be aiding and af-
hiting in the Treafons aforefaid, to be done, per-
<cted, and brought to effec, againtt the Duty of
his Allegiance, againtt the Peace, and againft the
orm of the Staure, &e.

Clerk. How fayeft thou, Henry Cornifh, art thou
guilty of this High-Treafon whereof thou fandeft
indiéled, or not guiley 2

Mr. Coriifb, This is an heinous Charge.

Counfel, Anfwer ; you know you muft anfwer.

Mz, C:ﬂ:'::fﬂ}. I am perfedtly innocent.

Counail, Are you guilty or not guilty ? You muft
take the Words,

Mz, Cariifh, Not Guilty.

far High—Treafom
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Clerk. He is arraign'd,

L. C. F. Fenes. Why don’t you go on with the
Jury? -

Mr. Coraifh. My Lord, 1 humbly pray your .
Lordfhip: 1 have fome ground for it—

L.C.}. Jones. You fhall be heard in good time,
Sir.
Mr. Coruifp. My poor Children laft Nighe pre-
fer’d a Petition to his Majclty, and he was pleaftd
to refer it moft gracioufly to my Lords the Judges;
and I now make my Application to your Lordfhips.

L.C. 7. Foues. Fave you any Anfwer to the
Petition, from the King ?

Mr. Cornifo. It was referr’d to your Lordfhips
the Judges, to conlider my Cafe,

L. C. F. Fones. We may hear more of your Bu-
finefs anon, when Mr, Attorney and Mr., Solicitor
do come : we will ftay here all they come, to know
whether there be any Order from the King to them
concerning you.

Mr, Coruifh. My Lord, I hope it will not be
offenfive 1t I fhould acquaint your Lordfhips what
Ufage I have met with fince I have been under
Confinement, 1 have been under very clofe Confine-
ment, 1 had no notice of my Trial till about
tweive a-clock on Saturday; no Friend came
to me il eight a clock at Night; and [ had no
time for Preparation for my Trial. My Lord,
thefe are hard things 3 but tho’ I am denied Coun-
{el, T truftin God I fhall not need Counfel, for 1
hope, if your Lordfhip pleafes to allow me time,
to clear my {elf of all Matcerss and I hope with
fuch Satisfattion to your Lordfhips, that you will
acquielce in whatfoever 1 {hall lay before your Lord-
thips. 1do not come to make an Harangue and
Talk ; my Cafe was fuch, that 1 had neither Pen,
Ink, nor Paper.

Mr, Juft. Withins.  Mr. Cornifb, Mr. Attorney
and Mr, Solicitor will come, we muft hear them.

L. C.}. Fones. You fhall be heard in your pro-
per ume; 1t is a firange thing you won’c be {itis-
fied; you fhall be heard, I tell you, in your proper
Lime.

Mr. North, We have arraigned one Feraley, if
you pleafe to try him, who (wih RKisg) was brought
to the Bar.

Clerk. You the Prifoners at the Bar, thofe Per-
fons you fhall hear call’'d, and appear, are to pafs
between our Sovereign Lord the King and you,
upon your feveral Lives and Deaths: if you wiil
challenge them or any of them, your time 15 to
challenge them when they come to the Book to
be fworn, before they be fworn.

Cryer. O-Yes! All manner of Perfons are com-
manded to keep fil:nce upon pain of Imprifon-
ment.

The Middlefex Jury.
Nebeniaah Ariold, William Thompfon,

Fraicis Stevens, IVilliam Read,
Richard Fifber, Samvel Peacock,
Fobn Howlet Richard Fitz-gerrard,
Jobin Pagures, Richard Bromfield,
Samuel Birch, Fobn Hayues,

Cryer. O-Yes! If any one can inform my Lords

Clerx. Culprit, how wilt thou be try’d ?

Mr. Coraifb. By the Great Ged of Heaven, and
my Country.
- Clerk, God fend thee g good Deliverance.

L. C. 7. Fones. I don’t know in what Stare things

are here i the Courts I can’t tell whether there be
a Jury return’d or no,

the King’s Jultices, the King’s Serjeant, or the
King’s Attorney, before this Inquelt be taken be-
tween our Sovereign Lord the King and Fobn Fers-
ley and William Ring, the Prifoners at the Bar, let
them come forth, and they fhall be heard ; for now

the Prifoners ftand at the Bar upon their Delive-
‘ rance ;
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rance : and 2ll Perfons that are bound by Recogni-
zance to Zive Evidence againit ¢ither of the Pnfu-
ners at thn. Bar, ler them come forth and give thar
Evidence, or eife they forfeit their Remﬂrmzancc
and 2il Jury-men of Alrddlgzx that have appear’d
and are not {w orn, jet them depait.

Coorz. Set IFuGain .uu.’é to the B.u, and {ct b}"

the oiher.

hold up thy Hand, You tha: are

IViliam Ring, y
fworn, Jook upon the Prifoner, and hearken F?.”I!s

Charge; he {iands zah..h.-.r:d by the I\ ame of 7
Lam .fwg, &c. {prems awte)  Your Charge lh t
enqulrs ¢ Syheiner e D8 ':1.3"} of the - Trealon where-
of he ftands ingiced, or no: guilty, S r
Mr. Piiprs. You, the G:rﬂ::r:r.n that are {vorn,
the Prxio::tr at the B.:.‘: Is inCicted for that Knowing

"n.

ore Friipo hiloza, and one [ 5T Laiwrente, 19
ke fali= Traiiors, acd 1o ::ne levied \War aoainit

the King; oa tne 208 h of 7ufy cii harbour, con-
ceal, and refieve thole Traizers, againlt the Du-
ty, &5c. Upon this he haill ;Ji_*.ua.d, Not Gutliy,

£,
t.-"-'- _

Mr A4 Gezo Gentzmen of the Jury,
Sir 2:2r2 the Courfe of cur Lvilence wili be thus:
Satuir,

L...., wayand Lrmriss were 1 lh*- lote [Le-

bellion in the 3 cil, 1ntheiae JJ..:..‘. of Sizimiinth’s
ﬁs.z-;.y . and af-er thar Bostle whoa s €y Wore oves-
(hrown, thev Cal .1.. i1 tu LeoiiZon and tne Priloner
-t the Bar receiv’d and cw*:::r-d them, and not
O"'] P"{}'LH scd 2 L.:-jf’t ??d .Ll.If..uL di: nd IJI’IHI{ IDI'

'll-"

them, Sut aienvards provides anctasr Lodging tor
them s and i Le lnow, for thry were very mer-
ry, t=liing the wolle Sieryv of the Fignes and roe-
¥ 13 s o
withitznging this e entirisits them. h ¢ w'l frlt
} '1 - C ) ‘.-H-I- ' -y
fnew vou the Rezerd of the Convidiion of Acisivay

and Lazrrcice, and toen cail VWitnclics o pm c the
i (The Recerd pro-

c
T — e
crher tl.h-ga upDr che £riioner.,
F

duced) Mr. Har

rea -..15;

Feiorb Reliewway frands dicied by the Name cf
Folzph Kelsway of 7enlon, In ng COL.I‘I) of Si-
TIer EI, Yeoman; and Heary Lawranzz of the fame

rith and County, Yeoman ; with a great miny
L. C. 7. Fruzs. See v hit they have done,

: i*  are indicted of Trezfon for levying
h:’. King, and they have confeffed the
on their Arraiznment ; and the Jude-
ment ug::.: the Indictment, 1, That M:/E:.:i Kello-
way, ard the rei of 1oem there, foonld be I:d ts the
Pr 1,27 r?' 1 SEDEnee fzm Carist, aid f;f.-n theizce 19 bz
.G‘f..ﬂ:r'f :f:' fﬂ" P!” f""'fj 11:4. LH”JL, {Ihﬁn" H:-.?u f!.?f G..J;!S':L'f
Lera 15 52 bargd, €very oii: of taca in fb-‘*_;fz:![' 11
i, Jf.f"::frg 19 fc ¢! dizciny and 1h:ir Entrails to
bz tazen cut of 1o:r Bedics) thoir H..:: to bz takies

1:""

..,‘

Sl ot
off from thzir Bidizs, and 1h.ir Budies divided into fonr
Q;z:zr:‘ T3,

Mr, At Gzn, This thews they were Tratsors,
Now we wil thew you, that in the mean time be-
twesn theis Treafon and Cu wicticn, s Prifoner
did receive all N Darnisgics,

rr,

bo was fworn,
Mr. Barriizton, whit do you know
\Vir K7
gtail. Ir it pieafe you, my Lord, on
% 1aft T was abroad abour my Ma-
d 17 the mcan nme wien I was ab-
G m’d, there came Me. Rz, who
at the Sign of the Bible; and

urn’d, 1\":1 told, that M. Rinz was at

ll-r- e i
L.l.-l-n-n- -

the 11th of
fiet’s Baungd 5
tenty as I was
[ives

«d
ii
Jnf: ’I{*JE

en I ren

126. Arraignment of Willam Ring,

1 Jac 11,

our Houlfe to fpeak with me, and that there was one
Mr, Lawrence there at Mr, Ring’s ar the Bible i
J7s¢0-fireet 5 and when 1 came there, there was
Mr. Lawrence at Mr, Ring’s Houle 5 and when |
came to the Houfe on the right hand, there was his
Wite, as I take it: 1 afked for Mr, Lawrence, and
fth: wasa little ar a Stand, Said I, I underftand My,
Rins was in fuch a Place to inform me Mr, Law-.
reace defired to fpeak with me, Upon that he fhew’d
me wiere he was: I went up to him, and he was
ying upon the Bed very weary and tired 5 and when
I had been there a while, there came in one Kellzway,
and they 121d they came both out of the Welt Coun-
try, and came on Friday Night, and I faw them on
Satarday. 1t pleafe your Lordfhip, I called there
afrer, and knocked at Mr. Rizg’s Door, and there
canie 1 Woman and made anlwer, Thae they were
cone from thence both of them, and that they wers
to ¢o on Ship-board to fee fome Friends; and |
called there on IVednefday the 15th Day at Nighe,
o fee Mr, Laswrence ag Mr, Riig’s Houfe, and My,
Lawreance told me he was going from thence to the
Pewier-Piatter in 32, jd; 53 and when Mr. Com.
mon Serjeant came to examine me about thefe Men,
I made a true Confeflion, that they were ac M,

ay

Rirg’sy and removed 1o the Pewter-Platter - and
when we came 1o learch ar the Pewzer- Platter, a:
firft they did not know any fuch Men, dll we de-
fcribed them. Then they confﬁﬁld there were fuch
Men there on Tugfday and [Wednefday Night, but not
the Night belore, which was Thurfday N:ght. From
thence we went without Temple- Bar to Mr, Ring's,
where they were at firlt 5 and Mr, Crifp and T went
together 10 enguire for thefe Men, and there was
a Wom: an, which 1 think is Mr, Ring’s Wife, I can’t
reil, 1 c::qu ired for thefe Men, and fthe made an-
fwer, That they were not there at prefent, and faid
fhe could not tell ar prefent, but that they lav there
the iaft Nighe, which was Thurfday Night 5 that was
Ring’s Wiie, I wake 1, thould fay they were there
the I\r‘nr before, fo after thatr fhe had owned th ey
fay there on the Turfday Night, fhe afked me what
this Gentleman was 3 {o [ m]d her, a Friend of mine.
So afterwards we were at the Caftle- Tavern wizhout
Temple- Bai by 8t Clemznr’s Church, and Mr. Com-
moi S..;J.......ut was pleafed to fend for Mr. Ring
to examine him about thefe Men, what Lodgers
he b ad in s Honfeon Friday Nighe,Satur Ay Nlﬂht,
Suiday Night, and IVL:.HJ} Nlﬂht. Mr, ng kncw
rothing of any Men that came uutof the Country
io vpon that, be denying ir, Mr. Common Ser-
jeant order’d his Houfe to be fearch’d, and in
frarching, they found a Paper upon the Ch'lmb“r-
Win dm. that was brought to the Caftle-Tavern,
vhere Mr. Rizg was, a and the Paper was procuced,

and Mr., Kz would confefs nothing till fuch time
as they ﬁour.d that Papt

f’L C 7. Jones. Sce, 1s that the Paper you fpeak
0

ir. Baritigton. That s all T have to fay, if it
1-’::1 & your Luraﬂnl
L.C. ] Jounzs. Did you fee them in the

OI [x“fg "'

Vir. B'IH raten, 1 did not fee him when T was at
ine rJoule.

Mr. 3el. Gen. You fay Mr. Ring Mr. Fine!
weuld confels rothing till fuch time as o

the Paper was fuunu what did he fay after the
Paper was found ?

Mr. Jomes. Ring was by, what d
producing that Paper

L.C. 7. Jonzs, Was the Paper thew’d to hi
I

Compnn‘y

1

id he fay upon

m?e
Mr,
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Mr. Barrington. 1 think not 3 he would have feen

" Mr, Juft, #ithins. You fay he would confefs no-
thing till chat Paper was produced. |
M. Barrington. Truly, I can fay no more of 1t.
Mr. Fones, Whenthe Paper was produced at the
Caftle-Tavern, what did he fay tl_len?
Mz, Jult. Withins, Whatdid Ring fay at the Ga 3 e-

Tavern?
Mr. Barrington. 1 can’t remember, but that he

denied every thing,.

Clerk, Call Mr., Barrow. [Who was fworn.

Mr. Barrow. Sir, I heard Ring confefs to my
Tord Mayor in Fuly laft, that he lodg’d Lawrence
and Kelloway, and that Lacwrence and Kelloway did
tell him, chat they had been both in the late Weflern
Rebellion in Monmonth’s Army 5 and that after
that, he had lodg’d them two or three Nights, this
I heard him confefs. ‘

Counfel. Pray fpeak it again.

Mr. Barrow, That Lawrence and Kelloway had
told Mr. Ring,” they had been in the late /7eftern
Rebellion in Monmonth’s Army, and that he had
lodg’d them two or three Nights in his own Houle.

Mr. Common Serjeant, What did you hear him
fay concerning Mr, Herle ?

Mr. Barroso. There was fome talk concerning
Mr, Herle or Hurle,

L.C. . Fones. Did he fay he lodg’d them, after
they had told him that ¢

Mr. Berrow, After that, That is all I can fay.

Clerk, Call Mr. Crifp. [Who was fworn.

Counfel. Give my Lord and the Jury an Account
of what you know concerning Mr. Ring.

Mr. Crifp. T went to fearch Mr. Ring’s Houfe,
my Lord, and in the Window there was that Letter
under Mr. Lawrence’s own Hand, fealed up and di-
refted to Newberry for a Horfe which he had ftole
from his Mafter, and left at Newberry, which
Letter I brought to the Tavern ; and when we
came to the Tavern, we examin’d him, and
he denied every thing; but at laft we fhew’d
him the Letter, and he own’d he had fuch a Coufin,
and another that he did not know, but that he did
not lodge there then. And when he came to the
Seflions-Houfe, Lawrence and Kelloway were pro-
duced before him, and were examined what Account
they had given to him, when they came to his
Houfe; they told him after the Duke of Monmonth
was beaten, they ran away to London, and Kelloway
being his Coufin, brought Lswrence with him ;
they told him the Duke was beaten, and lay there
Friday Night, Salurday Night, Sunday Night, and
Mondey Nighe.

Mr, Fones, He own’d he knew Mr, Kelloway,
Mr, Crifp. Yes,

L.C.¥. Andthat Kelloway had been in the Duke’s
Army, and that he was beaten.

Mr. Crifp. Yes.

L.C. ¥. What did Ring fay upon it ?

I’:/Ir. Grifp. Ring faid nothing there to it 3 he con-
fefs’d he lodg’d them two or three Nights,

Counfel. Swear Mr, Hardifty,  [Which was done.
. Mr. A1, Gen. Mr. Hardifly, pray will you give my

ord and the Jury an Account of his Examination ?

Mr. Hardifty. 1 was direted to ateend my Lord

ayor at the Examination of M. Ring, the Prifo-
ner at the Bar, above here in the Room, and did
accordingly ; and upon Examination, my Lord,

:Iiz I:iida[?;ialfe_this Confcﬂ'lo_n. This is the Exami-
by ﬂimfemlt 525 he gave it in himfelf, and Agned

- 4

for High-Treafon.
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L.C. ¥, Fones. And read to him?

Mr. Hardifty. Yes, half a dozen times; T believe.
Mr, Common Serjeant. My Lord, upon the ap-

pearing of Lawrence and Kelloway before him then,
he confefs’d all.

The Examination of William Ring, of the Parifh of
St. Clement Danes in the County of Middlefex,
Taylor, taken before the Right Homourable Sir
Tames Smith, Kuight, Lord Mayor of the City of
London, this 18tb Day of July, 1685. who being
examined, faith as followeth, * |

HAT Fofepb Kelloway, and one Henry Law-
rence, the faid Kelloway's Acquaintance, came

to this Examinant’s Houfe on Friday or Saturday
laft 3 that this Examinant did afk of Kelloway (being
this Examinant’s Kinfman) what did drive them to
Town? That they told this Examinant, that they
went to Monmouth, that he was routed, and that
brought them to Town, or to that purpofe: that
they were in Mommouth’s Army. That the Night
they came, he this Examinant told them, he was
unwilling to lodge them 5 that he this Examinant
did lodge them after this Difcourfe, Saturday, Sun-
day, and Monday Nights, and they dined twice with
this Examinant; that they were at his Houfe on
Fridsy Morning 3 but where they lay on Wednzfdny
and Thurfday, faith he knows not. Saith, that
Lawrence fent this Examinant to 2 Glover in 84
Bartholomew’s Clofe, who was a Journeyman in the
Houfe, as this Examinanc fuppofeth, and told
the Mafter of the Houfe, that'there was a Kinfman
of his Journey-man’s would fpeak with his Journey-
man. Saith, Kelloway and his Acquaintance told
this Examinant, that they left their Horfes at
Newberry. That a Note being produced, direted
to this Examinant, to deliver {feveral Goods therein
mentioned, and being examined upon the faid Note,
this Examinant faich, that he this Examinant was
fent for to the Caflle-Tavern near Shoe-lane in Fleei-

ftrezt, and one Bond brought this Examinant the

Note above-mentioned, and now produced to him ;
believes the Note to be the hand-writing of Fames
Hooper, 'That this Examinant was there to enquire
of one Hearne, but expeéted to meet Fames Hoaper,
who formerly told this Examinant that he went by
the Name of Hearse. That being in IDhfcourle
with Fames Hooper about the time of the late Duke
of Mommoeuth’s Landing, Fames Hooper told this
Examinant, that his the faid Hooper’s Brother was
with the Duke of Monmouth, and that he the faid
Fames Hooper would go to him the faid Duke, or to
that purpofe.  Further, this Examinant faith, that
about a Fortnight ago he carried, according to 2
Note from Hooper to that purpole, to a Joiner’s
Houfe in Jvy-lans, London, a Cravat and a Pair of
Cuffs, and then enquired for Hooper of 2 Woman
of the faid Houfe; and faith, that then he this Ex-
minant did fpeak with Fames Hosper who lay pri-
vate there, becaufe, as this Examinant believes,
the faid Hooper was concerned in the Rebellion.
Saith, he hath not {een him the faid Hooper this
Fortnight, nor heard from him otherwife than by
the Note now produced. Will. Ring.
Taken before me Sir James Smith, Lord-Mayor.

Mr, 4t. Gen. Call Mr. Richardfon, to prove that
thefe were the fame Men that were carried down.
[Who was fworn] Mr. Richardfon, pray give an
Account, whether thefe were the Men you carried

down into the #eft,
My
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Mr. Rickardfon. My Lord, thofe two Perions,
that is, Fofeph Kelloway and Henry Lawrence, that
were commitced for being in the late Rebellion, I
carried them both down into the Weft, where they
were both convifted ; one is executed, and the

other has a Reprieve.
Mr. Juft, Withins, Henry Lawrence Was

Hunt’s Man, o
Mr. Richardfon. The fame, he ran away with his

Horfe and Arms,
L. C. % Jones. Can you tell thefe were the fame
Men that-were prefent at his Examination ¢

Mr. Richardfon. The very fame Men ; they were
commirted at the fame time ; he was examined be-
fore them, for they were all committed at the fame
time together, .

L. C. 5. Fones. What do you fay, Sir 3 you the

Prifoner at the Bar, what do you fay for yourfelt s
Mr. Ring. 1 did not underftand what they were.

L.C. 9. You knew the Prifoners, one of them
was your Kinfman |

Mr. Ring. 1 did know him, but the other Idid
not know ; I did not know what Defign they had

been upon, |
1. C, ¥. Fones, Your own Examination fays, you

did.

Mr. Ring. Then my Examination is wrong.

L.C. . Fones, Hear, hear again: You did re-
ceive them, and then they told you that they were
in Monmouth’s Army, and that Monmonth was
beaten ; and afierwards you continued to harbour
them in your Houfe-three Nights,

Mr. Juft. Withins, And dined twice with them.

Mr. Ring. My Lord, I never heard of 1t.

L. C. Baron, That Gentleman heard you fay,
they had told you they had been in Moumonth’s
Army, and you lodged them after.

Mr, Crifp. Yes, my Lord; and when we were
there, the Woman would not own them.

L. C. . Fones. Why did you hide them in your
Houfe, and not confefs it ?

Mr, Ring, At firft I did deny it.

Counfel. Yes, and did deny 1t, till Lawreiuce and
the other Man were brought before you,

Mr. Ring. My Lord, what I did was ignorantly
done.

L.C. 7. Fones. Did you hear your Examination
.now read?

Mr, Ring. I heard moft of it, I believe,

L. C.%F. Fones, Pray let it be read again.
Counfel. It was read over and over four or five

LIMES.

Mr., Hardifty. He was upon it, I believe, an hour
together: it was taken firft 10 parts, and as he re-
colleted himfelf it was compared, and afterwards
my Lord-Mayor defired him to confider with him-
felf: and then the Examination was written fair
over, and he figned i, and it was read feveral times,
fix or feven times.

Mr, Ring. My Lord, 1 do acknowledge 1 did
lodge them, but I did not undeftand what Delign
they had been upon. :

L. C. 7. ores. But you {ee here you have ac-
knowledged they faid they were in the Army, and
you did lodge them afterwards ; they were of Mou-
mou!l’s Party, they had rold you fo. Read that
part again,

Mr, Hardifty. Fofeph Kelloway, and one Latwrence
the faid Kelloway's Acquaintance, came to this Ex-
aminant’s Houfe on Friday or Salurday laft 5 that
this Examinant did afk Kelloway, being this Exami-
nant’s Kinfman, what did drive them to Town?

I

-igé

Captain

William Ring,
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That they told this Examinant, that they went. o
Monmouth, that he was routed, and that that brough,
them to Town.

My, Ring. 1 never {aid that Word.

Mr, Jult, #ithins. It is under your Hand.

Mr, Ring. 1f it be under my Hand, I never faid it

Mr. Sol. Gen. Was that partread to him ¢ -
- Mr. Hardifty. Xes.

L.C. . Fones. Read on.

Mr. Hardifty. That they were in Monmouib’s Ar.
my ; that the Night they came, this Examinant told
them, he was unwilling to lodge them, and that
this Examinant did lodge them after this Difcovery,
Saturday, Sunday, and Mouday Night, and they
dined twice at this Examinant’s Houle,

L.C.%. Fones. What do you fay now to this?
Can there be any thing more plain ¢

Mr. Ring. I do acknowledge, my Lord, I did
lodge them, but I was not fenfible what the Iffue
of this Bufinefs would be.

L.C.¥. Fones, You did not know, that to har.
bour known Traitors was High-Treafon.

Mr. Ring. My Lord, 1 don’c know whether
they came from Aoumouih or no.

L. C. . Fones, It is no great matter whether you
do or no ; they told you fo.

Mr. Ring. 1never heard fucha Word from them.

L. C. 7. Fones, How came 1t to be put in yout
Examination?®

Mr, Ring. 1 don’t know, my Lord, when 1t was
taken I was in amaze. I think the Parifh knew well
enough, that I never kept any fuch Company, nor
had any {uch Defign.

Mr. Juft, Withins, He confefles it over Nighr,
caufes it to be writ down next Day, and lets his
Hand to it too: Nothing can be more plain,

L.C. ¥. Thatis a great Argument you were nos
in fuch furprize, that you had not the ule of your
Underftanding 3 for you confeffed the {fame thing
over Night, and you had time to confider of it all
Night, and you came the next Morning, and then
confeflfed as now it is written, and put your Hand
to 1t.

Mr. Ring. I was ordered to put my Hand to it.

L.C.¥. Fones. That is, if you acknowledged it
to be true.,

M. Ring. 1did ro: know what was put down.

Mr, Juft. Levinz, The matter 1s fo plain, that
nothing can be more. When they came to you,
they inform’d you where they had been, and after-
wards you were unwilling to lodge them; you
knew therefore they had been in the Rebels Army,
and fo the matter 1splain: and for ought I can hear,
this is not the firlt time yeu have harbour’d fuch
Men. | |

L.C. §. Fones. There is another thing touching
one Hurle; but'you are not charged with it in the
Inditment, and fo we don’t trouble the Jury with
any Evidence concerning that. Have you any
more to fay?¢ -

Mr. Ring. 1do acknowledge, my Lord, that I
]-:]Jl(_:lg’d them 3 buc I did not underftand any thing
elfe,

L. C. 7. Jones, Why! did not you confefs it ?

Mr. Ring. I did not confefs it. |

Mr. Jult. Witkins, And you fhifced Lodging for
them after they were known 1o you.

Mr. Ring. 1did not,

L. C. F.Foues, Gentlemen of the Jury, the
Prifoner ftands indited of High-Treafon for re-
ceiving Fofeph Kelloway and Henry Lawrence, who
were Trattors, and known to him to be Traitors,
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and harbouring them in his Houfe, and gglﬂg
hem Entertainment and Comfort : This, Gen-
:lemen is clearly High-Treafon by Law; and
tho' this Man himfelf were not in actual Re-
bellion, yet if he do receive any that he knows
to have Deen fo, he 1s equally guilty ; he 1s 2
principal Traitor by the Judgment of the Law,
and however he would now pretend his Ignorance,
that he did not know that they were 1n the Army,
or, it he did know they were in the Army, that
he had incurr’d fo great a Danger as the Forfeiture
of his Life, which now he ftands as well as he can to
defend ; yet it does appear plainly to you, not only
by his own Confeffion taken upon his Examination
but likewife by the Teftimony of the W:tneﬁ'es,
who were prefent at the time when he did confefs
that thefe Men had difcoux:fed with him, and
acknowledged that they were In Mormonth’s Army,
and that he was routed, and that yet l}e dld'enter-
tain and recetve them, The ﬁrﬁ:‘WJtnefs mde_ed
does not fay the very thing, but itis very much in-
ducing to the Evidence that is given more exprefs
by the other Witnefs : for he fays that he was at
his Houfe, and he enquir’d for them there, tho® he
did not fee him at all, but his People ; and they
not only did confels that they had lodged there,
but that there was a Lodging provided for them
elfewhere : But however, if that were quite laid
afide, and not taken at all into Confideration, yet
what is teftified by the other Witneffes, and upon
his own Examination, makes it as clear and plain as
can be, that he did receive thefe Perfons into his
Houfe, and comfort them, and entertain them,
knowing them to have been guilty of High-T'rea-
fon, that is, to have been in the Army of Monmonth,
of that Party, and that they came to London, and
went away from the 77 becaufe he was beaten ;
and there 15 an Expreflion in the Examination to
that purpofe : {o that I take the Indi®ment to be
very full and clearly prov’d upon him s and it
1s not his Ignorance of the Law that will excufe him,
that is, his Ignorance of the Danger that he hath
incurr’d by entertaining thefe People 5 altho’ you
catinot but take notice, that he was in fome dread
and fear that it was an Offence to do fo « for ar
firft he fays by his Examination, that he did refufe
to entertain them, which fhews thatr he had fome
Confideration of the Danger that he might incur by
receving them : and yet after this plan Diftourfe
of theirs, that they were in the Army, he entertaing
them. That they were the fame Men that were in
the Army, appears plamly : for though at firlt he
did deny 1t, and did ftand in it, before he was con-
tronted by the Men, they being prefent s yet after-
wards he did confefs, that they were the Men that
were entertain’d by him 3 and that they were the
fame Men, doth appear by the Teftimony of Cap-
@in Richardfon, who faw them, and afterwards
caufed them to be brought down to the Ve, where
one of them wasexecuted for Treafon, So] mult leave
i toyou, Gentlemen. I think itisa very plain Cafe,

Mr. Riug. Here is abundance of thefe things
that I know nothing of.

Coanfel, Ser Feby Feriley to the Bar.
LV bich was done,
Clerk. Fobn Fernley, hold up thy Hand. You
that are fvorn, Jook upon the Prifoner, and hearken
to his Charge : He ftands indicted by the Name of
Jobir Frnley, &c (pront ante,)
Mr. Phipps. This is an IndiQment of High-
Treafon againgt Jobi Feruky, the Prifoner at the

BJI‘:I[{-I nd Yahs v/
Vor, Ie $ ﬁ}rth:, that the faid Yobis Fernly know-

for High<Treafon.” °
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ing one Yanies Bitton to be.a Traitor; and to have
confpir’d againft the Life of the King; did traito-
roufly conceal the faid Burton two Days and two
Nights, and gave him Meat and Drink againft the
Duty, &, . - |

I:dyxt. §¢f, Gen. May it pledfe your Lordthip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury, this Prifoner {tands
indi€ted of Treafon for receiving and harbauring
one james Burton who was guilty of Treafor, he
knowing him to have been guilty of Treafon. And
the courfe of our Evidence will be this : We will prove
that this Fames Burion ftood outlawed for Trealon
before he committed a new Treafon, when he went
into the /7¢f, and was there with Mommouth in the
late Rebellion; and tho’, Gentlemen, the very
Outlawry againft the faid Burson is enough to fatisfy
any Man, that this Man could not be ignorant that
he was a Traitor, for no Man can imagine, when 2
Man ftands outa Procefs till he become out-lawed
for High-Treafon, that any fhould be ignorant
that he is guilty of Treafon, and that ir would be
very dangerous to receive a Man after that, with-
out any more Lvidence: But this Burton, after ha
was outliwed and fled, came again, and was
in Arms with Monmouth in the Rebellion 3 and
after their Defeat he came up to Town: And
Fernley knowing he had been then in the Weft
with Moninouth, he received him, and harboured
him ; and this we will prove by Witnefles, Firft,
we will fhew the Record of the Outlawry,

Clerk. An Indiffment preferr’d apainft Tames
Buarton, and divers others for High-Treafon, for
which the faid Burton and divers others fand out-
lawed, by the Returi of Samuel Dathwood Efgs
and Sir Peter Daniel, Skeriffs, This is the Re-
cord 1t felf, my Lord,

Counfel. Swear Mr. Hard. [Which was done,

Mr. Jult. Withins, Look upon it; Mr. Ward ; is
that the Record ?

Mr. Ward. Yes, itis, my Lord.

Mr. Jult, Withins, Prayfec when the Outlawry was,

Mr. Hardifly. Upon Monday unext after the Feaft of
S¢. Martin, Bifbop, the faid Richard Rumbold,
Richard Goodenough, Francis Goodenough : [Here
are the Names of a great many Men,]

Mr. Juft. Withins, Is Fames Burton among them ?

Mr. Hardiffy. On Monday next after the Feoff
of 8. Michael, he faid Richard Rumbold, James
Burton, Richard Nelthorp, are outlawwed, and
cvery one of thesn is omtlawed ——t is Nopvewdber
was Twelve-month.

Call Fames Burton. [Vho was fwoiy,

Mr. Nerth. Fames Burton, ftand up there: Do
you give my Lord and the Jury an account con-
cerning your being in the #7#, and your being;
entertain’d here at Mr, Fernley’s Houfe, with al]
the Circumftances,

Mr. Burton. I came out of the B2# into Log.

don, on Wednefday Night from Moumouth's Army,

L. C. F. Fones. What W ednefday Night?
Mr. Burion., Truly 1 have forgot the Day of

the Month, but it was about three Weeks after

the Rout, and I came home to my Wife and-
ftaid two Nights, and fhe was not fatisfied J
fhould be there, and went to endeavour to get
A Lodging for me for two or three Nights, and
(he went to get leave at Mr. Fernley’s for me to
be there two or three Nights; and I went thither
on Fridgy Night, and on Sabbath-day in the Eyen-
Ing I was taken there.

Mr. Sol. Ger. Speak aloud; fay that agdin,
T Mr,
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M. Berton.  On Wednefday Night I came out of
the Country, after I had been in the Army; Icame
home to my Wife, and ftaid &ll Fridey Night, and
on Fridsy Night fhe got me a Lodging 3?{_ Mr.
Fernleys 5 there I went about ten a-clock at Night,
and ftaid there «ill Sunday Night, and I was
taken.,

Mr. Juft. #3bins. Did you fee Mr. Fernley ?

Mr. Burizn. 1{aw him 2t Dinner on S¥xday, and
not before. _

L.C.¥F. Foues, What Acquaintance had you
before? He does not keep a publick Houfe, does
he? :

Mr, Bzriziz, 1 had been gone two Years, or very
nigh,

L. C.%F. Feres. What was the Occalion of your

ong, ?
® M. Berten. My Wife was acquainted there.

L. C. F. Fores. What was the Occafion of
your golng away, and your Abfence for two
Years ?

Mr. Burten. The QOccalion of my going then,
wzs, I wasn the Proclamation {or being with Run-
bold ot the Mitre-Tavern vathin Aldzate.

Mr. Jult, Levinz,  Fersley knew you before, did
not be ?

Mr. Burton. He knew me by Sight,

Mr. Juft. Leoizs, Had you any Acquainiance
with him ?

Mr. Burteiz, 1 lived pretty near to him for a
while,

Mr. Juft. Levinz. How near 3

Mr. Burtsn. 1 lived within two or three Deors of
him.

Mr. Juft. Lswiaz, Did he know you ?

Mr. Burton, Yes, yes, he did know me.

Mr. Juft. Leeinz.  You came to lodge at his
Houfe on Fridsy Night?

Mr. Burton. Yes, an’t pleafe you.

Mr. Juft. Levinz, Had you no Difcourfe till Sii-
day you dined together ?

Mr. Burtsz. No, nottill Suidey at Dinner.

Mr. Jult. #1tbins. Teli your Difcourfe at Dinner.

Mr. Burtsn, My Lord, 1 have forgot what alto-
gether the Difcourfe was ; 1 had fome Difcourfe of
the Army 5 he knew I was in the Army.

L.C.7. Fones. 1 would have you fpeak the Senfe,

fo far as you remember of the Difcourfe ar that Time
with him,

Mr, Bartsn, The Senfe, as far as 1 remember,
was, thar the Army was routed.

L.C. 7. Fores. And that you were there ?
Mr. Barton, He knew I was there.

there ?

Mer. Burtsn. 1 believe I told him fo my {elf,

Mr. Juft, Upon your Oath, did he know
you i;led upon the Account of the Proclamation be-
fore:

Mr. Burten. It is like he might know it by o-
thers, but not Dy me.

5 L.C.F. Fones. When were youtaken; What
y ?
Mr. Barton. ¥ was taken on Swnday in the Even-

+ ing: I had been four Days in London 3 two Daysac
Home, and two Days ar his Houfe,

L. C. J. Fores. Did you not fee him before Sun-
day at Dinner 2 '

- Mr. Baresn. My Lord, he was in the Shop all
Safurday ; he is a Barber.

Mr. Jult. 7itbins, You ]ay}:rivately at his Houfe
all Saturdey 2

196. The Trial of John Fernley,

1 Jac. 11,
Mr. Burton. Yes, my Lord, privately, =
Counfel. Call Mary Burton.

[#Vbo 2as ﬁwﬂ:_]
Mr. North. How came this Man to lodee 3t M:

D
Fernley’s Houle, can you givean Account ? and

1t was ¢

Mrs.. Burton. Becaufe I thought he was not fife
at home ; and having Acquaintance with Mrs, £y
fey, lodging pretty near, and ithe being a young Wo.
man, and having Children, Ihad Acquaintance, go.
ing to and fro; and we having a clofc Houfe apg
no Yard, I had the Privilege of going to dry
Linnen there, fo that we had Acquaintance, and
a Jittle Farmliarity ; and beingacquainted, I thoughe
I might have Entertainment there; that is alj |
can fay.

L.C. 5. Fones. Were you at Dinner upon Suy-
day ?

Mrs., Burton. Yes, I was at Dinnper.

L. C. 5. Jones. What Difcourie had they at Din-

ner ?
Mrs, Burten. Indeed T can’t fay they had any Dif-
courfe, I was very ill and laid me down upon the

Bed, and fell afleep.

L.C. 7. Foues. You are upon your Qath,

Mrs. Buiton, I know I am, Sir.

L. C.F. Fenes. What Difcourfe was ar Dinner?
Mrs, Burter, Whilft T was eating, I did not
mind,

Mr. Juft. Levinz, You livid clofe by, why did
you afk for a Lodging there ?

Mrs. Burtzn, We do not live clofe by now, I
live with my Daughter, I have no Boufe now.

Mr. Jult, Levinz, She knew he was your Haf
band, why fhould you lodge your Hufband at ano-
ther Houfe, than where you lodged your felf?

Murs. Burton, What was it you faid, My Lord

Mr. Jult. Levinz. Sure you would give the Wo-
man fome Account, why you lodged your Huf-
band at another Houfe than where you lodged your
{clf.

Mrs. Burton. She was not altogether a Stranger,
and upon the Account of the Proclamation there
were none of them Strangers, |

L.C. 7. Fones. Tor whom did you afk a Lodg-
Ing ?
Mrs. Burten. For my Hufband.

Mr. Nerth. Did you fpeak with Mr., Fernley him-
felf ?

Mrs, Burten. 1did not fpeak with Mr, Feruley
himfelf.

Mr. North. On Sunday you faw him at Dinner 2
Mrs. Burton. Yes, I faw him at Dinner.

Mr. Jult. Levinz, Had you any Difcourfe with

them about the Proclamation ?

Mr. At Gen. About your Hufband’s going away
upon that Proclamation ;

Mrs. Burtos. An’t pleafe you, my Lord, my Dif-

trefs was fo great, that I was hardly in my Senfes
todifcourfe with any body; bur, 1 thank God, I
am now In my Senfes between whiles, :

Mr, 4t Ges, Had you any Difcourfe with you

Neighbours about that Proclamation your Hufband
Wwent away upon ?

Mrs. Burton. 1 had not, indeed.
Then Mr. Reynolds was fworn,
Mr. North. Mr. Reyiolids, what do you know
concerning Mr, Burtow’s being lodged at Mr. Feri-
ley’s Houle ¢

Mr. Reynolds. Towards the Beginning of Anpuft

laft, hearing that there were feveral that were in the

e lark’d about apping, 1 took the Licutenan?
0

h}r
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of the Tower’s Warrant, and we had {ome Intima-
toiorf 1Lﬁthat:: a fufpected Perfon lay at My, Fernley’s
Ho;fe; 1 went on Sunday about eight a-clock at
Night, and took Mr. Burton in Mr. Feriley’s Houle.
Mr. Tuft. Withins. You took him there, did you
Mk, Reynolds. 1 took him there, my Lord.
Mr. A7, Gen. Did you fpeak with Feritley before
took Burfon?
YO;/I?.OR@WMJ. I took Burteny and Mr. Fernley
being Mafter of the Houfe, 1 withed the Confiable

to fecure him for harbouring him.

Mr. At Gen. What did Fernley fay ¢

Mr. Reynolds. Says 1, Mr. _Ff’r;zl@r, I{OW come
you to harbour Mr. Burton that is in the King’s Pro-
clamation s he is 2 Traitor, you know. Says he, 1
did not know it was Mr. Buison, but my Wife de-
Gired me to lie out of the Chamber where I lay be-
fore, that a Friend of her's might lie there for two
ot three Days.

Mr. 4. Genr. Where did you find him ?

Mr. Reyuolds. He was in a Room up one pair of
Stairs, up the Chimney ; and while we were there,
he fell down the Chimney, withall the Soot about
him : Mr, Fernley was then one pair of Stairs
higher 3 and I defired the Conftable to go up to fee
for him.

Mr. A, Gen. Had you no Dilcourfe with him
about the Bufinefs of being in the Army ? With
Fernley, 1 mean.

Mr. Reynolds. No, my Lord.

L.C.¥. Did you hear no Difcourfe between Bur-
Zoy and him?

Mr. Reynolds. No, my Lord.

Mr. Juft. #ithins, e was very friendly, to lie
out of his own Chamber for him.

Mr. Reynolds. ‘They were put in two feparate
Chambers, by the King’s Direction, till they were
fent to Newgate.

Mr. 4t Gen. Did he tell you on Sunday Night
that he did not know 1t was Busie.

Mr. Reynelds. To the beft of my Remembrance,
he did fo, when I brought him to the Tower.

M. At.Gen. And yet he dined with him on Swiday.

Mr. Reynolds. 1 looked upon it as an Excufe,

Mr, North, What Day was Buiton taken ?

Mr. Reynolds. It was Sunday.

Mr., North. What time on Susnday ?

Mr. Reynolds.  Sunday about eight a-clock at
Night. He had been in Bed, my Lord, I believe s
and before we could get open the Door, I believe he
got out of Bed, and went to get up the Chimney.

Mr. Sol. Gen.  Gentlemen, you obferve in the
courfe of the Evidence, that the fArft Evidence we
produce 1s Fames Burton 3 now Fames Burton frood
outlawed for Treafon, and as he ftands outlawed ke
18 not a competent Witnefs : but now to take off
that Objection which the Prifoner ought to make,
but we make it for him, we thew you here a Par-
don whereby that Outlawry is difcharg’d, {o that he
ftands now a very legal Witnefs.

Mr. Jult. Withins. You underftand, Gentlemen,
what Mr. Sollicitor mentions.

[ The Pardon produced and read.]

L.C. ¥. Fones, What fay you ?

Mr. Ferinley. My Lord, I am charged for enter-
tanmg Burton, My Lord, I knew nothing of him
when he came into my Houfe till Sabbath-day at
Dinner, I afked my Wife what time Burton came
in 5 fhe told me he came on Friday Night, Satur-
- day was a bufy Day with me, my Lord; on Sunday
_Mormng I gotup and went to Church 3 when I
came from Church, I went up toDinner ; and when

Yor. 1V,

- for High-Treafos:

 Icamein and faw him, I afked him, what in the
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Name of God brought him there? It hath pleafed
God, faid he, to preferve me hitherto 5 and my Wife
interceded fo far, as to pracure me a Night’s Lodg-
ing, which I hope may be no Detriment to you, I
with it may not, faid I3 and atDinner I atked him,
how he made his Efcape, and he told me how he.
did efcape. Says I, whatdo you mean to do? Siys
he, fome Friends will procure ne a Paffage beyond
Sea. Upon this I confidered with my felf, and dif-
cours’d with him about the #72f, and his Efcape out
of it ; and about half an hour after we had dined,
one knocked at the Door,

Mr. Juft, Levinz, What Day was this ?

Mr. Fernley. Sabbath-day at Noon, fome body
knocked at the Door, and they told me there was
one would {peak with me, and I came down, and
there was one Gaunt in the Shop ; fays he, 1s Mr.
Burton within 2 May I fpeak with him? Yes, faid
I: up I went, and Gaunt with me; and when wé
came into the Room they embraced one another,
and were very glad to fec one another, and Buiion
gave Mr. Gaunt Thanks for a Guinea he had fent
him. Says Gaunt, Mr, Burton, 1 am glad to fee
you; I hope in a little Time 1 fhall have a Paffage
for you beyond Sea: fays he, if you had been here
a while fooner, you might have gone ; thereare
fome Gentlemen went away a while ago. SaysIto
Mr. Gaunt, who were they? He told me it was Ma-

jor——and his Son, and another: fays 1 to Mr.

Gaunt, do you hear of Fergafon 2 No, fays he, I

hear nothing of him as yet, but in a little Time I
may hear from him; and Burfon alked, when he
thought he might be going? In a Day or two’s time,
faid he. Says Burton, 1 have no Money nor no
Clothes ; fays he, take no care for that, fo he
named fome Gentlemen that were to go: he told
him of Colonel Danvers and Major Wildman, Up-
on this Difcourfe, within my felf I did confider
what way 1 might do his Majefty a Piece of Service
I thought it better to forbear, and not to feize him
prefently, till T had acquainted fome Magiftrate
and I did think in the Morning to have gone to a
Juftice of Peace, and have had him apprehended
Burton, my Lord, I knew was fecure, for he could
not efcape my Hands. I had no Defign of conceal-
ing him ; I have {everal eminent Gentlemen to tef-
tify for my Loyalty, I thank God, Inever had an
ill Thought againft his Majefty in my Life, only
this Misfortune hath befallen me upon the Account
of my Wife. I am as innocent as a Child unborn,
as to any Thing againft the King. -

L.C. 7. Fones. But he plainly told you, he came
from the Army,

Mr. Fernley. Hedid acquaint me, my Lord, he
did {o; as foon as I faw him, I was ftartled s I did
Jook upon it as a Thing fent from God Almighty ;
for I knew, my Lord, that there was 100/ for
him 5 I knew there was a Proclamation out againft
him; but as for the Outlawry, I knew nothing’of
that : a Proclamation I knew there was againft him,
and being a poor Man, there was no Obligation up-
on me to conceal him, and ruin my felf and Family.

L. C.¥. Fones. 'What was the Reafon, you were
{o kind as to part with your own Lodging to enter-
tain him ¢ _'

Mr. Fernley. My Lord, I had quitted my Cham-
ber before he came to the Houle. -

Mr. Juft, Withins. 1t is proved you did it upon

his Account.
Mr. Fernley, My Lord, no body will offer to fay

that,
T 2 L.C.7T.
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L. C. ¥. Fones. That you quitted your Lodging,
and that he came into the fame Lodging, Is clearly
proved,

Mr. Fernley. My Lord, my Chamber was fit-
ted above 2 Week before he came, not knowing of
him, for I had no Thoughts of hin.

L. C. . Fones. Pray what Servants have you?

Mr, Fernley, Only a Boy, my Lord.

L.C.¥. ¥ores. Could not you have fent out your
Boy when he dad difcourfed thus treafonably with
you, but keep him in your Houfe feven or eight
Hours after you had entertain’d him at Dinner ?

Counfel. Are you a Conftable? |

Mr. Feruley. Iam a Conftable my fclf, and up-
on the Account of my Office I was the more fectre.
T was certain he could not efcape my Hands, and
I thonght to do his Majefty more Service. _

L.C. . Fones. How could you do his Majelty

more Service?
Mr. Feraley, Gaunt told him, he would come

acain to him.

L.C. F. Fones. When did he come to you ?
Mr. Feraley. About half an Hour after Dinner.
L. C. ¥. Fones. But you fhould have {eized him
immediately after Dinner. How came this Man to
take fo much Ifreedom before you that were an Of-

ficer, as to talk High-Treafon?

Mr. Fernley. My Lord, I thank God, if I were
to die this Minute, I never harbour’d a Thought
acainft the King,

L. C.* Baron. If you had had a loyal
Heart, you fhould have kept Gawi,
it you had any Thoughts to have done

1 e Al
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Mr. Fernley. My Lord, T will tell you why I
let Geunt go, becaufe he promifed to come again
the next Day.

. L. C.F. Fones. Would you, being a Conftable,
let a Man go upon his Word, that had confeffed
himfelf guilty of Treafon ?

Mr, Feraley. My Lord, if Idid any Thing, it
was 1gnorantly. My Lord, as for Gaunt, when I
knew there was a Proclamation out againft Danvers
and Wildman, 1 hearing Gaunt difcourfing about
therr Defign, I thought (promifing to come the
next Day) to know how they were to go.

Mr. Juft. Levinz. For God’s fake, would you truft
all this to your own Breaft! If you had had an honeft
Intention, you would have gone to fome Officers, and
acquainted them with 1t; fome of the King’s Jufti-
ces of the Peace, or fome of the Privy-Council, that
fuch Perfons would be at your Houfe the next Day.

L. C. Baron, By your own Difcourfe, after you
had heard all this Difcourfe, and after Burton had
told you this, you could let him go quietly to his
own Chamber : If you had fuch a Defign as you fay,
you thould have firlt feized Burton.

- Mr. Fernley, Another Chamber ; no, he dined in
-his Chamber, my Lord.

Mr. Juit. #ithins., You went into another Cham-

‘ber from him, Have you any Witneffes ?

 Mr. Juft. Levinz, They had a Confidence in you,

otherwile Burton and Gawint would not have ralk’d

" fo freely before you,

L.C.¥. Jones. There was a great Confidence in
ledging him m your Houfe, being a Conftable; no
body would fearch a Conftable’s Houfe, Have you
.any Witneffes to call ?

Mir. Fernley. Wi Héillicn Rufb, Captain Haddack,

[ /Vho weye calld,]

L.C. 7. Jons, Did Burtonw’s Wife dine with

you and him:
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Mr, Fernley, Yes, my Lord.

L. C. ¥, fones. Where did you dine ?

Mr. Fernley. In the Chamber, my Lord.

L.C.}. Jones. And was this Difcourfe concern-
ing Monmoutl’s being beaten in the B7f#, at the
time of Dinner?

Mr. Fernley. The Difcourfe of it? Yes, my Lord,
what Difcourie was, was at Dinner.,

Mr. Juft, —— Was Barton’s Wife at Dinner, or
was fhe upon the Bed?

Mr. Fernley. She din’d at the Table, my Lord.
My Lord, fhe went to fleep when Gaunt came in.

Mr. Jult. Levinz, Where did fhe go to fleep, in
the {fame Room? .

Mr. Feinley. Yes, my Lord,

L.C. ¥, Fones. Where do you ufe to dine ac
other times?

Mr., Feriky, In the Kitchen, my Lord. My
Lord, when I came from Church, the Dinner was
fent up thither.

L.C. ¥ Foincs, Woman, you arc upon your
Oath, remember that ycu are oblig’d by your Oath
to confefs the Truth, ler it concern whom it will:
The Difcourfe between your Hufband and this
Man, you could not bur be privy to; there was
only you three at Dinner, your Hufband, you, and
Lerikey, the Prifoner at the Bar: All this Difcouite
was at Dinner-time, how Is it poflible that you
fhould not hear 1t?

Mr. Juft. Levinz, Ferafey himfelf owns he did
difcourfe with your Hufband at Dinner, that he
came from the Rebels in the 7724,

Mrs, Burton. An’t pleafe you, my Lord, I did
not hear, As I faid before, I muft fay again, Idid
not hear. ‘

Mr. Jult. Withins. Nothing about Monmonth 2

Mrs, Berton, No, not one Word, if I were to
die as I {tand here,

Mr. Juft, ————You were at Dinner ?

Mrs Buiton. Yes, my Lord.

Mr. Juft,——— And this Difcourfe was at Din-
ner-time ¢

Mrs. Burton, 1 did not hear it.

Mr, Jult. #ithins. What would youafk him, Sir?

Mr. Feraly,  What Account can he give of my
Lifeand Converfation, how I have behaved my flf,
and carried my felf.

L. C. ¥ Founes. What are you, Sir? What is
your Quality ?

Mr. Refh. 1 am a Dittiller, Sir,

Mr. Juft. Levinz. Where do you dwell ?

Mr. Rufp. 1 did dwell two Years ago in Hap-
piug, but not now: I live now at #althas-Sts.

Officer. He is a very great Whis,

Mr. Jult. Withins, It he be a Whiz, he can’t
be a little one,

L.C. 7. Fones. How long have you liv’d at
VW althain-Stow ?

Mr, Rafh. Two Years and upwards, Sir.

L.C. f. Jones. That 1s long before any Thing
that this Man 1s charged withal.

Mr. Raufb. 1 formerly knew the Man, he was 3
Barber, and us’d to trim me: I always looked upon
him to be a good f{ober Man.

Mr. Juik. Withins, A Wapping-Man, a foler
IWapping-Man |

Mr. Rufb. 1 hope there Is a great many there,

L.C. ¥. Jones. "LI'hatis all you fiy for him.

Mr. Rafh. I have nothing to fay to his Fa& - He
demeaped mfelf always well among his Nejgh.-
Enu;s,r;: I'know nothing of the Fa& for which he is

Cic, '

1\1"’1-.".
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Mr. At. Gen. Did you know Burton ¢

Mr. Rup.  Yes, S,
My At Gen, What was Burlon ¢ was he reputed

an honelt Man? _ o
Mr. Rafb. 1 never knew him otherwife ; I never
was in his Company; I know he dwelt clofe by

where I liv'd.

L.C. 7. Joues.

honelt Man ?
Mr. Rufb. Before this: He has not been {o late-

ly, it feems. Heis a Perlon I never had any Com-

pany or Converfation with in my Life.
Cryer, Captain Haddock.
Officer. He won’t come in, my Lord.
L. C. ¥. Fones. Well, well, let him ftay there.

Cryer, Mr. Dove. _ _
Officer. He won’t come in, I can’t make him

come 1n. ‘
L.C.¥. Fones. Here are none that give any
Teltimony for you, at leaft will —— What are

you ? . : :
Mr. #hintal. 1 dwell in Wapping, Sir.

Mr. Juft, Levinz, What Trade are yous

My, ZWbitial, A Plumber.,

Mr, Juft, Levinz, Who knows you?

Mr, Whittal. 1 am well known there, Sir,

Mr. Jutt, Levinz, Do you go to Church ?

Mr. Whittal. Here’s Mr. Tauner knows me, the
Clerk of the Peace.

Mr. Tanner. Yes, Sir, I know him,

Mr. Juft. Levinz. Do you go to Church ?

Mr. I#bittal, Always went to Church,

Mr. Jult. #ithins. There were a Parcel of them

that went conftantly to Church trimmingly,
L.C.F Fones. Prifoner, what would you afk

him ?
Mr. Feraley. Only to give an Account how I be-

haved my felf.

Mr, Jult, I5thins. Well, Sir, what do you fay ?

Mz Whittel, All T know is, he behav’d himfelf
very well, and went to Church as other Neighbours
did; and 1 never heard him fpeak againft the Go-
vernment,

Mr. Jult. 272¢hins, Did you know Burson 2

Mr. Whittel, No, Sir; he was gone before I
came to [ive there, - *

L C. 7. Fones. Have you any more to fay?

M. Feriley. ‘This, my Lord, may give fome
Account, that] had no Defign againft the Govern-
ment. I am a poor Man, my Lord, and upon
that Account I owe a great deal of Money: I knew
there was 100/, for fecuring Burton, there was no
Gaim by concealing him 3 he was not a Perfon could
requite me, that I fhould harbour him, and lofe
100 £, Which was certain for taking him ; which, my
Lord, fhews I had no Defign.

L.C. 7. Fones. No, this argues you to be a
ftronger Confederate; and that you were fo firm to
your Party, you would not gain 100/, though you
might have it for doing your Duty.

Mr. Feraley. My Lord, T look’d upon it as fure

as 1f I had it in my Pocket. I knew nothing of
him till Sabbath-day at Noon, and I did not defign
1o conceal him afterwards, any farther than to ferve
the King, *
. L.CF Fones. You tell us a Story of your felf,
It 15 to no Purpofe to try any Prifoner, if his Saying
muft be taken for Evidence: We will hear what
Witaefls you have to produce, or if you can ob-
ject to the Evidence that’s againft you.

M, ferntey. My Lord, I own it to be true, I
have declared more than the Witnefles have fid

2

And you took him to be a very
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agatn{t me; but, my Lord, I am innocent in it,
God knows my Heart, I had no Defign in it. It
was but {ix hours I knew of him,

Mr. Jult, Withins, You lay out of your Bed
before ?

Mr, Fernley. My Lord, not upon his account 3
I was a Week before out of that Bed, to prepare it
for my Wife to lie-In.

L. C. F. Jones. 1s your Wife delivered?

Mr, Fernley. No. ~

L. C. ¥. Jones. You made great hafte,

Mr, Fernley, It was my Wite’s Fault.

L. C. }. Fones. Gentlemen of the Jury, thisPri-
foner ftands indicted for harbouring and relieving
one fames Burton, knowing him to have committed
Treafon. Gentlemen, you are to be acquainted,
that this Fames Burton was not only guilty of the
late Rebellion in the 77¢f, but he was likewife
charg’d by Procefs with being guilty of the Plot at
the Rye-boufe, and thereupon there were fuch Pro-
ceedings by Law, that he was outfawed, the Record
of which Outlawry hath been produced to you:
fo that if there were no more, if you be perfuaded
that he is the Perfon guilty, whether be were in the
Rebellion mn the 77¢f or no, that may induce you
to find this Indictment, for the Prifoner receiving
him after the Rebellion in the 77%#, and knowing
him to have commiited Treafon, whercupon he was
outlawed, it cqually makes him liable to the Of-
fence wherewith he is charg’d, But, Gentlemen,
that is not all; you have exprefs Teftimony from
Burton himfelf, who it feems was acquainted with
him, and who had fled from his Neighbourhood, by
the fpace of two Years almoft, and yet he receives
this Burton into his Houfe : I will not fay, at the
firft time that he came into his Houfe, it doth ap-
pear by any Evidence, that he kncw him to have
been in the Rebellion in the #7gf 5 but when he cariic
thither upon Friday, he was {o kind to him as to
leave his own Chamber, and to let him have thar
for his Lodging, although now he gives you ano-
ther Excufe planly frivolous and falfe, that is, a
Pretence of making way for his Wife to lie-in, who
yet is not delivered.  Fle lies there upon Saturday
Night, and dines with him upon Sunday,  Saturday
perhaps might bea bufy Day, and there is no Tefti-
mony at all given by any Evidence of any Dif-
courfe that was between them upon that Day ; but
upon Sunday, when they dined together, Burton
{wears, that he did tell him that he hdd been in the
WWeft in the Rebellion there, and he came thither for
Shelter. This Man being acquatated with this, al-
lowed him to dine with him, and harboured him mn
his Houfe for the {pace of feven or eight Hours
more, without bringing hiny before any Juftice of
Peace, or any Magiftrate who had Authority to
commit him, although he had a particular Autho-
rity of his own (as he was Conftable) for the Corn-
fervation of the Peace, yet he forgets his Oath as

well as his Duty and Allegiance, and {uffers him
ftill to remain theee. It is true, the Wife of Bur-

ton dined with them, as Burfon himfelf fays, and
the Woman confeffes; but the was fo bufy at her
Vittuals, that fhe can remember nothing, fthe did
not hear that there was any Difcourfe concerning
Monmouth. But left you fhould want another Wit
nefs, for Burton is bur one Witnefs to that particu-
lar, you have him planly confefling it himfelf,
which is above thoufand Witnefles; you have him
confefling that Burton hid acknowledse he had
been in the A0, and that Memmonth was routed;

and. yet he continues him- i his Houfes nay more,
this
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this Man doth appear to be a Perfon in whom there
was that great Confidence, that another Perfon,
Gaunt came, and he bids him come into his, Houle,
and there he difcours’d of fome Traitors, and the
means of conveying away Burton, though he had
confefled it himfelf. Gentlemen, what he tells you,
is, that he did mean to difcover ; when did he in-
tend to difcover # Hedid not difcover to any body,
before the Man was apprehended by an Officer: he
lets Gaunt, who plainly appears to be as errant a
Traitor as could be in the world, to go away meer-
Jy upon his own Parole, without taking any courle
to apprehend him,  He pretends he is a poor Man,
and he might have gain’d 100/ if he had difcover’d
him, and {urely he would have difcover’d him, to
gain 100/, But this is a firong Argument, that he
was decp in the Rebellion himlfelf, and one in great
Efteem with them, that being a peor Man, he
would not do his Duty, for which he might have
had a Reward of 100 /. but fuffers him to efcape.
This is the Cafe, Gentlemen, that 1s before you; if
you believe he did knowingly, as he himfelf upon
the matter doth confefs, give any comfort or relief
to Burton, knowing him to be a Rebel, you ought
to find him guilty.

Then the Jury withdrew to confider the Evidence.

Clerk. Set Elizabeth Gaunt to the Bar, [which
was dope)| Elizabeth Gaunt, hold up thy Hand,
[which fbe did. ]

Hou ftandeft indicted by the Name of Eliza-

beth Gaunt, Wife of Hilliam Gaunt, of the
Paviih ot St. Mary White-Chappel, in the County
of Middlefex, Yeoman 5 asa falfe Traitor againit
our late Serene Lord Charles the Second, by the
Grace of God her then natural Lord ; not having,
the Fear of God in her Heart, nor weighing the
Duty of her Allegiance, but moved and feduced by
the Inftigation of the Devil, and the true and
natural Obedience which a true and faithful Subjeét
of our faid Sovereign Lord the King towards our
faid late Lord the King of right ought to bear with-
drawing, and with all her Strength intending the
Peace and common Tranquillity of this King-
dom of Eugland to difquiet, moleft, and difturb,
and War and Rebellion againft our faid late So-
vereign Lord the King, within this Kingdom
of England to fir up and move, and the Govern-
ment of our faid late Sovereign Lord the King
m this bis Kingdom of Zugland to {ubvert, and
our faid late Sovereign Lord the King from
the Title, Honour, and Kingly Name of the
Crown Imperial of this Kingdom of England
to depofe and deprive, and our faid Iate Sovereign
Lord the King to Death and final Deftrullion to
bring and put : The 24th Day of September, in the
26th Year of the Reign of our faid late Sovereign
Lord Charles the Second, and divers other Days
and Times as well before as after, within the Parifh,
(. fallely, malicioufly, devilithly, and traito-
roufly, with divers Rebels and Traitors, to the Ju-
rors unknown, fhe did confpire, 1magine, and in-
tend our faid late Sovereign Lord the King, her then
fupreme and natural Lord, not only from his King-
ly State, Title, Power, and Government of this
Kingdom of England to deprive and throw down ;
but alfo our faid late Sovercign Lord the King to
kill and put ro death, and the ancient Govern-
ment of this Kingdom of Ewnglend to alter and
wholly fubvert, and a miferable Slaughter among(t
the Subjecls of our faid late Sovereign Lord the
King throughour this Kingdom of Zngland to canfe

i
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and procure, and Infurrection and Rebellion againft
our faid late Sovereign Lord the King to procure
and affit.” And the faid moft wicked and devilifh
Treafons and traitorons Compaflings, Imaginations,
and Purpofts aforefaid, to fulfil, perfect, and bring
to pafs, the faid Elizabeth Gaunt, as a falfe Trai-
tor, then and there, to wit, the faid 24th Day of
September, in the Year aforefaid, at the Parifh and
Ward aforefaid, well knowing one Fames Burton to
be a falfe Trator, and as a faife Traitor traitoroufly
to have compafled and imagined the Death and
Deftruction of our faid late Sovereign Lord the
King, and War and Rebellion againft our faid late
Sovereign Lord the King within this Kingdom of
Eugland, together with other Traitors (to the Ju-
rors unknown) to have intended to be raifed 5 fhe the
{aid Elizabeth Gaunt atterwards, to wit, the faid
24th Day of Sepfember, n the Year aforefaid, with-
in the City of London atorefaid, the faid Fames
Burten, in a certain Foufe of a Perfon to the Ju-
rors unknown, knowingly, fecretly, wickedly, de-
vilifhly, and traitoroufly, did entertain, conceal,
comfort, fuftain, and maintamn, and then and there,
for the comforting, fuftenance, and maintenance of
him the faid Fames Burton, Meat, Drink, and 5/.
1n Money for the mamntenance and fuftenance of him
the {aid Fames Burton, unto the faid Fames Burtoxn,
malicioufly, and traitoroufly, fhe did give and de-
liver, and caufe to be given and delivered, againft
the Duty of her Allegiance, and aguinft the Peace,
(g¢, and agamit the Form of the Statute, &,

Clerk. How fay’ft thou, art thou guilty or not
cullty ¢

Mrs, Gount, 1 defire to have more time to confi-

der of it.

L. C. . foues. You know whether you be guil-
ty of this Otfence ; what need you have any time
of Confideration for that ?

Mrs. Gaunt. I don’t know, Sir; I am ignorant in
the Law, and in things of that nature,

L. C.F. Founes. But this is not Marter of Law 5 1t
is, whether you did receive thefe Traitors or no
knowingly 3 this Fames Burtoi, knowing him to-
have committed Trealon : Can’t you tell whether
you did or no ?

Mrs. Gaunt, Not guilty,

Clerk. How wilt thou be try’d ?

Mrs. Gaunt. By God and my Country.

€lrk. God fend thee a good Deliverance.

Then the Middlefex Fury returuing, Mys, Gaunt
was fet afide, and Ring and Fernley brought to the
Bar, who were both brought in guilty by the Fury.

Clerk, Set Henry Cornifh to the Bar, and Eliza-
beth Gaunt, [WWhich «was dene.] You the Prifo-
ners at the Bar, thefe Men that have been now cal-
led, and here appear, are to pafs between our Sove-
reign Lord the King and you, upon your feveral
Lives or Deaths : If you challenge any of them, you
muft {peak as they come to the Book to be {worn,
before they are fworn.

Mr. Coruifo, My Lord, I muft humbly beg lcave
of your Lordfhip and this honourable Court, that
I may renew my Requelt. The time of notice gi-
ven me for my Trial being {o thort, it hath no Pre-
cedent, I think : I bumbly pray your Lerdthip I
may have time allowed {or my Trial 3 I have had
no Counfel, no Pannel, no Help in the world 5 I
had not Pen, Ink, nor Paper, my Lord, thefe arc
very hard things. My Lord, his Majefty was peti-
tion’d laft Night by my Children, and he was gra-

cloufly




[685. 0. B.

:ufly pleafed ‘to fay, that he would refer it to my
Egrdg tﬁe Judges. 1. only pray your Lordthips,
that you would be plealed to allow me Time:

Thoueh here isa grievous Indictment broughtagainft

me, }:ret I doubt not but to clear my felf of what

is alleded againft me, if I have but Time to pre-
pare m? @lf for it: therefore I humbly pray I may

Time allotted,
ha?. Cﬂ,}? Fones. You told us fo before, that-yon

had exhibited a Petition to the King, and that the
King did refer it to the Judges; you fhew us no-
thing of that. |

Mr. Cornifb. ‘My Lord, I can butonly fignify to
your Lordfhip what I hear; my Children were with
me, and told me they had petitioned the King, and
his Majefty was pleafed gracioufly to recetve it.

Mr. 4t. Gen. ‘The King left you to the Courle of
the Law.

Mr. Cornifh. Itisvery hard Meafure ; 1 have no
Preparation at all, no more than at the firft Mo-
ment 3 but I blefs God, I hope I fhall n time fa-

tisfy you of my Innocency. '
E. }C. ¥. Fones., You were apprehended and fei-

zed upon Tuefday laft, this isalmoft a Week 5 you
knew what you were charged withal,

Mr. Coriifp. My Lord, I did not know what 1
was charged withal, I had no Liberty of Friends to
come to me; my Wife at length obtained Leave,
but 1t was in the Prefence of Major Richardfon 5 1
had no Friend with my Wife, no Pen, Ink, nor
Paper.

L.C.¥. Fones. Was Pen, Ink, and Paper deny’d
you? Did you afk 1t?

Mr, At Gen, As foon as he petition’d for it, he
had it,

Capt, Richardfon. He had Pen, Ink, and Paper.
. L.C.7f. Fones. When was that ?

Capt. Richardfon. On Saturday.

Mr. Cornifb. My Lord, it was eight a-clock at
mght,

M. Jult. Levinz. Mr, Cornifh, T would not have
you think you arc ufed otherwife than other Men
arc; for I muft tell you, it is not ufual to have Pen,
Ink, and Paper, without Lcave.

Mr. Cornifh. I know it hach been allowed in the
like Cafe.

Mr. Jult, #Withins. Ay, upon Petition, never elfe.

Mr. Juit, Levinz. There are many Men, and of
as good Quality as you, tried for killing Men: does
any body give them Notice? Is there any mote
Neceflity of Notice in Point of Treafon, than in
Point of Murder ?

Mr. Juft. Withins. 1told you what your Offence

was, when you were committed,

Mr. Cornifh. My Lord, I remember in my Lord
Ruffel’s Cafe, he had at leaft feven or cight Days al-
Jowed him,

Mr. Juft. Levinz. It may be fo; but itis not ne-
ceffary.  Prifoners thatare tried here generally have
no Notice at all ; if one Man hath o fingular Fa-
vour, another Man cannot claim it.

Mr. Cornifp. My Lord, I have a material Wit-
nefs above a hundred and forty Miles of,

L.C.F. Fones. My Lord’s Trial, I think, was
put off but ill the Atternoon.

Mr. Cornifh. With Submiffion to your Lordfhip,
I think he had eight Days affign’d him, But my
Lord, I humbly conceive I have a Witnefs that is
very material in my Cafe, that is 140 Miles out of

Town, in Lancaffirey I humbly pray I may have
Time allotted me to fopd for him,

I
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L.'C. ¥, Fones. Why did ‘you not fet Forth that
in your Petition to the King'?

- l}xf_fr.-Cmrrfb. My Liord, I'did not underftand the
Cale,

L.-C. F. jones. Were not yon committed for
High-Treafon?

Mr. Jult. Withins. 1told you fomy felf: 1 thew’d
you the Commitment 5  therefore you can’t ‘pretend
you were ignorant of i,

Mr. Cornifh. My Lord, it did not ‘mention this
King or the laft: And Iam not a Lawyer, 1 am
not fkill’d in thefe Things ; Iamvery ignorant, and
hope your Lordfhip will confider me ; my Inno-
cence will appear as bright as any Man’s that ever
ftood at this Bar.

L.C.7. Fones. 1 dor’t believe you want that T-
vidence a hundred and forty Miles off. Ishe the on-
ly Man that can make your Innocence appear ?

Mr. Cornifb. My Lord, by what { apprehend he
will be the maft material Withefs I'have. My Lord,
I thall defive nothing but with Submiflion to your
Lordfhip and the Benchs but T humbly conceive it
15 very reafonable I fhould have Time, I humbly
pray your Lordihip to confider i,

L.C. 7. Jones. Mr, dttorney, have you any Di-
reCtions?

Mr. At Gzn, No, my Lord.

Mr. Corunifb. 1 do notdoubt, if I might have a
little T'ime, to make my Defence.

Mr. Jult. #ithins. You fhould have applied your
fclf o the King, it does not lie in our Power.

Mr. Cornifh. My Lord, I humbly pray you to
confider my Cafe.

Mr. Jult. Withins. Mr. Bridgmasn here on the
Bench fays, there was a Petition before the King,
for putting it off; and the King ablolutely refufed
It

Mr. Jult. Levizz,  We have nothing to do, Sir;
wc are here by Commiffion to try you.

Mr. Cernifb. My Lord, 1 have been denied a
Copy of the Pannel ; I hope that is reafonable, I
muft defirc a Copy of the Pannel.

Mr. v, Gen, That is none of your Right, Mr.
Cornifb.

Mr. Cornifh. Mu. Altorney, with Submiffion, I
hope I ought to have it,

Mr. At. Ger, No, you onght not to have it; you
have your peremptory Challenges, you may chal-
lenge thirty-five without Caufe,

L.C. ¥ . Jones. You fhall have 2 Copy of the
Pannel here, |

Mr. 4t. Gen, Yes, here he may.

Mr. Coranifh. It is a very hard Cafe, when I have
a matertal Witnefs fo far out of Town, that I can’t
have a little Time allotred,

L. C. ¥. Joues. Can’t every Man that comes here
to be tried fay the very fame Thing, that he hath a
material Witnefs in France, Spain, or any where ¢lfe,
and that when that Witnefs cotnes, his Innocence
will be as clear as the Sun ?

Mr. Cornifb. My Lord, my Witnefs is in Leuce-

JSoire, T cannot help 1t T befeech your Lordfhip to

confider me: I am apt to believe that he would fo
much vindicate my Reputation in this Matter, that
it would be 2 very great Satisfaction to your Lord-
{hips; and I am fure you are not for opprefling any

Man,
L, C.}. Founes. No, Sir, that we are not.
Mr, Corpifb, Iam fure youre for the juft Vindi-

cation of the Government, for executing of Juftice,
and I will deflire no other than that,
L.C.7.
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L.C.F. Jones. Mr. Attorney, if you pray he may
be tried, we can’t deny it

Mr. At Gen, My, Cornifh, 1 cannot defer it, I have
no Authority; and why you fhould be inanother
Condition than other Prifoners, I don’t know; you
hawve not deferved {o well of the Government.

Mr, Cornifp. 1 have not the Names of the Wards
where thefe Men live, and their Trades.

Mr. North, He hath a Copy of the Pannel, and

that 1s fufficient. _
L. C. ¥.Fones. You may afk them where they live,

Mr. Corngfb. 1hope I may have Penand Ink, my
Lord.

L.C. 7. Jones. Ay, ay.
Then the Fury <were called, and after My, Cornith

Lad challenged thirly frve of themn, the Fury fworn weie
as followeth :

William Clotudefiv,
Richard Holford,
William Longboat,
Stephen Colernan,
Robert Clavel,
Willtam Long.

Thoinas Rawlinfon,
Thomas Langham,
Ambrofe Ified,
Thomas Pendleton,
Fobn Grice,
Thomas Ouneby,

Proclamation being made, If iy oie can inform,
&c, Mr. Cornifh was let alide, and Elizabeth Gaunt
at the Bar.

Clerk,  Elizabeth Gaunt, hold up thy Hand.
[Which fhe did.] —— You of the Jury, look upon
the Prifoner, and hearken to her Caufe : She ftands
indiCted by the Name of, &Fe. (as before i the In-
ditfinent ) Upon this Indi¢tment the hath been ar-
raigned, and thereunto pleaded not guilty, and for
her Trial hath put her {elf upon her Country, which
Country you are.  Your Charge is to enquire, whe-
ther fhe be guilty of this High-Treafon whereof the
ftands indited, or not guilty, If you find her
guilty, {Jc.

Mr. Phipps. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen that are {worn, Elizabeth Gaunt
the Prifoner at the Bar ftands indicted, for that {he
knowing Fasires Burton, together with other Traitors,
traitoroufly to have confpired the Death of the late
King, and to raife Rebellion in this Kingdom, did
harbour the faid Fames Burtsn, and gave him Five
Pounds in Money.

Mr, A, Gen. May 1t pleafe your Lordthip, and
you Gentlemen that are fworn, the Prifoner ftands
mdicted for harbouring of Burion, who was a great
Traitor, and for procuring a Way for his Efcape
beyond Sea, and alfo for giving him 5 Z to bear his
Charges. In the former Trial you had an Account
of her Hufband, and in this you will hear fhe and
her Hufband were the great Brokers for carrying
over fuch Traitors, as my Lord Shaftesbury and o-
thers ; thefe have taken Care to convey them over
at all ttmes,  'We will produce our Witnefles,  Call
burien and his Wife, [ Mr. Burton frwoin, ]

Mr. 4t Gen, Do you know Mrs, Gauit ?

Mr. Buiton, Yes, Sir,

Mr. A, Gen. Pray give my Lord and the Jury
an Account how fthe harbour’d you, and all the Pa(-
fages that paft between you and Mrs. Gaunt.  Pray
tell firft whether you were engag’d in the Matter of
the Rye ?

Mr. Buiton, How I came concerned T will tell
you, if it pleafe you,

Mr. 4!, Gen, Speak.

. Mr. Barton. The firft Time Iknew any thing of
Ity M. Keeliig came to me one Safurdgy Morning
I
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and afked me if I was to go to London. I faid, Yes,
I was to go to the Excbange 3 and he defir'd me 1o
meet him at the Mitre-Tavern within Aldgate, and
afk for Number Five, 1 came at the Time, and no
bedy betng there, I was going away, and met with
a Country-man, with a Stick in his Hand, that had
but one Eye; he came and afk’d for the fame Num-
ber: So the Gentleman fent his Boy after me, and
told me one flay’d for me, ‘When I came, he afk’d
me, if I afk’d for Number Five 2 and 1 faid, Yes.
By whofe Appotntinent 2 By Fofiah Keeling’s, faid 1.
So he afk’d the Man of the Houfe to fhew a Room
He thew’d a Box, but he would have a Room, and
went up Staus, and call’d for Pipes and a Candle,
and a Pint of Wine, In a little while Keeling came
m, and brought Barber and Thompfon, and no body
{pake almolt any thing but Rumbeld, ( that was
Rumbold with one Eye, for Kecling when he came in
calP’d him Captain Rumbeld) and Rumiold taik’d a-
bout Privileges and {uch Things at firfl, and he fuid
his Floufe was a convenient Houfe, and there they
might do the Bufinefs: but before they had done,
I found they defign’d to kill the Kirg, but nothing
troubled him but killing the Poftitlion, 15 2/l a Mais
it cold Blood. But thenfays we, If you are for Lilling,
we bave aone, and fo broke up; that was the End
of that. A while after Mr, Keeliug went in, and
made a Difcovery : I never came among thens after-
wards.  So after Mr. Keeling had difcovered, 1 was
in the Proclamation for being there at that Mcf:ting,
and abfconded my 1!, and lay hid, A Matter of
two Months after, Mrs. Garit came o enquire
of my Wife where [ was, to fpaak with me; fhe
brought her to me. She told me, there were fome
Perfons about to make an Efcape, and would have
me go along with them. I told her, wit!, all my
Heart: So I afk’d her which Way and how they
intended to go. She told me, they had provided
Horfes to ride down to Rectford-Hundred, and
there was a Veflcl to carry them over; and, fays
the, be ready by fuch an Evening, and I wwill call for
yet. Accordingly fhe did, and had me into Bifksyf:
gate-Sirect, and in Half-sison- Allzy in a lictle Brew-
houfe, up ftairs in 2 Chamber, there were both the
Rumbolds 5 one of them did not go, and the other
and I lay there all Night: and in the Morning a
Man came and called us away, and we went to
Frbite-Chapel to take Horle, to ride down to Roch-
ford-Hundred, and ftay’d for the Vefiel two Days ;
and when we met the Veflel, it was a fimall Vefit],
and bad Weather, and the Mafler of the Veffe] had
but one Hand and two Boys, one a very littie one s
and we wentdown the Creck, and I afked the Man
where he did intend to land us 3 and he told us, at
Offend.  Said I, T underftood we were to oo for
Holland to the Brill.  Says he, my Veffel is only
able to go to Offeud or Dunkirk, either of them.
Says Rumbold, 1 don’t underftand the Sea. Says 1,
this 1s a very Imall Veflel and leaky, and the Man
not able to manage it, Says I, I will 20 back again
to London. Says he, T will do as yoil do; and we
both parted at Loudon, and I never faw him after-
wards till I faw him at Zinflerdain, 1 lay by a great
many Months after ; then Mrs. Gamnsr came to me
again, and told me there was two other Perfons 20~
ing, and I might have a Paffage if I would go: So
fhe bid me be ready by fuch an Evening, and I was
ready ; and 2 Boat being ready at the Water-fide,
carried me to Gravefend, where I went in 2 Vel to
Aiifterdam.
Mr, At Gen, Where were yop 3

Mr,
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M. Burton. I was with my Wife at my Daugh-
ter’s: 1 had a Daughter married, her Hufband was
wn’d.
dr{ljvlr. At Gen. How came Mrs, Gatnt to take fo
much care of you ¢ Give the Court an account.

M. Burton. She might think I knew fomething
of her Hufband, if I fhould be taken; I fuppofe
that might be the chief thing,

Mr. At. Gen, What had her Hufband done ¢

Mr. Burton. Her Hufband, 1 fuppofe, knew
fomething of the Bufinefs, ‘

Mr, Ar. Gen. What Bufinels ?

Mr. Burtos. About feizing the Tower : He came
to me, and would have had me gone with him
with Capt. #alcot to the Tower, to fee what Force
there was of Soldiers; and Capt. #alcot faid he
had a defign to take an Houle over-againft the
Tower, to put in fome Men there to break 1n upon
the Tower 3 and Gaunt was with him.

L. C. . Fones, What difcourfe had you with

her about the Plot? _
Mr. Burton. Nothing with her.

Mr. At. Gen, What was it fhe would help you

away for ¢ '
Mr. Burton. T fuppofe this was the reafon, be-

caufe the knew I knew her Hufband was con-
cern’d.

r

Mr., Burton, Yes.

Mr, North, How much ?
~ Mr. Burtonr, She gave me a parcel of Money
juft as I was going away 3 1 put it among other
Money. ,

Mt. North. How much? 200r 405 ¢

Mr, Burton. More than that,

Mr, Sol. Gen. Were you gone from your own
Houfe when this Woman came to you?

Mr. Burton. My own Houfe was broke up a
great while before.

~ Mr. Sol, Gen. Did you appear publickly when
fhe came to you?

Mr. Burton. No, an’t pleale you,

L. C. F. Founes. Had there been any fearch for
you before ?

Mr., Burton, Yes.

Mr. North, You were in the Proclamation at this
time ? |

Mr. Burton. Yes, an’t pleafeye, Sir.

Mr, At Gen. Did fhe carry you to Rusmbold ?

Mr. Burton. Yes.

_ Mr. 4t, Gen, Was there any difcourfe between
Rumbold and her?

Mr. Burton. No; there was an elderly Man in
the Houfe, I did not know him, carried me up to
Rumbold, there was both of them.

Mr. At Gen. What Money had you of her.

Mr. Burton. T believe about 57" 1 told her I
hiad famn a great while, and Money was very bare
*;?ltlh me; and fhe told me fhe would get me a
ittle,

Mr. At. Gen, Did the know what you were con-
ceal’d for ?

Mr. Burton. Every body knew that, becaufe I
was in the Proclamation.

Mr. North. What Dire&ions did fhe give you,
how you thould behave yourfelf when the went with
you to Bifbopfgate-firect 2 how did the fay you muft
carry yourfelf

Mr. Burton. Nothing there,
about that,

L. C.F. Fones, Did fhe tell you you were con-

cern’d 1n the Plot with her Flufband 3
Fo L. IV,

fhe gave no order
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Mr, Burtors, She did not tell me fo, Sir.

L. C.¥. Fones. Did you tell her you were con-
cern’d in-the Plot with her Hufband ?.

Mz, Burton. 1 did not tell her fo.

Mr. At. Gen. Who were the two Men that were
prepared to go with you that time? |
- Mr. Burton. One Patchil,

Mr, 4t Gen, He was kill’d in the Fight, Was
Patchil in the Fight?

Mr. Bugton, Yes, an’t pleafe you, he was kill‘d,

Mr. At Gen. And who was the other ¢

Mr, Burton. T’other was a Man liv'd in Sgz/l-
wark 3 I never faw him before,

Mr., Com. Sery. What Directions did fhe give you
about your own Name, or any others when you
went 1nto the Boat?

Mr. Burten. If I knew any body, that I fhould
not take notice I knew them,

L. C.¥. Fones. You were not to take any Ac-
quaintance of any body in the Boat ?

Mr. Juft. Withins, Heark you, Sir, you looked
upon all thofe to be engaged in the Plot. All
that fhe endeavour’d to fave, were of the fame

Level.
Mr. Burton, Rumbold wasy Rumbold was 1n the

Proclamation.

L. C. F. Jones. Did fhe tell you, that you were
in the Proclamation ?

Mr. Berton. No, an’t pleafe your Lordtip, (he
did not tell me fo.

Mr. North. Did fhe never difcourle of your be-
ing in the Proclamation ?

Mr, Burton, No, notas I remember; it was a
general thing.

Mr. Juft, 774thins. But why fhould fhe come to
you to tranfport you, if it were not for fuch a
thing ?

Mr. Buiton. Her Flufband was with me about
going to the Tower.

Mr. At. Gen, Burton, pray thus; whenyoucame
from the 77¢#, what Overtures were to help you
here from her, or her Hufband ?

Mr. Burton. Her Hufband was with me at Feri-
ley’s Houfe, and he told me there were twoor three
Perfons to go in two ot three Days, and I fhould

go with them,
Mr, 4¢t. Gen, You named your Daughter, what

is her Name ?
My, Burton, Mary Gilbert.
[ Then Mary Gilbert was called and froorn.
Mr, At Gen. Do you know Mrs. Gaunt 2
Mary Gilbert. Yes, Sir, -1 know her, fhe was our

Neighbour.
Mr, At. Gen. Then give an account of her com-

Ing to you about your Father,

Mary Gilbert. She came to our Houfe that Night
my Father went away. I never heard a word of
the Difcourfe that paft, for I always went out of
the way.

Me. Jutt. 277thins, Why did you go outof the way

Mary Gilbert. Becaule they were not willing I
thould hear the Difcourfe.

Mr. Con. Serj. You are upon your Oath, Mi-
{trefs, you muft te!l the truth.

Mery Gilbert. 1 do, Sir; T will tell no mere.

Mr, 8o/, Gen. Did you {ee your Father go away ¢
Who did he go with, in what Company ?

Mary Gilbers, 1 can’t tell.

Mr., At Gen. Did Mrs. Gaunt go with him ?

Mary Gilbert. 1 met my Father and Mrs. Gannt
in Honndfditch, my Mother and I were to meet

them in Bifhopfgale-fireet,
U " Mr,
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Mr. Com. Seri. “Well, what was the reafon why
you did not meet? |
Mary Gilhert. “We were to meet at feven a-clock,
and we went to the Houfe, and they were not
come s and we were coming home, and met them
in Houndfditch, and my Father had Mrs. Gannt un-
der the Arm, and went back to a Houfe without
Bifhopfgate. o
Mr. Sol. Gen. Did Mrs, Gaunt carry him thither ?
L. C.*f. Fones. Do you know why your Father

was to go away ?
Mary Gilbert. He went upon the account of the

Proclamation ?

L.C."}. Fones. Then you knew of the Proclama-
tion ?

Mery Gilbert, Yes, Sir, I knew of the Proclama-

tion.
Mr. Com. Serj. Whofe Acquaintance was the

Man in Bifhopfgate-fireet ¢

Mary Gilbert, He was none of mine,

Counfel, When your Father went up ftairs into
a Room, did you fee any body with him?

Mary Gilbert. Yes, Sir, 1t was a Man that had
but one Eye, a full-fet Man, full of Pock-holes ;
but I never faw him before, nor after,

Counfel. How came you to fee him ?

Mary Gilbert. By going up ftairs to fee my Father.

[Mary Burton fwora.

Mr. A:. Gen. Do you know Mrs, Gaunt there ?

Mrs. Burton. Yecs, S,

Mr. At Gen. Pray will you tell the Court, how
fhe came to enquire after your Hufband ?

Mrs. Burton. Yes, Sir, at my Daughter’s Houle.

Mr. At Gen. What difcourfe happened between

ou?
/ Mius. Burton. No difcourfe s but fhe {aid if I was
willing, my Hufband fhould go away, and fhe
would take care.

Mr. Sol. Gen. But why fhould he go away ?

Mrs. Burton. 1 don’t know why, but only upon
the Proclamation.

Counfel. Woman, did fhe take notice your Hufl-
band was gone from home, and had left his Houfe ?

Mrs. Burton, 1 knew myfelf, my Lord.

Mr, Juft. Levinz. Where did you go?

Mrs, Burfon. My Hufband went out of doors
by his own felf, by Appointment, and we were to
meet, my Child and I together without Bifbopfrate,
by the Catberine-twheel,

Mr. Com. Serj. Who made that Appointment ?

Mrs, Burton. Mrs, Gaunt.

Mr. Com. Seirj, Upon what account did fhe come
to you to fecure your Hufband ?

Mrs, Burton. Upon the account he was mn the
Proclamation, and I thought within myfelf, for
fear my Hufband fhould know any thing againit
her Hufband ; but I never faid {fo, for I was glad
my Huibard fhould be helped away, willing to
fave his Life, for I knew it was Death,

Mr. Juft. Levinz. And you took that to be the
meaning of it in reference to the Proclamation ?

Mr. Sol. Gen, How far did you live from her.

Mrs, Burtein. Formerly we dwelt pretty near one
another, waen Mrs, Gagut kept a Tallow-Chand-
ler’s Shop.

L. C. 7. Ffones. Woman, do you verily believe
the knew your Hufband was in the Proclamation ?

Mr. Juft. — Did you never fee the Prifoner at the
Bar at any time in Hofland ?

Mis. Burtenn. No.
Mr, At Gen, WNor her Huband 2
~ Mrs, Burton, Nor her Hu,band.
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Mr. At Gen. 1afk you at this time when your
Hufband went away, and his Houle was fearch’d,
how far did fhe live from you then ?

Mis. Burtor. She had but Lodgings, I don’
know where her Dwelling-houfe was, .

Mr, A¢. Ges, Where were her Lodgings ?

Mrs. Burton, At the upper end of O/ Grave-
Lane, and my Daughter in the middle of Graeel.
Lane, in Worcefter-fireet, as far as it may be to
Newgate, thereabouts.

My, At Gen. Was it taken notice of all over the

Street that the Houfe was fearched, and your Huf-
band gone? Was that taken notice of in the Neigh-
bourhood ?

Mrs, Burton, Yes, yes.

Counfel, Between the time your Hufband went
firit away, and the tume fhe came to take care of
him, had you no difcourfe about the reafon of his
going away, nor of the Proclamation ? |
- Mrs. Burton. No.,

L. C. ¥, Fones. What fay you Woman to this
Evidence, feveral Witnefles fay you were very bufy
in contriving the Efcape of Burton 3 what was the
reafon why you would fend him away ?

Mrs. Gaznt. 1 did not contrive to fend him away.

L.C.J. Fones. The Woman fays fo, Brrton fays
lo, the Daughter fays the fame,

Mrs. Geunt. Where, Sir?

L. C. 7. Fones, At Bifbopfeate or Houndfditch.

Mrs, Gaunt, I deny it,

L.C.¥. Fones. And you gave him Money after-
wards.

Mrs. Gaunt. 'Who faw me give 1t him ?

L. C. . Fones, He {wears it.

Mrs. Gaunt. He was the more beholden to me.

L.C. f. fones. Did you, or did you not ?

Captain Richerafen. She fays fhe is not come here
to tell your Lordfhip what fhe did.

L. C.§. Fones. Woman, did not you hear that
Burton’s Name was in the Proclamation about Rum-
bold’s Plot ? -

Mrs. Gannz, It s like T mighe,

L.C. F. Jones. You might hear it!

Mrs. Gannt, Yes.

L. C. ¥, Jones, And yet you would by all means
help him to efcape ¢

Mrs. Gaunt, 1 can fay nothing againft it, if they
fwear it,

L.C.¥. Fones. Do you know what you are charg’d
withal 7 You are accufed for relieving and com-
forting Burten, whom you knew to have commit-

ted Trealon.
Mrs. Gaunt. My Lord, he fays fo.
L.C. 7. Foues. And for helping him to efcape,

and giving him Money 1n order to it.

Mrs, Gaunt. He fays {o,

L. C. J. Fones. He{wears{o; what do you fay ?

Mrs. Gaunt, 1s that {ufficient ?

Mr, Juft, —- Ay, and another fwears it, that is
{ufficient. |

~ Mrs. Gaunt. T have not heard any body elfe fwear
It,

Mr. Juft. — Yes, his Wife,

Mrs. Gaunt. Not about the Money.

Mr. Juft.—— You came and follicited him to go
feveral times,
Mrs, Gaunt, It 1s very untrue, my Lord.
L.C.}. Jones, Did you know his Houfe had
been fearch’d to find him ?
Mrs. Gaunt, I did not know it a great while fince,
I might know,
[ Here Burton’s Pardon was produced again.
M,



Mr. Juft, Withins. It is a Pardon for Burion, now

he is 2 good Witnefs ¥, Gentlemen.
. Founes. Have you any more, Worman, to

L. C.
fay for yirélf > If you can tell us any other Caule

than that he was guilty of Trealon, wherein your
Hufband was concern’d.
Mrs. Gaunt. No, I deny that, that I knew my

Hufband was concern’d in any thing of that kind,
L. C. F. Fones. Wherefore then would you take

fo much care to {end him away ?
Mrs. Gannt, I don’t tell you, my Lord. |
L. C. . Fones. You don’t tell us, but the Wit-

nefles have {worn it. *
Mrs. Gaent. T muft leave 1t to them,
. Fones. Gentlemen of the Jury, this Wo-

LC 7.7
man {tands indi¢ted for High-Treafon, for con-
cealing, comforting, and relicving one Fauies Bur-
fon, a Perfon that had committed High-Treafon ;
and for endeavouring that he might make his ef-
cape, and giving him 574 1n Money.  Gentlemen,
the Evidence that is given 1s by Burien, his Wife,
and his Daughter.  Buricar fays, that this Woman
was very follicitous feveral times to help to fend
him beyond Sca. He does tell you, that when
there was a Plot againft the Lite of the King,
wheremn Rainbeld was concern’d, and one of the
chiet Actors, that he himfelt was prefent at one of
the Conlulations concerning 1t, and that afterwards
he did withdraw himfelf from the Company, as he
fays; but he fays, that this Woman’s Hufband
being kewife concern’d in the Plot, and this Wo-
man, as he believes, knowing that he was able to
make fome Difcovery concerning her Hufband, and
knowing alo his danger in refpeé of his own Guilt,
fhe endeavours to fend him away firlt to Rochford,
and {o to go beyond Sea.  And afterwards, in an-
other place in Houndfditch, and from thence he was
to be conveyed beyond Sea. It is true, thereis no
direct Proof that there was any particular men-
tion that Burien was in the Proclamation for that
T'realon 5 but the Woman fays, and Burton him-
felf fays, that they do both verily believe, that the
Prifoner at the Bar did know he was in the Procla-
mation, and therefore there was no particular dif-
courfe concerning it; and fhe herfelf being examin-
ed, fays, {he might hear that his Name was in the
Proclamation, and fhe might hear that his Houfe
was {earched, and that he could not be found 3 and
yet notwith{tanding all this, fthe endeavours to con-
ceal him. What can be the meaning of all this in
this Woman, bue that the was very zealous to main-
tain the Confpiracy, and was a great Affiftant to all
Perfons that were concern’d in it? She will not tell
you any other Caufe wherefore the fhonld be concern-
ed to convey this Man beyond Sea, and therefore in
all reafon you ought to conceive it was for this; it
was 2 known Caufe, made known to all People by
the King’s Proclamation. If you believe fhe did
know or believe Burton to have been outity of that
Treafon, and that fhe did help to convey him away,
as the Witnefles have proved that fhedid, by giving
him Money, and folliciting him feveral times to be
gone, then you oughe to find her guilty,

Ther e 7:{;}* a’:yfriﬂg. t0 ast a Queftion, Burton
wes :‘:?ﬂ”t'(f agatits bt being gone out of Court, was
Jeiet fory and My, Cornifh was Jet 1o the Bar.

Clertt. Hewiy Cornifh, hold up thy Hand ; you of
the Jury, leck upon the Prifoner and hearlken to his
Cavle; he fandy indicked by the Name of Henry

Vo, IV,
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Cornifh, late of the Parith of St, Michael Baffifiow, in
the Ward of Baflifbaw, London, Merchant, €9¢. as be-
fore in the Indi€tment. Upon this Indiétment he
hath been arraign’d, and thercunto pleaded Not
Guily, e,

M. Phipps. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen that are fworn, Hensry Cornifh, the
Prifoner at the Bar, ftands indiéted, for that he
knowing that the late Duke of Moumouth, Iillias
Ruflel Efg; the late Lord Grey, and other Traitors,
had confpired the Death of the late King, and to
raife Rebellion in this Kingdom, did promife to
aid and affift them in compaffing this wicked Ima-
gination, againft the Duty of his Allegiance, €.
To this he hath pleaded Not Guilty, &,

Mr. Cornih, 1 am innocent of the whole matter.

Officcr. Burton 1s come,

L. C. }. Fones, Let us make an end of that firft.
In the Evidence that you gave againft Elizabderh
Garnt, you faid that you did receive Money from
her, 5 /. or fome fuch Sum.

Mr. Burton. Yes, an’t pleafe your Lordihip.

L. C. 7. Fones. Did the owe youany Money

Mr. Burton, No, my Lord.

L. C. 7. Fones. Upon what account was it you
receiv’d that Money ?

Mr. Burton. She gave it me,

L.C.J. Fones. Upon what account wasit? To
affift you in your Efcape ?

Mt Burton, She knew I was bare of Money,
and gave it me of her free Will,

L. C.F. Foues. And it was at that time you
went away !

Mr. Burton. Yes.

Mr, Joft, #ithins, It was to afift you in your
Lifcape ?

Mr. Burtonn. Yes, 1 believe fo.

Mv. Com. Serj. Who paid your Boat-hire?

Mr. Burton. T paid none, I dow’t know, the
Waterman can tell,

Mr. At, Gen. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury, Mr. Cornifh, the Pri-
loner at the Bar, ftands indiéted for contriving the
Death of the late King, and for railing Rebellion
in the Kingdom, and is charged that he did confent
to be affifting to that Rebellion that was then de-
figned. It is not unknown to you, Gentlemen, for
there have been feveral Trials of that Confpiracy,
that there was a great Rebellion defign’d in Eup-
laid by the late Duke of Moumonth, the Lord Raffel,
and Sir 7homas Armftreng 5 and particularly Gen-
tlemen, there was a Meeting (which already hath
appeared in publick, ) at Mr, Sheppard’s Houfe,
where the Lord Ruffe/, the late Duke of Mon-
mouthy Sir Thomas Arinftrong, Mr. Rumfey, and the
late Lord Grey, met to confider and adjuflt mat-
ters. At that Meeting Mr, Ger#ifh indeed cam~ in
very late, (for he was invited and knew their Delign
then) he came 1n late, and fo wasnot at the whole Dif-
courfe 5 but there was a Declaration framed to be put
out wien they fhould rife, and they did acquaint
Mr. Cornifh with it, and they rzad it to Mr., Cor-
#ifb, and Mr, Cornifh did like it very well, and pro-
mifed he would be aflifting, as we will prove to
you, Gentlemen. Another Inftance of Mr. Cernifh’s
Rebellion, for I need not tell you what part he acted
when he was Sheriff, and maintain’d that which
was the Ground-work of the Rebellion, fetting the
Commonalty againft the Government of the City :
Another Inftance we will give you is, his Under-

U 2 Sheriff
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T30 it mizht 1saks bim o aood [Fitnefs, yet unlefi be had been attainted, it avas ot ligal to try any for rectiving or comforting bim,

.

Sor dad be been convi, st if be had had bis Clergy, the athery avho is in wature of an Acetflary, is difeharged thiriby,  Hale's Hif,

L. poaza.



